BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

For The Year Ended September 30, 2004

Prepared by:

Katie Conner, C. P. A.
County Auditor



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

For The Year Ended September 30, 2004

Prepared by:

Katie Conner, C. P. A.
County Auditor



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

TABLE OF CONTENTS

T © OF CONMEENES . ... eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneneeennnensennnnnnnssnsnnnsnsnsnsnsssssnsnnnsnsnsnsssnsnsnsnsssnsnsnnnsnsnsnnnsnnns
INTRODUCTORY SECTION

County Auditor’' s Letter of TranSmittal.........cccooeiiiieiiinieeir e seesesseeseeseesnenane
GFOA Certificate Of AChIEVEMENL.........ccccciiiiiiiieeiieeiesiee e see e seeeseesee e aseesseessesnenane
PriNCIPal OffICIAIS .....couiiiiiiiicieieie st sttt et e s e s e anenbesneaneaneas
Brazos County Organizational Chalt ............ccuciiiiinininineneseseseesssesse s ssessessessesseas

FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent AUCITOrS REPOIT ... s eeeeseesreenaeeeesreseeennesneesnesneesnes
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited).........cc.curiciienenenenienienienens

Basic Financial Statements:

Government - wide Statement Of NEt ASSELS ........coceiiiieiieeie e seeseeeeeenas
Government - wide Statement Of ACHVITIES........cciieiieiieiiece e eee s
Balance Sheet — Governmental FUNGS............cooiiiiiiiieeieieciee e eseesneenas
Reconciliation of Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds

t0 the Statement Of NEt ASSELS ..o e e e nas
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

And Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds.............ccccceeeenenee.
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

In Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities....
Statement of Net Assets — Proprietary FUNGS..........ccoiiieiecienieeieseeseeseeeeennas
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund

Net Assets — Proprietary FUNAS...........oooiieiiiiie e seeenesne s
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary FUNAS.........cccooiiieieiienieeie e eeenes
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities— Agency Funds...........ccccecvenenee.
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities— Agency Funds......
Notesto the Basic Financial Statements.........ccccceieiieiieeieeiecieesesieeseeseessnesneesens

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget (GAAP basis) and Actual — General Fund............ccccoieeieeienieenenennnn
REUIEMENT SYSLEIM ...t eee e e ereesaesraesneesseeeesreessesaesnnenneannesnnesnns

Notes to Required Supplementary Information...............ccccccciiiiiiiiiee e,

je No.

1-10
11
12
13

14-15
16-29

30-31
32-33
34-35
36
37-38

39
40

41
42

44-47
48-76



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAL SECTION (Continued) je No.

Supplementary Information
Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements And Schedules:
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Governmental Funds -Summatry........
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changesin
Fund Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Summary ...................

Special Revenues:
Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Governmental Funds ......................
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds ............ccccceceiieenens 99-102

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actud:

State Lateral ROB0 ..........ccoiiiiiiininieiese s ses s see s ssessessessessessens 103
UNClaimed Property .......ccccceieiieiieeieeieesieesesseeseessesssessesssssssssnesssens 104
LaW LIDIary ..o seesresaesneesneseesreesnesnnesnnenneas 105
APPElAe JUICIAL ........cceiiiieece e e e sre e 106
Alternative Dispute RESOIULION ..........ccciiueiieieiieeieeiee e seeeceeeeeseeseens 107
Law Enforcement EAUCALION..........ccocuiiieieienieneniesienses e seeseeseessessenne 108
County Records Management and Preservation............ccccocceceeeeenenne 109
County Clerk Records Management and Preservation..............cc.cu...... 110
TimME PayMENt FEE..... .ot e e ne e sneene e e sne e e 111
COUMNOUSE SECUNLY .....coiiiiiiieeieeiiecieeseeceeseeseeeeeseeseeeneseesnesnnesneesnas 112
District Clerk Records Management and Preservation ............ccccceee... 113
Justice of the Peace Technology..........cccciiieiieiienieiieeneeiee e seeseenns 114
SpeCial FOIrfERITUNES.........ciiiiiieeceece e ne e neeneeneeenas 115
District Attorney Hot Check Callection...........ccoiceieiieiieieniesiennnens 116
Bail BONd BOAI FEES........ccoiiiiiiiiiie s see s ssesnessenns 117
VOter REQISIITALION ......cccueiiiieeieiieeieeieeseeseeeeeseesteeaesneesseanesneessesnnesns 118
Vehicle Inventory TaX INErESt........ccoeiieieeieiieeieeieeceeseeeseeseesnesnenns 119
Sheriff Department Crime FUNd............cooieiiiiiie e e 120
District Attorney Crime FUNG...........ccoiiiiieiieieiie e sieeseeseesieeseenneas 121
LT = | £ TP RUPPPPPPRRRPPPPP
Debt Service Fund:

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget (GAAPBESS) @A ACIUA ..........oveereernrenresessnsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 123

122



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

TABLE OF CONTENTS
FINANCIAL SECTION (Continued) je No.
Capital Project Funds:
Combining BalanCe ShEL ... e e e e e enesne e ene s 124-125
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changesin FUN Bal@nNCES .........c.cccuiieiiiieiieeie e e eeesee e sneesneesnesnnens 126-127

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual:

Certificates of Obligation 2002..........ccccuireiinerienienieeneessesesesesesens 128
County Court at Law COUMIOOM........coiiiieeeeiiiiiiiieeiii e 129
JUAICIal SOFtWEIE.........ceiiieiiieie et e e e e ee e eeseesaeaeesneenneanne e 130
Capital IMProVEMENL........c.cooiiiiirieieiese st sse s ssessessenseas 131
Road and Bridge Infrastructure — Certificates of Obligation 2002 ...... 132
EXPOSITION CONLEN ......cceiiiiiiiiiieeiee et e s e sse e ssesne s snesneaneans 133
Certificates of Obligation 2003...........cccuiriiinerinienieenesese e sessesseas 134
Certificates of Obligation 2004 ...........cccoiriiinerienininenesese e sesseseeas 135
Proprietary Fund Type:
Internal Service Fund:
Health and Life Insurance — Statement of Net ASSELS........ccocvieienenennenn 136
Health and Life Insurance - Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Assets Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actudl.......... 137
Health and Life Insurance - Statement of Cash FIOWS.........c.ccocviieinnnne 138
Fiduciary Fund Types:
Combining BalanCe Sheet ... s enne s 139-140
Capital Assets Used in Operations of Governmental Funds:
BY SOUICE ...ttt itttk st e s ee e sesee s s sae s snee e s bae e saneesesneeanneas 141
Schedule of Changes by Function and ACtiVItY..........cccoiieiieienieiieesenenenns 142-143
Schedule by FUNCtion and ACHIVILY ... e e 144-145



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

TABLE OF CONTENTS
STATISTICAL SECTION Table No. Page No.
Comparative Government-wide ReVENUES.............ccoceeieeieennns 1 146
Comparative Government-wide Expenses by Function.............. 2 e 147
Comparative Condensed Summary of Revenues
All Governmental Fund Types - Last Ten Fiscal Years.. 3 148
Comparative Summary of Expenditures —
All Governmental Fund Types - Last Ten Fiscal Years 4 ... 149-150

Property Tax Levies and Collections And Schedule of

Property Taxes Receivable - Last Ten Years ........ccccceeeevieeeeeennn. 5 151-152
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property -

LaSE TEN YEAIS.....cceiieiiieesiieesee s e ee e sne s s s nesnneesnnesnneesnns 6 e 153
Property Tax Rates - All Direct and Overlapping Governments -

LaSE TEN YEAIS.....cceiiieieerieesee s e see e sne s s e snesnneesnnesneesnns T i 154
Ten Largest TAXPaAYEY'S ......cccuiiiieiiiiieiaiieneseessssesssssessssnssssssesssnesssnnes 8 155
Computation of Legal Debt Margin.........cccccoeiieieicenieeienieeseeseennns 9 e 156
Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Bonded

Debt to Total General Expenditures - Last Ten Years................ 10 .. 157
Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and

Net Bonded Debt Per Capita- Last Ten Years.......ccccceeeeeeeennnne 11 ... 158-159
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt ...........ccoiiiiieinnnnn. 12 ... 160
Miscellaneous StatistiCal Data.........cccoeieriieienienenienienseeseeseeseeseenes 13 161-163
Property Value and Building Permits - Last Ten Years........ccceu.e. 14 ... 164
Annua Compensation and Surety Bonds for Principal Officias...... 15 ... 165
Genera Fund Salary and Wages by Function — Last Five Years...... 16 ........... 166
General Fund Annua Salary and Benefits by Function.................... 17 . 167



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'SREPORTS ON COMPLIANCE
AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with

Government Auditing Standards ..o s

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to
Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over

Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133.........cccceeeennn..

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal And State Awards

for the Year Ended September 30, 2004 .........ccccoeeeeeviieeeeeiiiiiee,

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and

State Awards for the Year Ended September 30, 2004.....................

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs for the

Year Ended September 30, 2004 .........coeiiieiiieeeeeeeeeeee e

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs for the
Year Ended September 30, 2003 — Status of Prior

Year Findings and Questioned COStS .........cciviiiiiieeeeeeiieeeeeeeiin

Page No

.............. 168-169

............ 170-171

............... 172-174

............... 175

................ 176-177

............... 178-180



—ZFXxO0OD0F 00X > NWOF-—-—02Z2



Office of the Brazos County Auditor

Brazos County Courthouse
300 East 26" Street, Suite 314
Bryan, Texas 77803
(979) 361-4350
Fax (979) 361-4347
Email: Auditor@co.brazos.tx.us

March 21, 2005

The Honorable Board of District Judges
J. D. Langley, Judge, 85th Judicial District
Rick Davis, Judge, 272nd Judicial District
Steve Smith, Judge, 361st Judicial District

The Honorable Commissioners’ Court
Randy Sims, County Judge
Eric Caldwell, Commissioner, Precinct 1
Duane Peters, Commissioner, Precinct 2
G. Kenny Mallard Jr., Commissioner, Precinct 3
Carey Cauley, Jr., Commissioner, Precinct 4

Honorable Judges and Commissioners of Brazos County, Texas:

In compliance with Section 114.025 of the Texas Local Government Codeptheréhensive
Annual Financial Report of Brazos County, Texas (the “County”) forfidmal year ended
September 30, 2004, is hereby submitted.

This report consists of management’s representation concerningnémees of the County.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the congdstand reliability of all

of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable foasinaking these

representations, the County has established a comprehensive interral fcamework that is

designed both to protect the County’s assets from loss, theft orensiadsto compile sufficient
reliable information for the preparation of the basic financialestants in conformity with

generally accepted accounting principles. Because the cost afaintontrols should not
outweigh their benefits, the County’s comprehensive framework of ihteomdrols has been
designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance thaicti@dozcial statements
will be free from material misstatement. The responsibibtyinternal controls is shared by
Commissioners’ Court, which is the governing body, the County Auditor, whppsinted by

the District Judges, and the County Treasurer. We believe that the County’'s iatemaiting



controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable asstijamger recording of
financial transactions. We assert that, to the best of our knowbsttfydbelief, this financial
report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The County’'s basic financial statements have been audited by Ingfatiis and Company,
P.C., a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The godiefridependent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the basic financial statemémésCgunty for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2004, are free of material misstatement. Tpendeet audit involved
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amount and disciogheebasic financial
statements; assessing the accounting principles used, and evalh&tirayerall financial
statement presentation. The independent auditor’s report is presgritefeist component of
the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the basic financial statements of BrazosyQeampart of a broader,
federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of fgidentalr agencies.
The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the indepaudiémt to report not

only on the fair presentation of the basic financial statements,alsot on the audited
government’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, wdialsp@phasis on

internal controls and legal requirements involving the administratidadsral awards. These
reports are contained in this report in the section titled “Indeperfaditor's Reports on

Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting”.

Generally accepted accounting principles require a narrative introauoverview and analysis
to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Mamads Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). The introduction includes this transmittal éetithe County’s organizational
chart and a list of principal officials. This letter of transmittal isigleed to complement MD&A
and should be read in conjunction with it. Brazos County’'s MD&A can be foungkdiately
following the report of the independent auditors. The financial sectiso @cludes
government-wide financial statements, fund financial statementss twtéhe basic financial
statements, required supplementary information and the combining and indfuitdi&inancial
statements and schedules in addition to the report of the independentsaudiber statistical
section of this report includes selected financial and demograpbreiation, which is generally
presented on a multi-year basis.

PROFILE OF BRAZOS COUNTY

Brazos County is located in East Central Texas, in an area boundelil sides by large
metropolitan areas. Dallas-Ft. Worth is 180 miles to the north, bloud5 miles to the
southeast, Austin 104 miles to the west, and San Antonio 166 miles toouli@vsst.
Approximately 75 percent of the Texas and 10 p¢i@kthe Louisiana populations, a combined total
of 16 million people, reside within a 200-mile radius of Brazos Countyerel are two major
cities in the County that make up the business and cultural cenyan Bnd College Station.
They have a combined population of approximately 142,800.



The County lies in what is often referred to as the “Post Odik’ Béhere fields, valleys and
rolling green hills have an abundance of trees including post oak, liverazhloak, elm and
hickory. The average elevation in the County is 300 feet above sea level.

The County is a public corporation and a political subdivision of the 8tdtexas. The general
governing body of the County is the elected five-member Commissio@etst in accordance
with Article 5 Paragraph 18 of the Texas Constitution. Commiss@®we four-year staggered
terms, two members elected every two years. The County Judfgcied at large to serve a
four-year term.

The Commissioners’ Court sets the tax rates, establishes policies for Couatjoogeapproves
contracts for the County and develops and adopts the County budget withesdlieces as
estimated by the County Auditor. The Commissioners’ Court is atsponsible for
development of policies and procedures, approving financial commitmentppoititenent of
various department heads. The management and leadership provided by sneftier
Commissioners’ Court and the elected and appointed officials of otlge€Cdenty offices is
crucial to the success of the County in financial management and growth.

The County Auditor has responsibilities for prescribing the systardprocedures for handling
the finances of the County and “examining, auditing and approving” all dsments from
County funds prior to their submission to the Commissioners’ Court for approval.

The County provides a full range of services as authorized by theitGomistand Statutes of the
State of Texas. The primary functions include general governmesticg system, law
enforcement, juvenile services, public transportation, public health, humadoese and debt
service.

The annual budget serves as the foundation of the County’'s planning and cdaget
hearings are posted annually in July with the final budget approved Bpthmissioners’ Court
following the hearings. The final budget includes contingency and enwrgeserves line
items. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. adpsipriated budgets are
prepared by fund, function, department and classification. Capital exjpesdire approved on
a line item basis. All budget transfers between departments follesv special approval
processes. Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this repoetdbr individual
government fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board defines the reporting astitiye primary
government and its component units. Brazos County is a primary goveahmeitt and the
financial statements include all funds, account groups, agencies, boamdsjissions and
authorities for which the elected officials of the County arenfiraly accountable. The
statements include all items that, by the nature and significzinte relationship between the
entity and the County, are such that their exclusion from the fidaegarting format would
render the financial statements misleading or incomplete.

There are several entities that function under the umbrella andicohthe Commissioners’
Court, for which the Commissioners’ Court has fiscal responsibiliihe Brazos County
Juvenile Services and the Brazos Valley Narcotics Task Fonee independent boards that



provide operational control. These two entities are not legallyaepaom the County and are
included in the operations and activities of the County’'s General Fuhd. Commissioners’
Court approves the operating budgets and the expenditures of thess. eBerational funding
is derived from state, federal, and local funds.

The Brazos County Health Facilities Development Corporation, theoBr&ounty Industrial

Development Corporation and the Brazos County Housing Development Corporatrehated

organizations. These corporations were created by resolutions Gbthmissioners’ Court to
enable the various third party organizations the ability to issuexiampt bonds to provide low
cost funding to promote and improve the health and welfare of the public. Thestaptdoonds

issued by these corporations do not constitute a debt or a pledgehobrfairedit of the

corporation or the County, but are payable by the user pursuant to teineside the loan

agreement underlying each issue. Each corporation is governed bydeoBBéarectors made up
of members of the Commissioners’ Court.

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

General | nformation

The official census for 2000 established the population of the County at 152 155202
households and approximately 108,000 persons between the ages of 18 and 65. Of the
population that is over age 25, 81.3% are high school graduates and 37% havedohtai
bachelor’'s degree or higher. These numbers compare to 75.7% and 23.2%vedgpler the

state of Texas as a whole. Over the last 14 years the poputatioen County has grown 32%

and the Texas State Data Center is projecting the populationréasecby 11% from now until

the year 2015.

In 1991 the gross consumption sales reported for all industries in theyQeenet $1.6 billion.
In 1997 the Sales and Use Analysis Report of the Comptroller of FAddaunts for the State of
Texas reflected $2.6 billion for gross consumption sales in the Couktg, for the twelve
months ended December 2004 the Comptroller’s office estimates the grose spleach $3.5
billion for the County. Thus, over the last 13 years the gross consumptithe County has
increased 120%. The finance, insurance and real estate industrieexpavienced a 39%
increase in sales since 2000 and the wholesale trade and serdicgtsyi sales have increased
14% since 2000.

Employment

For the last five years, the County has enjoyed the lowest unempibyae in the State (1.7%
for 2004). The current labor force figures for the County as estatlisy the Texas Workforce
Commission are 86,543 of which 85,088 are currently employed. 41% of the werlkgorc
employed in government, 12.9% in trade, transportation and utilities, 10.4%sumeleand
hospitality, 10.1% in education and health services, 5.8% in manufacturing,rbpt®dssional
and business services, 5.0% in construction, 4.0% in financial activities,ir3.af8ter services
1.4% in information and 0.9% in natural resources and mining.



The employment base of the area by industry classification is as follows

Number Of
Employer Group Employees
State, Local, Federal Government 34,860
Trade, Transportation and Utilities 10,950
Leisure and Hospitality 8,840
Education and Health Services 8,640
Manufacturing 4,922
Professional and Business Services 4,621
Construction 4,220
Financial Activities 3,415
Other Services 2,612
Information 1,205
Natural Resources and Mining 803
85,088
Source: Texas Workforce Commission

From December 2003 to December 2004 the area has added approximatelyol?300 |
nonagricultural industries. The largest growth has been in the gosetrnnadustry (600 jobs)
with the leisure and hospitality industry, coming a close second (40Q ja%s of December
2004 the area has maintained a positive growth rate for seventeen months (2.8%).

Higher Education

Brazos County is the home of Texas A&M University, the fourthdstrginiversity in the United
States. The University employs 12,000 permanent and part time engplagdeserves an
enrollment of 44,000 on a 5,200-acre campus. The University offers degrabeost 160
courses of study through the various colleges on campus. Texas A&Xerklty is ranked
among the top ten research institutions in the nation. Each yealty fand graduate students
conduct approximately $500 million in sponsored research projects. Thargrnplant for the
university is valued at more than $1 billion. The University recaorésscess of 880,000 visitors
annually.

In March 2004 an in-house study conducted by Texas A&M University dstinthat the
University directly contributes $900 million dollars annually to thal@conomy - and that after
applying an economic multiplier that considers the number of tinedsdelar is typically spent
before leaving the community - the overall economic impact on thésvaas nearly $2.25 billion
in 2003.

In 2003, the University and System payroll for the 21,728 employees was $6Ri0:2, end the
economic impact of the 44,000 students at A&M was estimated at aboutrfif@8. Campus
visitors are estimated to generate $62.2 million in expendituresategories such as food,
lodging, gasoline and services for the local economy (sdureeBryan - College Station Eagle
March 7, 2004).



The University has the distinction of providing space for the Geough Presidential Library
Center and the George Bush School of International Study. The Lpmangles a tremendous
research center, and is hosting in excess of 300,000 visitors annuhi$/fadility, along with
the 324-acre University Research Park, provides an attraction fonatmal and international
visitors. The presence of Texas A&M has consistently provided imeefdr residential
development and growth, and offered the area some insulation from adverse econorsic effect

In addition to the four-year program Texas A&M offers, Blinn Caledfers two-year programs
and two locations to choose from: the main campus in Brenham and a la@atadn in Bryan.
Both locations offer various technical certificates and asssaikgigrees in arts and sciences. The
Bryan location offers the same programs and degrees as theangus, but also takes part in a
joint collaborative effort with Texas A&M University. The BIlinfTEAM" program allows
select students to take courses at both Texas A&M and Blinn College irerte@firepare them

to become full-time students at TAMU (www.researchvalley.org).

Transportation

The County and both of the major cities are dedicated to providing supensportation
services. The Texas Department of Transportation is curresdlyaging North-South and East-
West arteries for additions and upgrades. Expansion projects havetbgmawide four-lane
divided State highways to connect the County with ready access tim fushe west, Houston
to the South, Waco to the North, as well as Dallas via Inter3tasend 45. These additions and
upgrades are expected of include the widening of State Highwayn6FiM 159 to the Navasota
River, and the widening of State Highway 21 from Kurten to the Mad@ounty line. A
recently completed East-West bypass connects the metroplearwAlstin arterial route (State
Highway 21). Local plans by the Metropolitan Planning Organizatisn plioritize a $10
million overpass at Harvey Mitchell Parkway South and Wellborn Road.

Homeland Security

Texas A&M University has been selected as the national@ithé new_Integrative Center for
Homeland Securityin response to the nation’s fight against domestic terrorism. c@imer is
internationally recognized for expertise in the safety aspettfood and agriculture,
transportation, information archiving and security, management of bialsazealth issues and
other areas such as training of first-responders and medical pdrs@umebining the resources
of Texas A&M, the Texas Engineering Extension Service (TEEX, Texas Engineering
Experiment Station (TEES), the Texas Agricultural Experim@tation (TAES), the Texas
Transportation Institute, the Texas Veterinary Medical Diagodsiboratory and the Institute
for Biosciences and Technology has resulted in a homeland securityhpoge. Training is
conducted under realistic conditions at TEEX’s state-of-the-art, @20Emergency Response
and Rescue Training Field, “Disaster City,” a mock city with atous full-scale training props
and the Emergency Operations Training Center. Investment in titer ¢& projected at $120
million over a five-year period.




Growth

During 2004 Brazos County experienced a growth in retail space ariceticeis expected to
continue into 2005. Construction was completed on the Home Depot at theafddméversity
Drive and State Highway 6 in the fall of 2003. The former Manot Edl on Villa Maria
Road has been renovated and expanded to become the Tejas Center. €henCledes a
93,000 square foot HEB grocery store, as well as new facades aodetenfor the existing
Bealls and Hastings. Another retail center across the $tosetthe Tejas Center will contain a
Walgreen’s and other retailers. In College Station plans arewayléor a 300,000 square foot
shopping center in front of the Pebble Creek subdivision and an upscale lcetvteen
Highways 30 and 60 will combine shopping, restaurants, offices and apartments.

In October 2004 construction began on a 45,000 square foot ice rink on HollemarEBst in
the Wolf Pen Creek district. The facility will house a NHkesice rink with seating to
accommodate 500 spectators. Also on site will be a pro shop, a sk&tkshop and several
meeting and party rooms. The facility is expected to open inptitegsof 2005 and will offer a
large selection of skating programs and off-ice events to include publiegskassions, learn-to-
skate lessons, hockey, figure skating and broomball. The facilityalsd become the official
home for the Texas A&M Club Hockey Team.

Construction was completed on a $34 million four-story bed tower addititimet&t. Joseph
Regional Health Center. The tower offers space for support eersich as a pharmacy, houses
a new day surgery unit, 36 critical care beds and 36 medical/surgical bedsu@mmstwas also
completed on the $12 million medical office building connected to the geofi¢ation Medical
Center. The four-story building brought the total medical office esgac that area to over
200,000 square feet.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

In 2004, the Commissioners’ Court of Brazos County continued the stratagiing program
concerning capital improvements and expansion that was begun in 1996. ofnegpfocuses
on meeting current and future needs of the County. During 2004 the Countguednti
construction of county roads to connect major thoroughfares. The County upgvadé miles

of road during the year at a cost of over $1.3 million dollars and expended over $5 million dollars
in maintaining County roads. The Commissioners’ Court has continued tagragequate
funding so that the road and bridge improvement program to upgrade and wiale@ounty
roads could be continued. The program has been in place since 1996 and @oraraisSourt
appropriated a public transportation budget for fiscal year 2005 to inghudeillion (includes
personnel services, supplies and other charges, repairs and mainteoatreet services and
professional services) for routine maintenance, and $3 million for improvements and spgrade

The County successfully implemented an upgrade to the financial softwtaeefall of 2004 and
is anticipating continued advances in the financial transaction recording and refuortingns.



During 2004, the County engaged a consultant, Wiginton, Hooker and Jeffryte&tstio assist
the Commissioners’ Court in determining the future space needs Gbtiidy. The consultant
has performed extensive analysis of the current needs of Countysoffac include land and
building areas available for expansion, functionality required betweent¢ offices that work
closely together such as the courts and the jail system, gulttysand costs. The analysis
included discussions with the elected officials and department healls Gfounty as well as
crime and justice statistics and trends from across the cotimdrgtate and Brazos County. The
results of this evaluation will assist the County in facilitarpling for the next twenty years.
One result of this analysis is that the County has purchased aioraldX 88 acres on Highway
21 near the existing Detention Center for the construction of affhadministration building.
Construction of the facility is expected to begin sometime in 2005.

During the current fiscal year the County continued development chrldeaind utilities for the
Exposition Center. The County paid $386,000 for architect fees and sitlopieeat and
anticipates construction to begin in 2005.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Debt administration is monitored through the Debt Service Fund. The Cbastynever
defaulted on the payment of principal or interest on its bonds oricaed of obligation. The
County currently enjoys a Moody’s Investor Service rating of Aaa,aasdandard and Poor
rating of AA+. In compliance with the requirements of the bond order certificate of
obligation agreements, the County maintains separate accountalbligéytax rate set each year
is calculated to provide sufficient funding to meet current yeagatitins. The County has $1.6
million reserved in the Debt Service Fund to meet future obligatitm&November 2001, the
voters of Brazos County passed a proposition which allowed Commissi@uens’'to sell $18.5
million in General Revenue Bonds to be used for the construction of a County Expositien. C
The Court sold $8,000,000 of the bonds in December 2001. The County anticipates sell
$5,000,000 in fiscal year 2004-2005 or later with the remaining $5,500,000 to be safigrén f
fiscal years. In November 2003, the County issued $10,000,000 in Certifi€&dtigation to
fund facility needs, infrastructure improvements, and equipment purclzasesny September
2004 the County issued $5,000,000 in Certificates of Obligation to fund additamildl fand
land needs as well as capital road projects. For the 2004-2005 fisctdey€ounty debt service
portion of its property tax rate is $.0632 per $100 valuation and assumir@othey sells
$5,000,000 in General Obligation Debt for the Exposition Center in 2004-2005 thgedabé
rate for fiscal year 2005-2006 is expected to be $.0637 for every $100 in valuation.

CASH MANAGEMENT

The County has adopted an investment policy as required by statedaw eonformity with
state investment statutes. The investment policy as adopted Gptinéy employs the prudent
person concept in that priorities were established as to the irergstghicles the County would
use. Safety was established as the first priority, followedlitpyidity, low risk and
diversification. The County Treasurer is responsible for admimgtedl of the investment of
idle funds in the County. At September 30, 2004, the County had cash and caaleetpuof
$51.7 million - 76% of which was invested in the County’s depository and 249%téavén
Texpool, a statewide investment pool. The County had approximately $8c¢hraflagency of



agency funds invested in money market, time deposits and property. Eheifigcal year, the
County had an average of $45.1 million invested, which earned approximately $674,000.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The County’s Risk Management Department is responsible for eggegposure to risk that the
County may have and is responsible for obtaining coverage againgisthat The County
practices risk management through a combination of self-insuranc&aaibnal insurance.
The Commissioners’ Court evaluates management risks and a Ipgdsdniection is assessed.
Property and casualty insurance are obtained at reasonable preatearand purchased through
traditional insurance carriers. The County’s property and cagualiyance coverage includes
general liability, auto liability, law enforcement, workers’ comgegion, fire, theft, and public
officials' errors and omissions. The County, for the year endedrflegte30, 2004, did not
reduce any of its insurance coverage, and all claims again€otingy had been settled or the
underwriter had accepted responsibility for them. The County inslirets duildings at
estimated replacement cost.

For several years, Brazos County has been self-insured with sinsuavailable for major
claims related to health insurance. This procedure allows the Ctmuméyain and invest all
reserves and premium payments. The County has retained a thirégraitystrator to handle
all claims. The County's plan is similar to a preferred provideyanization plan with a
deductible applicable to some types of claims.

The County’'s workers’ compensation insurance program is through the Fesaciation of
Counties. The program provides medical and indemnity payments agdelqyilaw for on-the-
job related injuries. Each department is charged monthly for theaa®ver the employees.
All department assessments are transferred to the IntermaceSd-und (Health and Life
Insurance). The Internal Service Fund is responsible for settling all claims.

The Commissioners’ Court has developed a “safety loss control progesigned to reduce
risks to County employees. Programs are developed and implemente@dtplalished steering
committee. To date, the programs (defensive driving, facilitetgadudits, preventive
maintenance for all buildings and grounds, personnel training classeacamtives for loss
prevention) have been successful in reducing the number of injuries aBduhg/’s worker’s
compensation reimbursement rate for the past three years. Inidustigsts of future increases
in the cost of insurance have prompted the Commissioners’ Court to obtain thessehac'risk
management consultant.” The consultant’s expertise will help thet¢ reduce and/or hold
increases to a minimum by adjusting liability limits and levels of self-amse.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

This report has been prepared following the guidelines recommended Wgotlernment
Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States amaa@a. The GFOA awards a
certificate of achievement to those governments whose annual finegoats are judged to
conform substantially to high standards of public financial reportingudimg generally
accepted accounting principles promulgated by the Governmental AccoGtaingards Board.
The County has been awarded the Certificate of Achievement for its annual fimeporalsince



1988. The report has historically presented the financial information of the County in an easily
readable and efficient manner. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for one year. This office
believes that the current year report continues to meet the program standards, and it will be
submitted to the GFOA to determine County eligibility for another certificate.

We wish to express our thanks to the Commissioners” Court and the District Judges for their
support and interest in planning and conducting the financial affairs of the County in a
responsible and professional manner. This report could not have been completed in a timely
manner without the dedicated efforts of all County elected officials, Commissioners’ Court, the
County Auditor’s staff, and the independent auditors, Ingram, Wallis & Company, P. C.

Respectfully submitted,

Katie Conner, CPA
County Auditor
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Randy Sims, County Judge
and the Honorable County Commissioners
Brazos County, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Brazos County, Texas (the “County”), as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2004, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
County as of September 30, 2004, and the respective changes in financial position and
cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

14



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our reports
dated December 17, 2004, on our consideration of the County’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. Those reports are an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis, retirement system information and budgetary
comparison information on pages 16 through 29 and 77 through 89, are not a required
part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The introductory
section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, schedule of capital
assets used in the operation of governmental funds and statistical tables are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section, schedules of capital
assets used in the operation of governmental funds and statistical tables have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

O Q/I/aﬂln ) é‘”ﬂ"}
Bryan, Texas e LS !

December 17, 2004
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
For the Year Ending September 30, 2004

This section of the Brazos County comprehensive annual financial pgpsents management’s
discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the financial performance feé primary government
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004. Please read the M&Ajunction with the
transmittal letter at the front of this report and the Countyschinancial statements following
this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

* The total government-wide assets of the Countyeslekthe liabilities at September 30, 2004 by
$77,132,923, and are reported as total net askdte rimary government. Of this amount,
$43,400,017 (unrestricted net assets) may be aiseedt ongoing obligations to citizens and cresjitor
$3,328,283 is restricted for specific purposedrices] net assets) and $30,404,623 is invested in
capital assets, net of related debt.

* The County’s total net assets increased by $3,362,473, of which $2.1 millionbigtatite to
a 0.0154 per $100 valuation increase in the ad valorem tax rate and amsenofe
approximately $1.2 million in charges for services due to continuing eaitmemt of the fine
and fee accounts receivable collection.

* As of September 30, 2004, the County governmental funds reported combined fundsalanc
of $42,006,521. Approximately 86 of the combined fund balances, $36,201,392 is
available to meet the County’s current and future needs (unreserved fund balances).

» At the end of the fiscal year, unreserved undesigfiatelcbalance for the general fund is $14,815,738
or 37% of total general fund expenditures.

» Brazos County's total debt increased $13,140,000, or 47.0% during the currdnydaca
The key factor in this net increase was the issuance of $15,000,000 tific&les of
Obligation for infrastructure improvements and capital asset acquisition armuvanpegnts.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introductitie tGounty’s basic

financial statements. The County’'s basic financial statemarnds comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund finatati@inents and 3) notes
to the basic financial statements. Required supplementary infomigtincluded in addition to

the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements Theseare designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of County finances, in a manner similar to a private-séctsiness. They include a

Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities. 8bthese statements are presented
using the accrual method of accounting; therefore, revenues and expenses are takssumto ac
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The statement of net assets presents information on all Couety as&l liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Overncregses or decreases in net assets
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial positidneo€ounty is improving or
deteriorating. However, other non-financial factors, such as changes @ounty’s property tax
base and the condition of the County’s roads, should be considered to lassessdll health of
the County.

The statement of activities presents information showing how setsashanged during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are repastedon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of relasgu ftows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items thaeswit in cash flows in future
fiscal periods.

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish dmsctif the County that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (goverhmaemntdies) from
other functions that are intended to recover all or in part a portitheinfcosts through user fees
and charges (business-type activities). The governmental astigftthe County include general
government, justice system, law enforcement, juvenile services, pudntisportation, public
health and human services. The business-type activities of the Coohige the County
Attorney, and the Jail Commissary activities.

Fund Financial Statements -Fundsare groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specifitiesctor objectives. The
County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting te andutemonstrate
finance-related legal compliance. All of the funds of the County [ divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statesnertiowever, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental funds finanatehstnts focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on éslaihspendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful iragwvglthe County’s
near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is more narrow than of thewgeve+wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presentedvyerrgnental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the governmetg-financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impéd@ gbvernment’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and tmengavial funds
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance proddadliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activitie
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The County maintains thirty individual governmental funds. Informatigmdasented separately
in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental fuedsestabf revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General, Debt SErposition Center,

Certificate of Obligation Series 2003 and Certificate of Ollbga Series 2004, which are
considered to be major funds. Data from other governmental funds abenednmto a single,

aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nongoegonmental funds is
provided in the form of combining schedules elsewhere in this report.

Proprietary funds are maintained two ways. An enterprise fund is used to repodathe
functions presented as business-type activities in the governmentivadeial statements. The
County uses an enterprise fund to account for the county attorney adationsof the returned
check activities and the jail commissary activities. Intes@bice funds are an accounting
device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally amongtimy@ various functions.
The County uses internal service funds to account for its admimastrait the County’s self-
insurance programs for health services. Because these sepregsminantly benefit
governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been incltigiedgavernmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of partigisentie

government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-widacfal statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support thgsGmwntprograms.

The County’s only fiduciary funds are agency funds. Agency funds aedypuustodial (assets
equal liabilities) and thus do not involve measurement of results of operations.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statementprovide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund fihatatments.
The notes can be found on pages 4&{7is report.

Required Supplementary Information is presented concerning the County’s General Fund
budgetary schedule and valuation information about the County retirenséarhsgnd condition
assessment information for county roads and bridges. The County ad@pisuah budget for
the General fund. A budgetary comparison schedule, which includes thealoagd final
amended budget and actual figures, has been provided to demonstrate cempiianthis
budget. Required supplementary information can be found on pages 77-92 of this report.

Combining and individual fund schedulesprovide information for non-major governmental
funds, capital project funds, debt service fund, internal service fundsgandyafunds and are
presented immediately following the required supplementary infawmatiAdditionally, the
County legally adopts budgets for a number of other governmental fundset8wydgomparison
schedules and combining and individual fund statements and schedules can benfpagés
77-89 and 93-140 of this report.

18



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

This is the second year the County has applied Governmental Accoutdinga®ls Board
(GASB) Statement No. 34.

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as useftdtmdi of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the County, assets exceeded liabilitles7)¥32,923at the close of the
most recent fiscal year.

Condensed Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2004
With Comparative Totals September 30, 2003

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type 2003

Activities Activities Total Total
Current and other assets $ 50,578,840 $ 160,130 $50,738,970 $38,650,922
Capital assets, net 71,066,598 - 71,066,598 69,134,084
Total assets 121,645,438 160,130 121,805,568 107,785,006
Current and other liabilities 6,268,903 13,195 6,282,098 8,028,091
Long-term liabilities 38,390,547 - 38,390,547 25,986,465
Total liabilities 44,659,450 13,195 44,672,645 34,014,556

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt30,404,623 - 30,404,623 41,439,649
Restricted net assets 3,328,283 - 3,328,283 2,989,935
Unrestricted net assets 43,253,082 146,935 43,400,017 29,340,866
Total net assets $ 76,985,988 $ 146,935 $77,132,923 $73,770,450

The largest portion of the County’s current fiscal year net2$38%) reflects its investment in
capital assets (e.g. land, improvements, buildings, equipment, infrastudess any related
debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. Tmeiseeof these capital assets is
to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets areailable for future spending.
Although the County’s investment in its capital assets is repodedf related debt, it should be
noted that resources needed to repay this debt must be provided frorscatfvers, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Another significant portion of the County’'s current fiscal year amgtets (56.2%) represents

unrestricted net assets, which may be used to meet the County’agtigations to citizens
and creditors.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

The remaining balance of the County’s current fiscal year setsaa$4.8%) represents resources
that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the County reported positivassets in both categories of
net assets for its governmental and business-type activitieal neatassets of the County have
increased by $3.3 million from the prior year. The principal componehiincrease is due to
an increase in the ad valorem tax rate from 0.4196 per $100 valuation to Pet3%000
valuation or 0.0154 per $100 valuation and to a $1.2 million increase in accowNalkcfor
full accrual basis. This increase is a result of continued imprenein the collection of data
relative to the assessment and collection of fines, fees, and court costs.

Theremainder of this page intentionally left blank
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

The following table indicates changes in net aseetgovernmental and business-type activities:

Condensed Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004
With Comparative Totals September 30, 2003

Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for service
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General revenues:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Motor vehicle taxes
Mixed drink taxes
Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenses:
General Government
Justice System
Law Enforcement
Juvenile Services
Public Transportation
Public Health
Human Services
Interest and Other Fees

Total expenses

Excess (deficiency) before special items

Gain (loss) on disposal of assets

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

Governmental Business-Type 2003

Activities Activities Total Total
$10,466,453 $350,836 $10,817,289 $ 8,554,778
3,293,962 - 3,293,962 3,090,190
291,411 - 291,411 58,911
26,932,638 - 26,932,638 24,127,005
8,413,179 - 8,413,179 7,723,285
1,136,744 - 1,136,744 1,147,480
348,790 - 348,790 317,091
684,525 933 685,458 594,314
- - - 636,775
51,567,702 351,769 51,919,471 46,249,829
12,633,863 - 12,633,863 11,890,781
9,392,776 96,878 9,489,654 8,777,183
11,956,232 207,164 12,163,396 11,498,513
3,739,205 - 3,739,205 3,802,706
5,360,370 - 5,360,370 6,394,828
1,726,770 - 1,726,770 1,761,796
1,826,466 - 1,826,466 1,578,544
1,648,665 1,648,665 1,349,227
48,284,347 304,042 48,588,389 47,053,578
3,283,355 47,727 3,331,082 (803,749)
29,791 1,600 31,391 (4,647,004)
3,313,146 49,327 3,362,473 (5,450,753)
73,672,842 97,608 73,770,450 79,221,203
$76,985,988 $146,935 $77,132,923 $73,770,450
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GOVERNMENT — WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Revenues by Source
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF FUNDS

Governmental Funds - The County’s major general government functions are contained in the
General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Project Fuhdsoclis of the County’'s
governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflandg,balances of
spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the 'Sofimiycing
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serveuassfld measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At September 30, 2004, the County’s governmental funds reported combined funedaiinc
$42,006,521, an increase of $12,823,226 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately
$36,201,392 of the combined fund balance constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is
available to meet the County’s current and future needs includingaiety® capital project

needs and the moneys the Court has designated as corpus of the HeéalmEnt Fund (See

Note 1-M).

The General Fundis the chief operating fund of the County. At September 30, 2004, the
General Fund reported revenues of $41,842,631, an increase of $3,149,088 or 8.1% over the
prior year. The increase is due to a $2.7 million or 9.4% increaskvialarem, sales and mixed
drink taxes and an increase in charges for services of $381,254 aaswail increase in
intergovernmental revenues of $92,423. The increase was offset bysdecoée100,18Hh

other revenue and decrease of $23,147 in interest revenue. Ad valorenmtagased as a
result of increases in property valuations. The increase in chargesrvice is due to an increase

in misdemeanor fine revenue from the justice system. The incieaggergovernmental
revenues is due to increase in grant funding by the Texas Juveniledrdébanmission and the
Texas Youth Commission. The decrease in other revenues is due taith@sddan donations.
The decrease in interest revenue is due to decreased interest yields earnedmeritszes

Theremainder of this page intentionally left blank.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF FUNDS (Continued)

Expenditures in the General Fund increased by approximately $1.4 million or 4.6%epéeot
year. An increase of over $1,000,000 in the general government functionimasilprdue to
increased expenditures in the Commissioner's Court division and the @uotynSupport
division. The Commissioner’s Court division increase was due to ectleixpenditures related
to the recreation of the Brazos Center facility in the ExmosiGenter. Commissioner’s Court
asked the voters to approve the implementation of a venue tax in Feb@0dryhat would allow
for the expansion of the Exposition Center project to include an asséalblsimilar to the
current Brazos Center. The proposition failed and the preliminangndexpenditures of
$237,400 were paid from the General Fund. Additionally, expenditures for CotgrSupiport
division increased during the year over $300,000 due to an increase in the afmmometary
support the County provides to the Brazos County Health Departmentadesr@ the majority
of functions are the results of enhancements in the overall wiigetige, and performance pay
allowances.

Revenues by Source

OFY 2004
EFY 2003

$35
$30
$25 -
$20

$15 -

Dollars in millions

$10 -
$5
$- -
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF FUNDS (Continued)

Expenditures by Function

$12 1 EFY 2004
EFY 2003

$10

Dollars in millions

Function

The fund balance of the County’s general fund increased by $1.5 million dioeirgirrent fiscal
year. Key factors in this increase were as follows:
* Revenues increased $3.1 million while expenditures increased only $1.5 million.
* The ad valorem tax rate was increased by $0.0154 per $100 valuation.
» Charges for Services increased 5.6% over fiscal year 2003.
* The annual growth rate of expenditures decreased in 2004; expenditueaseaaconly
3.9 % over the fiscal year 2003, while expenditures increased 4.8% from 2002 to 2003.

The Debt Service Funds used to account for receipts and disbursements of funds relating to the
County’s long-term bonded debt obligations. At the end of FY 2004, the fund déat@neased
$10,865 or 0.67% from FY 2003. This increase is due to the realization nbiesviem excess of
anticipated for delinquent ad valorem taxes. Additionally, Commissso@aurt decided to
transfer $200,000 from the General Fund to provide funds for the initiaksbtpayment
required on the Certificates of Obligation issued in November 2003.

The Capital Projects Fundaccounts for receipts and disbursements relating to the acquisition
or construction of major capital projects. At the end of FY 2004, taéftotd balances for all
capital project funds increased $11,028,485. This change reflects addiimassuances of
$15,000,000 during FY 2004 as well as capital project expenditures during the same period.
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Actual revenues exceeded final amended budget by $2.5 million prindaéyto increased
collections of sales tax and ad valorem taxes. The Countye@dh?.8 million more in tax
revenue than originally anticipated, over $200,000 more in charges forestrait anticipated,
and over $400,000 more than anticipated in intergovernmental and other revenuéesatddar

County continued to see a decline in interest revenue and fell stitba fihal amended budget
by $99,000.

Brazos County’s practice is to include contingency funds in the origdapted appropriations
(budget). However, these appropriated contingencies are not allozatetividual department
budgets unless required during the year. Differences between gihabludget expenditures
and the final amended budget resulted in an increase of approxi®&I&YO00 in departmental
appropriations. The following amounts were transferred from contirggenaoi departmental
budgets during FY 2004

» $237,400 to the Commissioner’s Court division to allow for the preliminasigdeof the
assembly hall within the Exposition Center. Voters rejectedopoged venue tax to fund
this project,

* $150,000 to the Court Support Costs division for additional contract placemernethor
juveniles,

* $111,000 to the Road and Bridge division which represents the reinvestmenidsfriot
spent during the 2002-2003 fiscal year. The Court has decided that anynéarsgent for
road maintenance and improvement will roll over to the following year,

* $97,460 to the Narcotics Task Force as additional matching funds,

 The remaining supplemental adjustments (approximately $274,000) consistinof
increases in expenditures across all programs.

At the end of the fiscal year, actual expenditures were $3.5miltiss than the final amended
budgeted amount (which includes all contingencies).

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

The County’s investment in capital assets for its governmentabasidess-type activities as of
September 30, 2004, amounted to $71,066,598 (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements tibther buildings,
machinery and equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progresgotdhiacrease in the
County’s investment in capital assets for the current period was %uBBth was primarily due

to over $1.8 million in additions to infrastructure and construction in predgoesoads that have

not been completed. Please refer to the notes to the basic firmat@enents for more detailed
information.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)
Capital Assets (continued)

The County has elected to use the “Modified Approach” as defined byBGAJor reporting
infrastructure assets, which include 450 miles of roads and 58 bridges.

The Brazos County Road and Bridge department performs condition assesshcounty roads
continually throughout the year and evaluates and prioritizes thesrasuitially. The condition
assessment team utilizes various criteria for evaluatingahdition of the roads including the
traffic volume of the road, the number of man hours used to maintain the road in yleatathe
potential traffic on the road based on observed development of propecessiag the road, the
number of traffic accidents and the type of accidents, and a visg@dtion of the road for
settlement spots, rough pavement, areas requiring patching, and thedyeglueepair activities
on the road. Each road is assessed on a scale of zero to 100 witlpre@entng a road in
perfect condition. The County has adopted a minimum condition level of 808l {Gounty
roads. The results of the 2004 condition assessment indicate that aqzpebxi410 miles are at
80% or better condition level. There are approximately 40 mildsavitondition level between
60% and 80% which are scheduled for upgrade in the next 2 years.

For the year ended September 30, 2004, annual maintenance and preservasioof cost
$4,620,767 were less than the estimated amount needed of $5,336,680. This wadaade i
the unforeseen delays in the acquisition of right of way, road prepaatd weather delays.
More detailed information is available on pages 91 and 92 in the Reddingolementary
Information.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following

* The Certificates of Obligation 2002 and the Road and Bridge Infrasteu€.O.’s 2002
Capital Project Funds were established from the $2,995,000 in CeetfichObligation
issued in December 2002. During fiscal year 2004 the funds remairtimg @ertificates
of Obligation 2002 fund were used to purchase the upgrade to the Countysidina
system and to continue the upgrade of several county roads. The fuhdsRoad and
Bridge Infrastructure C.0.’s 2002 were expended to expand and upgradéitdedad
in south Brazos County. At September 30, 2004, there remained $369,837 in the Road
and Bridge Infrastructure fund for use during the 2004-2005 fiscal yeer.anticipated
that the upgrade to IG&N road will be completed in the summer of 2005.

» During fiscal year 2004 the County issued $15,000,000 in Certificates afabii. The
first $10,000,000 was issued in November 2003 and is detailed in the capiat fuop
entitled Certificates of Obligation 2003. The funds were used aalfigear 2004 to
purchase vehicles, to upgrade the County's radio communication systgmrctease
computer hardware, to hire a consultant to perform a space needsafalyse County
and to provide additional funding for the upgrade of roads in the unincorporaseicdr
the county. At September 30, 2004 there remained over $7.8 million thatipatetl to
be used for the construction and equipping of an administration building for the Sheriff’'s
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Office. The building is currently in the design phase and construtiexpected to
begin in 2005.

» The second series of Certificates of Obligation the County issasedor $5,000,000 and
was issued in September 2004. These funds are accounted for in takeprapgtt fund
entitled Certificates of Obligation 2004 and are intended to be ugmdd¢base land for
the expansion of County offices, to construct a new Justice of tlee Pedding, for
Road and Bridge equipment and capital road projects.

» At September 30, 200419,040,142 remained available in all capital project funds to be
used for the costs of various capital projects. $5,266,259 of this fund belaesticted
to the construction of the Brazos County Exposition Center and an additional $7%200 ha
been designated to fund future enhancements to the judicial softwahagrdady the
County in fiscal year 2002. In FY 20084,125,087 was expended on various projects
(compared to $3,050,151 in fiscal year 2003).

Long-term debt

At September 30, 2004, the County had total long-term debt outstanding of $40,650,000 as
compared to $27,510,000 in the prior year. Refer to Note 8 in the NotesBaditeFinancial
Statements for a detailed breakdown of long-term debt owed by the CoQntynty officials,
citizens and investors will find the ratio of net bonded debt to asbestuation and the amount

of bonded debt per capita as useful indicators of the County's debt pasitiaa shown in the
statistical section of this report. At the November 2000 genesati@h, the voters of Brazos
County passed a proposition to allow the County to sell $18.5 million in &dRevenue Bonds

to be used for the construction of a County Exposition Center. The Cassuosdi $8,000,000
General Obligation Bonds in 2001 to finance the costs associated witbleeeit, construction

and equipping of the Exposition Center.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

The Commissioner’s Court adopted the 2004-2005 budget on August 31, 2004. The budget was
adopted based on estimated balances that would be available at thefisoal gear 2004 and
estimated revenues to be received in fiscal year 2005. For 2004-2005%gkeyptax rate will
increase to $.4725 per $100 valuation. The Commissioner's Court consideridaiveng

factors in establishing this tax rate:

* For the last several years the County has budgeted the use of fund balance reseyves to pa
for operational expenditures. For the years ended September 30, 2002 and 2003 the
County experienced a decrease in fund balance of over $2.3 million. WWéi@ounty
continues to experience appraisal increases and growth as waelicremses in
operational expenditures, the tax rate had remained relativelyanbrshce 1997.
Increasing the tax rate is expected to alleviate future reductions of fund balance

 Tax revenue from all sources is expected to increase 15.5% ov20@Hebudgeted
revenue, and overall expenditures are anticipated to increase 6.68%;
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 The County’s Health and Life fund experienced over $2 million in lodsesg the
2000, 2001 and 2002 fiscal years that have been funded by the County's General Fund.
The County continues to experience high expenditures for medicalscldduring the
2003-2004 budget year the County restructured the health care plans itoaekhuce
the costs, which has resulted in a slowing of the increase irhlezak expenditures,
however, the reserves set aside for the Health and Life fund remain low;

* The County provided a merit allowance of 2.5% of the previous years biodgkbw
the departments to provide monetary incentives to employees for positve
performance;

* The Commissioner’s Court desires to maintain an unrestricted fuaddeabf 90 to 180
days of expenditures to provide the County with readily available @=sour the event
of a natural disaster, or other catastrophic event.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview oCthmty’'s finances for all
those with an interest in the County's finances. Questions conceanyngf the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial informatholsl be addressed to the
County Auditor’s Office, 300 East 265treet, Suite 314, Bryan, Texas, 77803.
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BRAZOS COUNTY,TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
September 30, 2004

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Prepaid Expenses
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible ante
Taxes
Accounts and Other
Inventories
Due from Other Funds
Permanently Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables:
Taxes
Accounts and Other
Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land
Buildings
Improvements Other than Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in Progress

TOTAL ASSETS

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities TOTAL

$ 40,895,640 $ 142,607 $ 41,038,247
261,308 - 261,308
1,332,386 - 1,332,386
6,062,187 6,751 6,068,938

323,142 10,772 333,914

80,435 - 80,435

1,606,787 - 1,606,787

7,740 - 7,740

9,215 - 9,215

6,873,819 - 6,873,819
13,216,184 - 13,216,184
3,317,270 - 3,317,270

8,690,441 - 8,690,441
35,299,117 - 35,299,117
3,669,767 - 3,669,767

$ 121,645,438 $ 160,130 $ 121,805,568

The accompanying notes to the financial statermemetsin integral part of this statement.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - Continued
September 30, 2004

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities TOTAL
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities $ 2,645,097 $ 7817 % 2,652,914
Accrued Salaries and Wages 396,874 5,378 402,252
Due to Other Governmental Units 2,964 - 2,964
Unclaimed Funds 173,779 - 173,779
Liability for Compensated Absences 506,834 - 506,834
Accrued Interest Payable 153,355 - 153,355
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 2,390,000 - 2,390,000
Due in more than one year 38,271,975 - 38,271,975
Deferred Tax Revenue 118,572 - 118,572
TOTAL LIABILITIES 44,659,450 13,195 44,672,645
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 30,823 - 30,404,623
Restricted for:
Debt Service 1,623,742 - 1,623,742
Booneville Cemetary 6,262 - 6,262
Special Purpose Programs 1,698,279 - 1,698,279
Unrestricted 43,253,082 146,935 43,400,017
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 76,985,988 $ 146,935 $ 77,132,923
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets

The accompanying notes to the financial stateragatan integral part of this statement.
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Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and Governmental BusinessType
Functions/Programs Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 12,633,863 $ 2801415 $ - $ - $ (9,832,448) $ - $ (9,832,448)
Justice System 9,392,776 5,609,315 562,706 - (3,220,755) - (3,220,755)
Law Enforcement 11,956,232 673,692 1,027,000 37,938 (10,217,602) - (20,217,602)
Juvenile Services 3,739,205 18,103 1,266,617 - (2,454,485) - (2,454,485)
Public Transportation 5,360,370 1,119,824 286,801 - (3,953,745) - (3,953,745)
Public Health 1,726,770 31,209 59,520 - (1,636,041) - (1,636,041)
Human Services 1,826,466 212,895 91,318 253,473 (1,268,780) - (1,268,780)
Interest and Other Fees 1,648,665 - - - (1,648,665) - (1,648,665)
Total Governmental Activities 48,284,347 10,466,453 3,293,962 291,411 (34,232,521) - (34,232,521)
Business - Type Activities:
County Attorney 96,878 107,360 - - - 10,482 10,482
Jail Commissary 207,164 243,476 - - - 36,312 36,312
Total Business - Type Activities 304,042 350,836 - - - 46,794 46,794
Total Governmel $ 48,588,38 $ 10,817,28 $ 3,293,96 $ 291,41. $ (34,232,521 $ 46,79 $ (34,185,72i
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes $ 26932638 % - $ 26,932,638
Sales taxes 8,413,179 - 8,413,179
Motor vehicle taxes 1,136,744 - 1,136,744
Mixed drink taxes 348,790 - 348,790
Unrestricted investment earnings 684,525 933 685,458
Gain on disposal of assets 29,791 1,600 31,391
Total general revenues 37,545,667 2,533 37,548,200
Change in net assets 3,313,146 49,327 3,362,473
Net assets-beginning 73,672,842 97,608 73,770,450
Net assets-endi $  76,985,98 $ 146,93! $ 77,132,92




ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalel
Prepaid Expenditure
Receivables

Taxes

Officials

Interes

Accounts

State

Federa
Due From Other Func
Inventories

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payabl
Accrued Salary and Compensated Le
Unclaimed Fund
Due To Other Func
Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance!
Reserve:
For Debt Servic
For Prepaid Expenditur
For Inventorie
For Boonville Cemetel
For Title IV-E
For Texas Youth Commissi
For Indigent Health Ca
For Special Purpose Progra
Unreserve:
Designated for Capital Improveme
Designated for Health Endowment Ft
Undesignate
Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

September 30, 200

Major Funds Other Total
Debt Exposition C.O. C.O. Governmental Governmental
General Service Center Issue 200. Issue 200« Funds Funds
$ 18,686,55° $ 1,606,78° $ 5,261,447 $ 7,951,39( $ 4,947,009 $ 2,913,42¢ $ 41,366,73:
130,331 - - - - - 130,331
1,174,86! 192,37( - - - - 1,367,23!
330,47¢ 7,40C - - - - 337,87¢
38,30¢ 1,81¢ 5,66C 5,11¢ 17,47¢ 4,61C 72,98¢
81,21¢ - - - - 641 81,85¢%
1,168,30( - - - - 427,44¢ 1,595,74¢
4,29¢ - - - - - 4,29¢
82,88% - - - - 15,882 98,76¢
323,14: - - - - - 323,14:
$ 22,020,37! $ 1,808,37: $ 5,267,13!¢ $ 7,956,50¢ $ 4,964,57. $ 3,362,00t $ 45,378,97!
$ 851,481 $ - $ 880 $ 88,602 $ - $ 433,36¢ $ 1,374,33.
351,00¢ - - - - 45,86¢ 396,87«
- - - - - 173,77¢ 173,77¢
1,712 - - - - 19,16¢ 20,87¢
1,171,81¢ 184,631 - - - 50,14¢< 1,406,59:
2,376,01¢ 184,631 880 88,60 - 722,32¢ 3,372,45:
- 1,623,74. - - - - 1,623,74:
130,331 - - - - - 130,331
323,14: - - - - - 323,14:
6,262 - - - - - 6,262
1,119,01¢ - - - - - 1,119,01¢
209 - - - - - 209
904,141 - - - - - 904,14:
- - - - - 1,698,27¢ 1,698,27¢
- - 5,266,25¢ 7,867,90! 4,964,57. 941,40¢ 19,040,14:
2,345,51. - - - - - 2,345,51.
14,815,73! - - - - - 14,815,73!
19,644,35! 1,623,74. 5,266,25! 7,867,90! 4,964,57. 2,639,68¢ 42,006,52:
$ 22,020,37! $ 1,808,37: $ 5,267,13!¢ $ 7,956,50¢ $ 4,964,57. $ 3,362,00t $ 45,378,97!

The accompanying notes to the financial stateman¢san integral part of this statement.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUN DS
TO STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
September 30, 2004

Amounts reported for governmentadtivities in the statement of net assets are different besau

Total fund balances--governmental funds $ 42,006,521

Capital assets used in governmental activitiematdinancial resources and, therefore, are

not reported as assets in governmental funds. 71,066,598
Certain receivables are not available and, theegfare deferred in governmental funds. 3,530,530
Certain receivables will be collected this yeart &re not available soon enough to pay for 1,260,910

the current period's expenditures and, therefaeedaferred in the funds.

Internal service funds are used by the County'sagament for self insurance.
The assets and liabilities of the funds are inctudéth governmental activities in
the Statement of Net Assets but are not includgtefund level. 312,621

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, a@ due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported as liabilities in theds:

Bonds payable (40,650,000)
Deferred charge for issuance cost (to be amortézeithterest expense) 130,972
Issuance premium (to be amortized as interest esg)en (11,975)
Accrued interest payable (153,355)
Compensated absences (506,834)
(41,191,192)
Total net assets--governmental activitie $ 76,985,98

The accompanying notes to the financial statemargsan integral part of this statement.
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REVENUES
Taxes
Charges for Servic
Intergovernmenti
Interes
Other Revent
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Governme
Justice Syste
Law Enforcemer
Juvenile Service
Public Transportatic
Public Healtl
Human Service
Capital Outla
Debt Servic
Principal Retiremel
Interest and Fiscal Agent F¢
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers |i
Transfers Ot
Proceeds From Sale of Fixed As:
Proceeds From Debt Obligatic
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Net Change in Fund Balant

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1
FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 30

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended September 30, 20(

Major Funds Other Total
Debt Exposition C.0. C.0. Governmental Governmenta
General Service Center Issue 200 Issue 200 Funds Funds
32,481,13 $ 3,199,691 $ - $ - $ - $ -8 35,680,82
7,175,34. - - - - 560,69 7,736,03
1,267,90! - - - - 2,310,44 3,578,35
381,65¢ 67,36 75,04¢ 100,44: 5,46¢ 44,19 674,17
536,59( - - - - 52,87 589,46
41,842,63 3,267,05. 75,04¢ 100,44 5,46¢ 2,968,21 48,258,85
9,297,46: - - - - 101,19 9,398,66
9,247,25! - - - - 212,96 9,460,21
10,252,01 - - - - 1,298,34 11,550,36
2,934,09 - - - - 716,72 3,650,81
4,620,76 - - - - 257,82 4,878,59
1,533,06! - - - - - 1,533,06
1,663,25 - - - - 168,12« 1,831,38
71,95( - 386,04! 2,232,53 40,891 1,607,11 4,338,54
171,14 1,860,001 - - - - 2,031,14
6,501 1,596,18! - - - - 1,602,68
39,797,50. 3,456,18! 386,04! 2,232,53 40,897 4,362,29 50,275,46
2,045,127 (189,135) (310,996) (2,132,095) (35,428) (1,394,087) (2,016,614)
44,65: 200,00( - - - 285,18 529,83
(633,314 - - - - (96,524 (729,838
39,84( - - - - - 39,84(
- - - 10,000,00 5,000,001 R 15,000,00
(548,822) 200,000 - 10,000,000 5,000,000 188,662 14,839,840
1,496,30! 10,86t (310,996 7,867,90! 4,964,57. (1,205,425 12,823,222
18,148,054 1,612,877 5,577,255 - - 3,845,109 29,183,295
19,644,359 $ 1,623,742 $ 5,266,259 $ 7,867,905 $ 4,964,572 g 2639684 $ 42,006,521

The accompanying notes to the financial statemamtsn integral part of this statem
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPEND ITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Amounts reported for governmental activities in sketement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balances--total governmental fuis $ 12,823,226

Governmental funds report capital outlays as exiperes. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assetbdsated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expefbés is the amount that
expenditures for capital outlay exceeded depreciakpense.

Revenues and contributed assets in the statemantiaities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported asméges in the funds.

Certain long-term liabilities are accrued at thgegoment-wide level
but not at the fund level. This is the currentryd@@nge in those liabilities,
reported as expense in the statement of activities.

Bond proceeds provide current financial resourcegoternmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in sketement of net assets.
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure enxgbvernmental funds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities ingtedement of net assets. This

1,934,126

1,448,431

(40,023)

is the amount by which proceeds exceeded repayments (12,910,366)

Internal service funds are used by managementai@etihe costs of
certain activities, such as insurance and fleehtanance, to
individual funds. The net revenue (expense) dbaeinternal service funds
is reported with governmental activities.

57,752

Change in net assets of governmental activiti $

3,313,14

The accompanying notes to the financial statemametsin integral part of this statement.



ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivale
Accounts Receivab
Inventorie:
Due From Other Fun
Total Current Asse

Noncurrent Assets
Property, Plant and Equipm:

Less: Accumulated Depreciat

Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payab
Accrued Salary and Compensated L
Deferred Revenu

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
Unrestricte:

TOTAL NET ASSETS

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
September 30, 20C

Business - Type

Activities -
Enterprise Governmental
Funds Activities
County Jail Internal Service
Attorney Commissary Totals Fund
$ 30,72 % 111,88: 142,600 $ 1,135,691
6,63 114 6,751 20,66
- 10,77: 10,77: -
- - - 37C
37,36( 122,771 160,13( 1,156,72
54,61: - 54,61: -
(54,611 - (54,611 -
37,360 122,770 160,130 1,156,727
4,27: 3,541 7,815 702,81:
1,47 3,90¢ 5,37¢ -
- - - 141,29!
5,746 7,449 13,195 844,106
31,61 115,32: 146,93! 312,62:
$ 31,614 $ 115,321  $ 146,935 $ 312,621

The accompanying notes to the financial statememetsn integral part of this statem
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended September 30, 20(

Business - Type

Activities -
Enterprise Governmental
Funds Activities
County Jail Internal Service
Attorney Commissary Totals Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Servit $ 107,36  $ - $ 107,36( -
Commissary Sal - 242,78! 242,78! -
Employee Dependet - - - 842,03(
Self Pay - - - 247,56«
Excess Risk Benefi - - - 777,98«
Participant Paymer - - - 221,48
Brazos Count - - - 3,774,48
Retiree - - - 59,11:
Other Revent - 691 691 -
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 107,36( 243,47t 350,83¢ 5,922,66!
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel Servic 92,12¢ 65,71¢ 157,84! -
Departmental Suppc 2,38% 9,07¢ 11,45¢ -
Minor Acquisition: 75% - 75& -
Cost of Goods So - 132,37 132,37: -
Life Insuranc: - - - 36,26¢
Stop Loss Premiur - - - 740,82!
Benefit Claim: - - - 5,039,07.
Administrative Fee - - - 259,09t
Professional Servic - - - -
Depreciatior 1,612 - 1,612 -
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 96,87¢ 207,16« 304,04 6,075,26.
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 10,48: 36,31: 46,79« (152,596
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed As: 1,60( - 1,60( -
Interes - 93¢ 932 10,34¢
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 1,60( 93z 2,53: 10,34¢
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
OPERATING TRANSFERS 12,08: 37,24t 49,327 (142,248
Transfer From General Fu - - - 200,00(
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 12,08: 37,24t 49,327 57,75:
TOTAL NET ASSETS - OCTOBER 1 19,53: 78,07¢ 97,60¢ 254,86
TOTAL NET ASSETS - SEPTEMBER 3C $ 31,61« $ 115,32: $ 146,93! 312,62:

The accompanying notes to the financial statemametsin integral part of this statem
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended September 30, 201

Business - Type

Activities -
Enterprise Governmental
Funds Activities
County Jail Internal Service
Attorney Commissary Totals Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers and u $ 100,722 % 243,471 $ 344,190 % 1,361,55

Receipts from interfund services provi 5,65¢ 78¢ 6,44( 3,984,35

Receipts from reinsurar - - - 1,331,60

Payments to contractors and ven (2,940 (156,641 (159,581 (1,015,82C

Claims pai - - (5,228,611

Payments to employees for serv (90,324 (66,876 (157,200 -
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 13,11 20,74 33,85¢ 433,08i
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfer From General FL - - - 200,00t
NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES - - - 200,00
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed As: 1,60( - 1,60( -

Investment Incon - 90<4 90<4 8,97¢
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1,60( 904 2,50¢ 8,97¢
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 14,71 21,64¢ 36,36: 642,061
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, OCTOBER 1 16,01( 90,23! 106,24! 493,63
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 30,720 $ 111,88 $ 14260 % 1,135,69

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to nethgarovided

(used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 10482 $ 36,312 $ 46,794 $ (152,596)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (lossietocash

provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense 1,612 - 1,612 -
Decrease (Increase) in accounts receivable (6,637) 786 (5,851) 535,249
Decrease (Increase) in inventory - (5,233) (5,233) -
Decrease (Increase) in due from other funds 5,654 - 5,654 200,000
Decrease (Increase) in accounts payable 4,273 (9,963) (5,690) (163,539)
Decrease (Increase) in accrued salary and compéneave (2,271) (1,157) (3,428) -
Increase in deferred revenues - - - 13,974
Total adjustments 2,631 (15,567) (12,936) 585,684
Net cash provided by operating activi $ 13,110 $ 20,74 $ 3385 $ 433,08t

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
September 30, 20C

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 9,076,040
Investment 1,374,60!
Prepaid Asse 67,48t
Accounts Receivab 1,18(
Due From Other Fun 56C
TOTAL ASSETS 10,519,87
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payab 2,912,16
Due to Other Fun 78,52
Funds Held in Tru: 7,529,18:
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 10,519,87

The accompanying notes to the financial statememasn integral part of this statement.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABIL ITIES

For The Year Ended September 30, 20(

Balance Balance
October 1. September 3C
200: Additions Deductions 200¢
NARCOTICS SEIZURE
Asset:
Cash and Cash Equivale $ 124,26l $ 145,88 $ 174,511 $ 95,63
Accounts Receivab 117 94 11¢ 95
Total Assets 124,377 145,981 174,632 95,726
Liabilities
Funds Held In Tru: 124,37 50,02t 78,67¢ 95,72¢
Total Liabilities 124,37 50,02¢ 78,67t 95,72¢
PAYROLL
Asset:
Cash and Cash Equivale 347,68: 20,821,17 20,475,00 693,85!
Due From Other Funi - 96 - 96
Accounts Receivab 58¢ - 7 581
Prepaid Insuran 71,09¢ 67,48¢ 71,09¢ 67,48¢
Total Asset 419,36 20,888,76 20,546,10 762,02(
Liabilities
Accounts Payab 322,99! 20,588,37 20,238,95 672,41:
Funds Held In Tru: 96,36¢ 300,38t 307,14¢ 89,60"
Total Liabilities 419,363 20,888,761 20,546,104 762,020
CAFETERIA PLAN
Asset:
Cash and Cash Equivale - 60,49 50,49: 10,00(
Total Asset - 60,49 50,49 10,00(
Liabilities
Funds Held In Tru: - 60,49 50,49 10,00(
Total Liabilities - 60,49 50,49: 10,00(
BRAZOS CENTER
Asset:
Cash and Cash Equivale 73,88¢ 254,99( 274,98: 53,89"
Accounts Receivab - 20C 12¢ 75
Total Asset 73,88¢ 255,19( 275,10° 53,97:
Liabilities
Due To Other Func 22,31¢ 208,25 212,06: 18,51:
Funds Held In Tru: 51,57( 29,40( 45,51( 35,46(
Total Liabilities $ 73,889 $ 237,654 $ 257571 % 53,972

The accompanying notes to the financial statemametsin integral part of this statement.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABIL ITIES

For The Year Ended September 30, 20(

Balance Balance
October 1, September 3C
200z Additions Deductions 200¢
BAIL BONDS
Asset:
Cash and Cash Equivale $ 600,71 $ 689,90« 636,40! 654,21
Total Asset 600,71« 689,90« 636,40! 654,21¢
Liabilities
Due To Other Func 38,66¢ - - 38,66¢
Funds Held In Tru: 562,04t 207,56: 154,05! 615,55(
Total Liabilities 600,71« 207,56 154,05! 654,21¢
DISTRICT CLERK TRUST
Asset:
Cash and Cash Equivale 3,124,14. 2,009,72 1,917,622 3,216,241
Accounts Receivab - 42¢ - 42¢
Total Asset 3,124,14. 2,010,15 1,917,622 3,216,66!
Liabilities
Accounts Payable - 3,629 3,200 429
Funds Held In Trust 3,124,144 209,834 117,738 3,216,240
Total Liabilities 3,124,14. 213,46 120,93t 3,216,66!
COUNTY CLERK TRUST
Asset:
Cash and Cash Equivale 1,509,22 3,672,34. 3,257,49 1,924,07.
Total Assets 1,509,227 3,672,344 3,257,497 1,924,074
Liabilities
Funds Held In Tru: 1,509,22 2,182,33! 1,767,49 1,924,07.
Total Liabilities 1,509,22 2,182,33: 1,767,49 1,924,07.
JUVENILE SERVICES
Asset:
Cash and Cash Equivale 29,347 18,52( 26,66: 21,20«
Accounts Receivab - 64( 64( -
Total Asset 29,341 19,16( 27,30: 21,20
Liabilities
Funds Held In Tru: 29,347 18,40( 26,54 21,20¢
Total Liabilities $ 29,347 % 18,400 $ 26,543 21,204
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABIL ITIES

For The Year Ended September 30, 20(

Balance Balance
October 1. September 3C
200: Additions Deductions 200¢
TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR
Asset:
Cash and Cash Equivale $ 1,848,850  $190,469,24  $ 190,063,27 $ 2,254,83
Total Asset 1,848,85! 190,469,24 190,063,27 2,254,83
Liabilities
Accounts Payab 1,848,85! 15,258,03 14,867,92 2,238,96!
Due To Other Fun - 15,86¢ - 15,86¢
Total Liabilities 1,848,85! 15,273,89 14,867,922 2,254,83
COUNTY ATTORNEY
Asset:
Cash and Cash Equivale 40,48 676,32: 685,51! 31,29(
Total Asset 40,48: 676,32 685,51! 31,29(
Liabilities
Accounts Payab 6,97: 11,25¢ 17,86° 361
Due To Other Fun 5,581 - 55C 5,03
Funds Held In Tru: 27,92: 78,30" 80,33 25,89:
Total Liabilities 40,481 89,560 98,751 31,290
INMATE TRUST
Asset:
Cash and Cash Equivale 20,78: 475,58 481,94 14,42
Due From Other Fun 464 - - 464
Total Assets 21,246 475,589 481,947 14,888
Liabilities
Due To Other Fun 71t - 27¢€ 43¢
Funds Held In Tru: 20,53: 22,44¢ 28,52¢ 14,44¢
Total Liabilities 21,246 22,446 28,804 14,888
DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Asset:
Cash and Cash Equivale 106,58: 321,39 321,60( 106,37
Total Asset 106,58: 321,39t 321,60( 106,37
Liabilities
Accounts Payab - 161,13. 161,13. -
Funds Held In Tru: 106,58 171,86: 172,06! 106,37
Total Liabilities $ 106,581 $ 332,993 % 333,197 $ 106,377

The accompanying notes to the financial statenemetgn integral part of this statement.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABIL

BAIL BOND BOARD TRUST
Asset:
Investmer
Total Asset

Liabilities
Funds Held In Tru:
Total Liabilities

COMBINED AGENCY FUNDS
Asset:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Prepaid Assets
Accounts Receivable
Due From Other Funds
Total Asset

Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Due To Other Funds
Funds Held In Trust
Total Liabilities

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
AGENCY FUNDS

ITIES
For The Year Ended September 30, 20(
Balance Balance
October 1. September 3C
200z Additions Deductions 200¢
$ 1,257,82 $ 312,48 $ 195,70( $ 1,374,60
1,257,82 312,48: 195,70( 1,374,60'
1,257,82i 540,04: 423,26. 1,374,60!
$ 1,257,828 $ 540,043 $ 423,262 $ 1,374,609
$ 7,825,965% 219,615,592 $ 218,365,517 $ 9,076,040
1,257,828 312,481 195,700 1,374,609
71,094 67,488 71,094 67,488
705 1,363 888 1,180
464 96 - 560
9,156,05! 219,997,02 218,633,19 10,519,87
2,178,827 36,022,419 35,289,078 2,912,168
67,289 224,119 212,887 78,521
6,909,940 3,871,096 3,251,848 7,529,188
$ 9,156,05! $ 40,117,63 $ 38,753,81 $10,519,87
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of Brazos County, Texas (“County”) have been developed to be in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stafesearica
(“GAAP?”) for local government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards BoaAGS8G
is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accountingramal fina
reporting principles. The most significant accounting and reporting policies of they@Goent
described in the following notes to the financial statements.

A. Reporting Entity

The Brazos County Government (the “County”) was created in 1841. ®tetyCis a public

corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Texas. It performs goveatiio@ations as

required or authorized by the Texas Constitution and the Laws of ate SA Commissioners’
Court composed of an elected County Judge and four elected Commisgimvenrss the County.
The combined financial statements include all departments, fundsauras for the County, the
primary government.

The concept underlying the definition of the reporting entity is tleatexd officials are accountable
to their constituents for their actions. The financial statemsmsld allow users to distinguish
between the primary government (the County) and its component units. n@everAccounting
Standards Board Statement 14 defines the reporting entity as tharnpmovernment and its
component units. Brazos County is the primary governmental unit. TMaecfal statements
include all funds, agencies, boards, commissions, and authorities for tvhiekected officials of
the County are financially accountable. The financial statenecltsde those entities for which
the nature and significance of the relationship between the entittha County are such that to
exclude the entity from the financial reporting entity would renter financial statements
misleading or incomplete.

The relationship of the following corporations and the County meet fiteriarof related
organizations.

Brazos County Housing Finance Corporation

The Brazos County Housing Finance Corporation (“BCHFC”) is a Texdsic, non-profit
corporation created in accordance with the Texas Housing Finance @&mpohct. This Act
authorizes the BCHFC to finance residential housing by issuingx@mxypt revenue bonds to
acquire mortgage loans made to low or moderate income persons, aedde plch mortgage
loans as security for the payment of the principal and interestiabf revenue bonds. The tax-
exempt bonds issued by the BCHFC do not constitute a debt or a plefdgh of credit of the
BCHFC or Brazos County, but are payable by the user pursuant to defmed in the loan
agreement underlying each issue. Interest received on the boraterally exempt from federal
income tax under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code. The BCHjeCeied by a three
member Board of Directors which is comprised of three membertheofBrazos County
Commissioners’ Court.
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NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A. Reporting Entity (Continued)

Brazos County Health Facilities Development Corporation

The Brazos County Health Facilities Development Corporation (“B®ElF is a Texas public, non-
profit corporation created in accordance with the Texas HealttitieacDevelopment Act of 1981.
The BCHFDC purpose is to acquire, construct, provide, improve, finance andcefimealth facilities
to assist in the maintenance of the public health. The tax-ex@mgs issued by the BCHFDC do not
constitute a debt or a pledge of faith or credit of the BCHFD@@ICounty, but are payable by the
user pursuant to terms defined in the loan agreement underlyingssaeh ilnterest received on the
bonds is generally exempt from federal income tax under Sectionf188 tmternal Revenue Code.
The BCHFDC is governed by a five member Board of Directors whicbmprised of the members of
the Brazos County Commissioners’ Court.

Brazos County Industrial Development Corporation

The Brazos County Industrial Development Corporation (“BCIDC”) i$exas public, non-profit
corporation created in accordance with the Texas Development Covpohati of 1979. The BCIDC
purpose is to issue bonds on behalf of the Corporation, to promote and developaindusir
manufacturing enterprises, to promote and encourage employment and tlee welfdre, and to
finance projects as defined by the Act. The tax-exempt bonds isgukd BCIDC do not constitute a
debt or a pledge of faith or credit of the BCIDC or the County, lmupayable by the user pursuant to
terms defined in the loan agreement underlying each issue. tnmeewed on the bonds is generally
exempt from federal income tax under Section 103 of the InternalnRev@ode. The BCIDC is
governed by a three member Board of Directors which is comprisédteaf members of the Brazos
County Commissioners’ Court.

B. Government-wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements consist of the StatemedétoAssets and the Statement of
Activities. These statements report information on all of the meifiry activities of the primary
government and its component units. Governmental activities are suppdortedxes and
intergovernmental revenues and are reported separately from bugpesstivities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using dhengic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurementrisenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilitieacaneeid, regardless of the timing of cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in theoreahich they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as dililgligiequirements imposed by the provider
have been met.

The effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated for the government-widefaiatatements.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continue d)

C. Fund Level Financial Statements

All governmental funds and agency funds use the modified accrualdfestsounting. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized wheptgledo accrual (i.e., when
they become both measurable and available). "Measurable" meaarmadhat of the transaction can
be determined, and "available” means collectible within the cuypeidad or soon enough thereafter to
be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The County consigeesues as available if they are
collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recuarded the related fund liability is
incurred. Debt service expenditures as well as expendituréedrdta compensated absences and
claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due.

Property tax revenues, the County's primary revenue source, is slsdepaccrual and is considered
available to the extent of delinquent taxes collected within $8Qy days of the fiscal year end. Grant
and entitlement revenues are also susceptible to accrual. Encumnsbaamaesed during the year and
any un-liquidated items are reported at year-end as a reservation of fund balance.

The fund level financial statements are accounted for on a spendiagcial flow" measurement
focus. This means that only current assets and current liabiéiegaerally included on their balance
sheets. Their reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered a afi¢asai@able spendable
resources.” Governmental fund operating statements present iscfea@nues and other financing
sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing usesjurrerdtassets. Accordingly, they
are said to present a summary of sources and uses of "available spendable rehgumges'period.

For proprietary funds, all revenues and expenses are classifigoeeging revenues and expenses
except for taxes, investment income and interest expense, whictlassified as non-operating
revenues and expenses.

All proprietary funds, including the enterprise fund and internal sefurogs, are accounted for using
the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when eadheadpenses when they are
incurred. Claims incurred but not reported are included in payablesxpadses. These funds are
accounted for using a cost of service or "capital maintenancesumnasaent focus. This means that all
assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) assoaiatie their activity are included in the

funds’ balance sheets.

The agency funds are used to account for assets held solely itodialusapacity and are accounted
for using the accrual basis of accounting. As a result, assatgenty funds are always matched by
liabilities to the owners of the assets.

The County's accounts are organized on the basis of funds, each ofsmocisidered to be a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for by prozideygarate set of self-
balancing accounts, which are comprised of each fund's assetstidmbilind equity, revenues and
expenditures or expenses. Separate financial statements are grderdgovernmental funds,
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are exdiwmhedhe government-wide
financial statements. The County reports the following funds:
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NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Fund Level Financial StatementgContinued)

Governmental Funds

General Fund The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the Countys used to
account for all financial resources except those required to berged for in another fund. The
fund accumulates reserves for future capital improvements and unforeseepmatastrents.

Special Revenue FundsSpecial Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources (other than expendable trusts and capital projects), whiclegaléy restricted to
expenditures for a specified purpose.

Debt Service Fund The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulationoafees
for the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs.

Capital Project Funds Capital Project Funds account for financial resources to befasdlde
acquisition or construction of major capital assets and infrasteucinincipal sources of funds for
expenditure are general obligation bonds, proceeds from certifichteligation, and interest
income.

Proprietary Funds

Internal Service Fund The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the provision dhheal
dental and life insurance to the departments of the County assmellautside entities that have
contracted with the County for this service. The fund operates on a cost reimbursement bas

Enterprise Funds The Enterprise Funds are used to account for the operations obtimeyC
Attorney and Jail Commissary that are financed and operated ianaemsimilar to private
business or where the County has decided that the determination of eegamed, costs incurred
and/or net income is necessary for management accountability.

Agency Funds- The Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the Coaggna for
individuals, private organizations, and other governmental funds.

D. Proprietary Fund Accounting

The County has implemented Statement No. 20 of the Governmental Accdbtandards Board
(GASB), “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds atigerOGovernmental
Entities that Use Proprietary Fund Accounting.” Pursuant to thismsent, the County has elected
to follow alternative 1 as set out in GASB 20 for proprietary furcdacting. The County follows:
(1) All GASB pronouncements and (2) Financial Accounting Standards Estatdments and
Interpretations, APB Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins issued before November
30, 1989 except those that conflict with GASB pronouncements.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continue d)

E. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

The County defines all cash, money market accoamtiscertificates of deposit that have an origimeaturity
date of ninety days or less as cash or cash egpiisalCash and cash equivalents related to tedtassets
are also included. Cash and cash equivalentshare term, highly liquid investments, which may be
converted to cash (see Note 3). The County maintains a chstvestment pool that is available for use by
all funds. Equity in cash and cash equivalentsiatedest income from the cash pool is allocatethéo
participating funds on a monthly basis. The amofitite allocation is determined by calculatingt#orof
each fund’s equity in the pool to the total pool.

All County funds must be on deposit with the Cgul@pository unless the Commissioners’ Court dirtbet
County Treasurer to invest funds as otherwise geoMby law. State statutes authorize the Countyest

in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial ggajgorporate bonds, and repurchase agreements.
Investments are stated at fair value or amortiastisee Note 3).

F. Short Term — Interfund Receivables and Payables

There are essentially four forms of interfund teatiens:

1. Loans — Transfers of monies between funds that are accounted f@laase sheet
transactions and reflect a due from/due to.

2. Reimbursements - Transfers which comprise reimbursement ofdétxpes initially made
by one fund, but properly attributable to another fund. Interfund transfpresest
reimbursement for an expenditure if the reimbursement is for eifisper directly
allocable cost applicable to the reimbursing fund.

3. Quasi-external - Transactions that would be accounted for as revanagpenditures if
they involved an entity external to the government. The receiving &gwlds the monies
as another financing source (revenue) and the disbursing fund recordsories ras
another financing use (expenditure).

4. Transfers- There are two types of transfers. Residual equity tranaferaonrecurring
transfers between funds, which represent a transfer (contributi®@gudly between the
represented funds. These transactions are recorded directly to fandebaOperating
transfers reflect all transfers that do not fall into one ofpifexious categories. They are
generally ongoing operating subsidies between funds, such as matching fundsl regair
grant agreement.

G. Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property asusryd of a given year. Taxes
levied on October 1 are payable by January 31 of the following yearbyarsthtute become
delinquent on February 1 at which time they begin accruing penaltyngerdst. The enforceable
legal claim date for property taxes is the assessmenaddttherefore the County did not record a
receivable for taxes assessed after September 30, 2004. Accqrthegdyare no current taxes
receivable reported. On July 1, unpaid taxes are subject to additperalties and collection
expenses.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G. Property Taxes(Continued)

Taxes have been reported in the government-wide financial statenetnt$ the allowance for
uncollectible taxes. At the governmental fund level, taxes amgnezed as revenue when they
become available and the amount not yet available (not collectibhenvaixty days) has been
reported as deferred revenue. For the year ended September 30, 2004, r¢tte ta finance
general governmental services was $0.3839 per $100.00 valuation. The fax ttatepayment of
principal and interest on long-term debt was $0.0511 per $100.00 valuation. Undeiopgovi
adopted by the State, the maximum rate that can be set to sgovE®mental services is $0.80
per $100 of assessed value.

The Brazos County Appraisal District is responsfblethe recording and appraisal of property for al
taxing units in the County. The Appraisal District is regplito assess property at 100% of its appraised
value. Real property is subject to reappraisal tour-year cycle.

The County’s Tax Assessor-Collector acts as agent in thago#éind collecting of taxes for the
Brazos County Water Control Improvement District - Big Creek,Glig of Bryan, the City of
College Station, the Bryan Independent School District, the Colleg®rs Independent School
District, Brazos County Education District, and Brazos County RtralPrevention Districts 1, 2,
3, and 4. These transactions are recorded in an agency account.

H. Inventories and Prepaid Iltems

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit perig@smteSeptember 30, 2004, are
recorded as prepaid items, and amortized as expenditures as consumed.

The County maintains inventory at various levels. All inventory lisechat cost and is accounted
for under the consumption method. Inventories of paper, copier supplies and aioéehance
materials are maintained for all departments within the GeRaral. An inventory of consumable
food and personal items is maintained within the Jail Commissary Enterprise Fund.

|. Capital Assets

Capital assets include land, land improvements, right-of-way landasinicture, buildings,
building improvements, site improvements, leasehold improvements, vehio@shinery,
furniture, equipment, other systems, works of art and intangible dsaetre used in operations
and benefit more than a single fiscal period. Infrastructuretsasse long-lived assets that
normally are stationary in nature and typically can be preseoreal gignificantly greater number
of years than most capital assets, such as roads, bridges, andysams. The County defines
capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost oé thamn $5,000 and an estimated useful
life in excess of three years. Building improvements with émated cost to exceed $25,000 are
capitalized while infrastructure assets with an estimated cost tode®66€)00 are capitalized.



NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

|. Capital Assets(Continued)

When capital assets are purchased, they are capitalized andiatedrat the government-wide
financial statements and the proprietary fund statements. Cagutgts are recorded as
expenditures of the current period in the governmental fund financial statements.

Capital assets are valued at cost where historical recordgaalabbe and at an estimated historical
cost where no records exist. Donated capital assets are valhed @stimated fair market value
on the date received.

Improvements to capital assets that materially extend #hefithe asset or add to the value are
capitalized. Other repairs and normal maintenance are not zagultalMajor outlays for capital
assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are cmustruaterest incurred during
construction is not capitalized in the governmental activities orgtivernment-wide financial
statements.

Capital assets except for infrastructure, are depreciatedhmvaseful lives of the assets or classes
of assets on a straight-line basis as follows:

Buildings and improvements 20 - 40 years
Machinery and equipment 3 -10 years

The County uses the modified approach to report its infrastructugts asghe government-wide

statement of net assets. Infrastructure assets are &stéiktorical costs but they are not
depreciated. Rather, under the modified approach allowed by GASEh8taito. 34, the County

reports annual expenses for maintaining roads and bridges and thetexbtoosts for preserving

them at 80% condition level out of a 100% scale.

J. Compensated Absences

All full-time employees are granted vacation and sick leave her®sed on length of service.
Non-exempt employees may earn compensatory time off for overtionked. Employees are
entitled to receive accumulated vacation pay in a lump sum payidémeii employment is
terminated. The related accrued vacation payable and accumulatpdnsatory time has been
accrued as an expense and a liability at year-end in the govermdenstatements as a liability
for compensated absences. Accumulated sick leave benefits arecomted, being lost upon
termination of employment.

Non-exempt, non-law enforcement employees earn compensatory tone and one-half times
the excess of 40 hours per week worked. These employees can asw@xenam of 240 hours.

Non-exempt, law enforcement employees earn compensatory time ahdr@ne-half times the

excess of 171 hours in a 28-day work cycle. Non-exempt, law enforcemenieagptan accrue a
maximum of 480 hours. At termination, all compensatory time is pdlteavage rate in place at
termination. The maximum amount of vacation time an employee caneas 240 hours. At

termination, an employee is paid for all vacation time earned upetaldte of separation at the
current wage rate.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continue d)

K. Revenues and Expenses

Program revenues for governmental activities include those gehdrame general government,
justice system, law enforcement, juvenile services, public tramsioort public health and human
services.

L. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and lotigeterm obligations are

reported as liabilities under governmental activities. On new baugss bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortizékdeoNie of the bonds. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Boadds costs are
reported as prepaid expenses and amortized over the term of thd delht. Interest expenditures
are reported in activities of the general government.

M. Fund Balance Designated for Health Endowment Fund

The County elected to create the Brazos County Community HealtBodowment Fund with the
funds received from the statewide “Tobacco Settlement.” Conones’ Court designated the
corpus of the funds received ($2,000,000) to be invested and the interest eabsedsed to
provide funding for various County health programs. Commissioners’ Courag@spriated
$120,000 for anticipated program needs during the 2004-2005 fiscal year and igastees
$225,512 available for future programs.

N. Reclassifications

As part of the adoption of GASB Statement 34, the District Atto@rayie Fund was previously
reported as special revenue to include litigation of seizures @tcunrlaw enforcement activities.
A separate special revenue fund (District Attorney Hot Checke@alh Fund) was established
during the current year to account for fees collected by theidiéttorney for the administration,
processing and prosecution of returned checks. The revenue and expenddurdsaas well as
any fund balances have been categorized as agency funds within tifet Bttorney Hot Check
Collection Fund.

NOTE 2 — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Policy and Procedures

Annual budgets are legally adopted for general, special revenue,etieloesand capital project
funds. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP (modified accrual basiShuiitye
employs an encumbrance accounting system as a method of accomiisihgegary control. At
year-end, open encumbrances are closed. The department is requeeppoopriate the funds
within the following year’s budget.

The County Judge is recognized by State statutes as the budget &bfi the County and

responsible for the preparation of the proposed budget. The proposed expendijuned exceed
the revenue estimates prepared by the County Auditor. The County in the preparation
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NOTE 2 — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

A. Budgetary Policy and ProceduregContinued)

of the budget adheres to the following procedures:

- Departmental annual budget requests are submitted by the depdraad to the budget officer
during the third quarter of the current fiscal year, for the fiscal year beginciopé 1.

- The County Auditor prepares an estimate of available resofocéise coming fiscal year and
presents the estimates to the budget officer by July 15 each year.

- Informal departmental hearings are held with the budget officer.

- The budget officer prepares the proposed annual operating budget t@seatqd to the
Commissioners’ Court for consideration. The budget represents timeiihplan for the new
fiscal year.

- Formal public hearings are held on the proposed budget.

- The adopted budget must be balanced; i.e., available resources naudfidient to support
annual appropriations. The adopted budget must be approved by a majority of the
Commissioners’ Court on or before November 1 each year.

- The budget is adopted using classifications within each departmkatoperating department is
the legal level of budgetary control.

- The budget may not be increased through the use of supplemental apiorepreach year,
unless the County Auditor certifies to the Commissioners’ Courtstiygtlemental receipts have
been realized, and are available to support disbursements, which wereluaéd in the budget
for the fiscal year.

- Transfer of appropriations between departments requires the sssgrepermission of
Commissioners’ Court, and all appropriations lapse at year-end.

Appropriations for total budget cannot exceed total resources thdieaavailable for the year as
forecast by the County Auditor. This is the legal level of contool the County budget.
Expenditures may not exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund legpt éotcGeneral Fund,
which is appropriated at the classification level. Administratimetrol is maintained through the
establishment of more detailed line-item budgets. Amendmentagmtgebudget appropriations
are restricted to those for “emergency expenditures, in cageaeé public necessity, to meet
unusual and unforeseen conditions that could not, by reasonably diligent thougittesuidn,
have been included in the original budget.” The Commissioners’ Courtappsive the original
budget appropriations and subsequent amendments and adjustments. The Countyigiudit
required to monitor the expenditures of all the funds in comparison towthiah has been
appropriated. The following schedule of
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NOTE 2 — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILIT Y (Continued)

A. Budgetary Policy and ProceduregContinued)

changes in the original budget appropriations includes those funds for tvhi€@ommissioners’
Court has legally adopted a budget, as well as funds with managerial budgets.

Original Budgeted

Expenditures and Other Supplemental Original As

Financing Uses Appropriations Amended
General Fund $ 43,067,55 $ 970,67 $ 44,038,22
Special Revenue 2,936,85 652,86 3,589,71
Debt Service 19,438,64 (9,982,000) 9,456,64
Capital Projects 29,370,35 65,05 29,435,40
Totals $94,813,39 $ (8,293,413) $ 86,519,98

B. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

During the year ended September 30, 2004, the County had no excess of exgsemdieur
appropriations.

NOTE 3- CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

A. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Deposits with financial institutions are classified into theategories of credit risk based upon the
following:

Category Description

1 Deposits insured by the FDIC or collateralized with secutitetg by the County or
the County’s agent in the County’s name.

2 Deposits collateralized by securities held by the pledging fialantstitution’s
agent in the County’s name.
3 Deposits uncollateralized which include deposits collateralizesdyrities held by

the pledging financial institution or by its trust department omag®t in the
County’s name.
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NOTE 3- CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

A. Cash and Cash Equivalent$Continued)

The County’'s depository agreement with First American Bank and the agreerntbntanous
other banks regarding funds under custody of the District Clerk require collattoalitor all

funds on deposit. The value of collateral must be equal to or greater than the aveyage dalil
balance of funds on deposit or 105% of the prior month’s average deposit. State statutes require
that the collateral be government securities that are acceptable to thesSmmers’ Court. At
September 30, 2004, the carrying amounts for the County’s cash and cash equivalents was
$51,721,075. Included in this amount is $10,006,975 invested in Texpool and as a pooled
investment is not identifiable and therefore not classified, in accordance witB G@agment 3.
The remaining $41,714,100 is classified as a Category 1 credit risk. All deposits addpwsés
(less than 90 days) are stated at cost and reflected on the balance sheet asd*Cash a
Equivalents”. Certificates of Deposit and Money Market accounts held by the Agemty &re
reflected on the balance sheet as “Investments” but are classified asrZatdgposits for risk
assessment purposes. The deposits include the cash and cash equivalents of all funds.

B. Investments

The County’s investment policy is based on Section 116.112 of the Localn@GwrdrCode and
Government Code Chapter 2256, Subchapters A and B. This document sets forth

(1) investment authority, scope of policy and investment objectives;

(2) investment types and investment strategies;

(3) investment responsibility, control, collateral, and investment safekeepithg; a

(4) investment reporting and performance evaluation.

Investments authorized by the investment policy are set forth in the Local Goverroderdr

are as follows:

- direct debt securities of the United States, its agencies and instrlitiesnta

- fully collateralized security repurchase agreements thghCounty depository or with state or
national banks domiciled in Texas.

- certificates of deposit if issued by a state or a natioaak domiciled in this state, or a savings
and loan association domiciled in this state, if the certificate is 102% calizeel

- a bankers’ acceptance if it has a stated maturity of 270addgsver from the date of issuance
and is eligible for collateral for borrowing from a Federal Reserve Bank.

- commercial paper is an authorized investment if the commeager has a stated maturity of
90 days or fewer from the date of issuance and is rated not less than A-1 and P-1.

- money market funds if the Commissioners’ Court by resolution amésmvestment in the
fund with limitations.

- eligible investment pools if the Commissioners’ Court by resmiusiuthorizes investment in
the particular pool.

To protect against fraud and embezzlement, the County’s investmiytnegjuires that the assets
of the County be secured through third party custody and safekeeping procedures.
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NOTE 3- CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
B. Investments(Continued)

Bearer instruments shall be held only through third party institutiomgestment officials shall be
bonded to protect the public against possible embezzlement and malfeasance.

In a manner similar to cash deposits, investments are cldssifeethree categories of credit risk
based upon the following:

Category Description
1 Investments that are insured or registered, or for which theitees are held by
the County or its agent in the County's name.

2 Investments that are uninsured and unregistered for which the securitids éne he
the counter party’s trust department or agent in the County's name.

3 Investments that are uninsured and unregistered for which the securitids éne he
the counter party or by its trust department or agent but not in the County's name.

The County is authorized (by the Texas Public Funds Investment é&csTCivil Statutes, Article
842a-2, as amended) to purchase, sell and invest its funds and funds utalgrots During the
year ended September 30, 2004, County investments included funds deposited! igoadonment
investment pool, and direct debt securities of the United States.strims in direct debt
securities of the United States mature within one year of atgnjsand therefore are reported at
amortized cost. Pooled investments are reported at fair value.e Sabgct to classification are
Category 1 investments. The pooled investments are not identifi@ielstments and therefore not
classified, in accordance with GASB Statement 3. The pooled ineettrare reflected as Cash
and Cash Equivalents on the balance sheet. The Money Market ancc&lestibf Deposit are
classified as Category 1 deposits.

Investments at September 30, 2004 are as follows:

Pooled Investments $ 10,006,975
Money Market and Certificates of Deposit 779,309
Property 595,300
Total Investments $ 11,381,584

The Money Market and Certificate of Deposit investments are recorded in theyAgermds and
are those funds held in a custodial relationship by the District Clerk as requireddgttict
Courts and are categorized as Category 1 deposits. The listed property is thiy propeted in
the Bail Bond Board Agency Fund. The property is held by the County as security for the bail
bondsman operating in the County and is not classified in accordance with GASB St&tement
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NOTE 4-TAXESAND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The following is a summary of the gross delinquent taxes receivadhalties and interest on taxes
receivable, and other receivables at year-end for the County's indivithjar funds and non-

major, internal service and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, imgutie applicable allowances for
uncollectible accounts:

Major
Debt Capital Internal
General Service  Projects Nonmajor Service Fiduciary Total
Taxes $ 1,201,211 $ 188,02( $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,389,236
Penalty & Interest - Taxes 740,27 87,85¢ - - - - 828,129
Court Fines & Fees 6,428,93. - - - - - 6,428,934
Interest 38,30 1,81€ 28,257 4,61C - - 72,986
Accounts 1,584,28! 7,401 - 428,09 20,66 1,18( 2,041,619
Gross Receivables 9,993,01 285,09! 28,257  432,70C 20,66 1,18( 10,760,904
Less: -
Allowance (3,328,320) (19,877) - - - - (3,348,197)
Net Receivable $ 6,664,69 $ 26521 $28,257 $432,70C $ 20,667 $ 1,18( $ 7,412,707

In addition to the above, included in the statemanhet assets of the governmental activities, ieaeivable of
$80,435 that is due from fiduciary funds.

Theremainder of this page intentionally left blank.
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NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital Asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2004 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress
Infrastructure

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings
Improvements other than Buildings
Machinery and Equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings

Improvements other than Buildings
Machinery and Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-type activities:

Capital assets, being depreciated
Machinery and Equipment
Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Machinery and Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Balance at Balance at
October 1, September 30,
2003 Additions Deletions 2004
$ 6,854,820 $ 18999 §$ - 3 6,873,819
2,715,788 1,076,203 (122,224) 3,669,767
34,544,705 754,412 - 35,299,117
44,115,313 1,849,614 (122,224) 45,842,703
26,396,161 331,432 - 26,727,593
4,879,845 - - 4,879,845
12,631,915 2,272,766 (606,249) 14,298,432
43,907,921 2,604,198 (606,249) 45,905,870
(12,842,655) (668,754) - (13,511,409)
(1,339,643) (222,932) - (1,562,575)
(4,708,464) (1,260,128) 360,601 (5,607,991)
(18,890,762) (2,151,814) 360,601 (20,681,975)
25,017,159 452,384 (245,648) 25,223,895
$ 69,132,472 $ 2,301,998 § (367,872) § 71,066,598
$ 70,923 § - 8 - 3 70,923
70,923 - - 70,923
(69,311) (1,612) - (70,923)
(69,311) (1,612) - (70,923)
1,612 (1,612) : )
$ 1,612 § (1,612) § - 3 -
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NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
Depreciation expense for FY 2004 was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 510,006
Justice System 136,912
Law Enforcement 685,796
Juvenile Services 180,659
Public Transportation 430,247
Public Health 25,581
Human Services 182,613
Total depreciation expense - governmental activitie 2,151,814

Business-type activities:
County Attorney 1,612

Total depreciation expense - business-type a@tsviti $ 1,612

NOTE 6 — RESTRICTED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The government-wide and business-type activities fund financiahstate utilize a net assets
presentation. Net assets are categorized as invested al agpéts (net of related debt), restricted
and unrestricted.

In the fund financial statements, reserves and designations segoeg#ons of fund balance that
are either not available or have been earmarked for specific purpbsegarious designations are
established by actions of the Commissioners’ Court and management andreaedsed, reduced
or eliminated by similar actions.

NOTE 7 — LEASES

A. Operating L eases

The County has entered into operating leases bddssiee and lessor. The County currently hagyaci
leases in force that provide for cancellation aheennual anniversary date. These leases aréfitar o
space and ground storage having minimum annua feasnents of $55,000. At September 30, 2004,
the County had entered into three lease arrangemsiht outside non-profit entities to provide space
within the Brazos Center, a public facility owngdtbe County. The County’s lease arrangement with
the Brazos Valley Museum, provides the Museum sjitiice at the annual cost of $1,248ie lease is

a 50-year lease expiring in 2040. The County mdedred a year-to-year lease with the Junior Service
League of Bryan/College Station for $7,800 per .ye@he lease was renewed in June 2003 for two
years. The Brazos Valley Art League maintainedaanual lease with the County, expiring each
September in the amount of $5,760. The Leaguéelgciot to renew the lease and moved to a different
facility after two months.
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NOTE 7 — LEASES (Continued)

A. Operating L eases (Continued)

The County has entered into eleven non-cancelable operating leasies @se of photocopying
equipment. Rent expense for operating leases was $64,596 in 2004. Téaledse a 48 to 60
month period at an annual cost of $64,596. The future minimum lease pajonghtse leases
are as follows:

Year Ended September 30, Amount
2005 $ 62,852
2006 54,072
2007 22,894
2008 21,814
2009 696
Total $ 162,328

B. Capital Leases

The County had no capital leases at September 30, 2004.
NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT

The following are debt issues with activity or outstanding balances at September 30, 2004.

Original Interest Date of Date of Outstanding
Description Amount Rates (%) Issue Maturity at 9/30/04

Certificates of Obligation

Series 1996 - Various $ 8,500,00 6.3-6.7 1987 2002 % 6,605,00
Series 1998 - Various 10,000,00 4.63 1998 2013 8,420,00
Series 2001 - Judicial Software 1,000,00 3.4-55 2001 2009 625,00
Series 2002 - Various 2,99500 2.8-3.85 2002 2013 2,275,00
Series 2003 - Various 10,000,00 2.6-4.55 2004 2023 9,725,00
Series 2004 - Various 5,000,00 2.6-4.55 2004 2024 5,000,00
General Obligation Bonds

Exposition Center 8,000,00 4.3-6.5 2001 2021 8,000,00
Total General Obligation Debt 40,650,00
Premium 11,97
Total $ 40,661,97
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NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Activity for long-term debt of the County for the year ended September 30, 2004 was as. follows

Balance Balance Amount
Outstanding Issued Retired Outstanding Due Within

Description 10/1/2003 During Year During Year 9/30/2004 One Year
Certificates of Obligation
Series 1996 - Various $ 6,970,0C $ -$ 365,00 $ 6,605,000 $ 385,000
Series 1998 - Various 9,155,0C - 735,00 8,420,000 795,000
Series 2001 - Judicial Software 750,0C - 125,00 625,000 125,000
Series 2002 - Various 2,635,0C - 360,00 2,275,000 360,000
Series 2003 - Various - 10,000,000 275,001 9,725,000 395,000
Series 2004 - Various - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 -
General Obligation Bonds
Exposition Center 8,000,0C - - 8,000,000 330,000

Total General Obligation Debt $ 27,510,0C $ 15,000,000 $ 1,860,00 $ 40,650,000 $ 2,390,000

Theremainder of this page intentionally left blank.
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NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Annual debt service requirements as of September 30, 2004 are as follows:

Fiscal

Year Principal Interest Total

2005 2,390,000 $ 1,786,102 4,176,102

2006 2,420,000 1,666,724 4,086,724

2007 2,725,000 1,556,553 4,281,553

2008 2,800,000 1,439,196 4,239,196

2009 2,885,000 1,317,851 4,202,851
2010-2013 11,400,000 3,979,062 15,379,062
2014-2016 5,930,000 1,829,776 7,759,776
2017-2021 10,100,000 1,755,656 11,855,656

During the year, the County issued $15,000,000 of Certificates of Obligaitbnthe payment of
the related principal and interest to be made from an annual admataxelevied against all
taxable property within the County. The Certificate was issueth®acquisition of major capital
facilities and/or improvements of the County.

The Tax Recovery Act of 1986 established regulations for the reb#te federal government of
arbitrage earnings on certain local governmental bonds issuedDaftember 31, 1985, and all
local governmental bonds issued after August 31, 1986. Issuing governmehtsalouiate any
rebate due on an annual basis and remit the amount due at leagivevgears. The County has
not incurred any liability during the 2004 fiscal year.

In the government-wide governmental activities bond premiums, asawaisuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payableartedenet of the applicable

bond premium. Issuance costs are reported as prepaid expenses. Inrahe faoal year the
County issued $15,000,000 in Certificates of Obligation, which generated num®mn debt
issuance and $104,467 in issuance costs. For the year ended September 30, 2004,a$1,318 w
expensed on the 2002 Certificate of Obligation bond premium. The rem&iir@75 premium is
reported as part of long- term debt payable in the government-vatEem&nt of net activities.
$6,370 of issuance costs were expensed during the fiscal year and the $i80&hg issuance

costs are reported as prepaid expenses on the government-wide statement dénet asse
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NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Compensated Absences

Changes in compensated absences in the governmental activities yaat ended September 30,
2004, were as follows:

Balance at October 1, 2003 $ 466,811
Accrued Compensated Leave & Vacation 772,149
Compensated Leave & Vacation Expenditure (73,1
Balance at September 30, 2004 $ 506,834

NOTE 9—-INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

The General Fund has a due from the Narcotics Task Force Grant dfu$iti8,521 for
unreimbursed expenditures, $18,511 is due from the Brazos Center fort fgem &nd. The
General Fund has $38,667 due from the Bail Bond Agency Fund for feesr-&nged he Tax
Assessor Collector Agency Fund has $15,865 that is un-claimed funds doe tndlaimed
Property Fund. The remaining interfund balances are due to normal operational tragsacti

In the fund financial statements, interfund balances are the oésutrmal transactions between
funds and will be liquidated in the subsequent fiscal year. Balant@sdregovernmental funds
and between governmental funds and internal service funds are elorim#éte government-wide

financial statements.

The following is a summary of amounts due from and due to other funds:

Due From Due To
General Fund $ 82883% 1,713
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 15,882 19,165
Agency Funds and Other 8,118 86,005
Total $ 106,883 $ 106,883
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NOTE 9 — INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS (Continued)

The following is a summary of the County’s transfers for the year ended September 30, 2004:

Transfer In:
Debt Capital Internal
General Service Project Nonmajor Service Total
Transfer Out:
General Fund $ -$ 200,00 $ (44,652) $ 233,314 $ 200,000 $ 588,662
Capital Project Funds 44,652 - - - 44,652

$ 44652 $ 200,00 $ (44,652) $ 233,314 $ 200,000 $ 633,314

General Fund transferred $200,000 to Debt Service Fund to cover anticiphtadsdance. It also
transferred another $200,000 to cover higher than anticipated increaselhrcaee costs. Another
$233,314 was transferred from the General Fund to Non-major Funds to cotaringa
requirements for grants. The remaining transfers are due to completion of magpéets.

NOTE 10 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The County participates in a worker's compensation pool administerde Byexas Association of
Counties. The Texas Association of Counties handles claims adjasthcelated administrative
services for the program. Premiums are evaluated annually byopodéss code at actuarially
determined rates. The County worker's compensation program providesamaad indemnity

payments as required by law for on-the-job related injuries andcsuated for by the use of
departmental expenditures, based on a percentage of payroll. The poloétBaunty participates
in has provided for reinsurance coverage for excess worker’s comparea employer’s liability.

The County does not recognize any liability for outstanding lossemdarred but not reported
claims. The Texas Association of Counties assumes this resfipnsibhe County is self-insured
for medical claims only. The County has established a Health igmdhkurance Internal Service
Fund to account for the costs associated with various health-refesechnce programs. The
County currently provides medical and dental programs for its emglayile basic prescription

and life benefits attached. The County pays the full cost fogualifying employees. The
individual pays for dependent and retiree premium expenses (Note 12).

The Internal Service Fund acts as a clearing attowollect the premium payments from the Couthig,
employee, and the retiree. The fund pays all slaamd administrative fees. The County has purdhase
reinsurance that provides a $75,000 stop loss andandual claim, and an aggregate at $60,000 it

initial individual claim has reached the $75,000. féMids are available to pay claims and have been reserved
for such purpose. The County experienced premasinand claims of $5,039,073, and $5,313,494 fof 200
and 2003 respectively. At September 30, 2004,Gbenty had accrued approximately $633,600 for
anticipated claims that had not been filed at gedr- This estimate is based on the number of <ifieal
subsequent to year-end that were for servicesreghgeor to year-end. The three months subsetmdne

end of the fiscal year were used in this revienvaddition, the County has accumulated $312,68dtamed
earnings to be used to offset unanticipated aofiture periods.
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NOTE 10 — RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Changes in the balances of unpaid liability during fiscal years 2003 and 2004 were as follows

Current Year

Beginning of Claims and Balance at
Fiscal Year Changes in Claims Fiscal
Liability Estimates Paid Year End
2003 $409,015 $ 5,313,494 $4,899,373 $ 823,136
2004 823,136 5,039,073 5,228,611 633,598

The Commissioners’ Court of Brazos County is aware that the Cbhastyisk of loss exposure to
liability and accidental loss of real and personal property akasehuman resources. County
operations involve a variety of high-risk activities including, butImoited to, cash collections,
road and bridge maintenance, law enforcement, and construction. The Gmmners Court has
created the office of Risk Management, whose responsibilitytat identify, evaluate, and manage
risk in an effort to reduce the liability and accidental loss operty and human services. In the
management process, the Risk Manager is assigned the respgnsilelitsuring that all County
employees are properly trained in safety. Brazos County empkRsinancing activities to
include the purchase of insurance for general liability, vehidiitig and liability from property
damage claims. In addition, the County purchases property insuranoes and omission
coverage, professional liability insurance, as well as crimdidelity coverage. Any liability that
arises from the operation of motorized equipment will be consideriadl twithin the confines of
the Texas Tort Claims Act, arttlereby limit the County’s exposure. At September 30, 2004, all
claims against the County had been paid or accrued for payment, @ouhg/’s underwriter had
accepted responsibility for the claim.

The County has not made any significant reductions in insurance co¥eyageoverage in the
previous fiscal year. No settlements exceeded insurance coverage for thespasidal years.

NOTE 11- RETIREMENT PLAN

A. Plan Description

The County provides retirement, disability, and death benefits faf als full-time employees
through a nontraditional defined benefit pension plan in the Texas Countyistnidt[Retirement
System (“TCDRS” or “System”). The Board of Trustees of 8ystem is responsible for the
administration of the statewide agent multiple-employer systamsisting of over 500
nontraditional defined benefit pension plans. TCDRS in the aggreggtesi a comprehensive
annual financial report (CAFR) on a calendar year basis. Tpastrimcludes the required six-year
trend information. To obtain a copy send a written request for thd&R@é&khe TCDRS Board of
Trustees at P. O. Box 2034, Austin, Texas 78768-2034.

The Commissioners’ Court of Brazos County adopts the plan provisionsn vifthi options

available in the Texas State statutes governing TCDRS (TCAIRS Members can retire at ages
60 and above with 8 or more years of service or with 30 years of service regardless of
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NOTE 11 - RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

A. Plan Description (Continued)

age or when the sum of their age and years of service equalsnitseor Members are vested after
eight years of service but accumulated contributions must benldfiel plan. Members who

withdraw their personal contributions in a lump sum are not entitladyt@mounts contributed by

the County.

Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee’sbetinns to the plan, with
interest, and County-financed monetary credits. The governing bodyzBCounty, within the
actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act, adopts the leviiesE monetary credits.
Therefore, the resulting benefits can be expected to be adequateiged by the County’s
commitment to contribute. At retirement, death, or disability the benefilesilated by converting
the sum of the employee’s accumulated contributions and the County-finaacestary credits to
a monthly annuity using annuity purchase rates prescribed by the TCDRS.

B. Funding Policy

Brazos County has elected the annually determined contributionARR@R) plan provisions of

the TCDRS Act. The plan is funded by monthly contributions from both eeplmembers and
the employer based on the covered payroll of employee members. UadBEDRS Act, the

contribution rate of the employer is actuarially determined annud@iazos County contributed
using the actuarially determined rate of 11.37% for fiscal year 26642005, the County’s rate is
anticipated to decrease to 11.04%. The employee’s member contribtéicemained at 7.00%
for 2004.

C. Annual Pension Cost

For the County’s fiscal year ending September 30, 2004, the County’'s aems&dn cost for the
TCDRS plan for its employees was $2,224,886. The County's annual requiredutamts were
$2,224,886, and the County’s actual contributions were $2,224,886. The County’s annual pension
cost for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003, was $2,040,628. The annueal requi
contribution for 2004 was actuarially determined as a percent of dhered payroll of the
participating employees, and was in compliance with the GASB.

Statement No. 27 parameters based on the actuarial valuationDecehber 31, 2001, and

December 31, 2002, which is the basis for determining the contributioforai@endar year 2003
and 2004 respectively. The December 31, 2003 actuarial valuation is the most recent valuation.
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NOTE 11 - RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

C. Annual Pension Cost (Continued)

Actuarial valuation date 12/31/01 12/31/02 12/31/03
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age
Amortization method Level percentage Level percentage Level pereentag

of payroll, open of payroll, open of payroll, open

Remaining amortization period 20 years 20 years 20 years
Asset valuation method Long-term Long-term Long-term
appreciation with appreciation with appreciation with
adjustment adjustment adjustment
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment return 8.0% 8.0% 8.0%
Projected salary increases 5.5% 5.5% 5.5%
Includes inflation at 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%
Cost-of-living adjustments 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Trend Information for the Retirement Plan for the Employees of Brazos Conty
Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Y ear Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
09/30/98 $ 1,249,221 100% None
09/30/99 $ 1,505,335 100% None
09/30/00 $ 1,669,144 100% None
09/30/01 $ 1,741,765 100% None
09/30/02 $ 1,910,033 100% None
09/30/03 $ 2,040,628 100% None
09/30/04 $ 2,224,886 100% None

NOTE 12- OTHER EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

A. Post Employment Benefits

The County provides health care benefits as required by the Fedmeingnent under the
Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (“COBRA”"). C@BfRquires
employers that sponsor group health plans to provide continuation of group eotetagminated
employees and their dependents in circumstances where coverage woukllynend. The
election to be covered is at the request of the employee. The emptoyhen required to pay the
premium costs for themselves and their dependents. Expendituresca@gaized as claims are
submitted. COBRA participants are reimbursed at the sames|lagehctive employees. At
September 30, 2004, the County had been fully reimbursed for costs redat€@BRA

participants.
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NOTE 12 - OTHER EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

B. Post Retirement Benefits

Brazos County has elected to offer post-retirement health caeditseo certain retirees. County
policy allows employees to become eligible for post retiremeaittheare benefits after meeting
the service and retirement age requirements of the TCDRS retirement plan.

County policy restricts post retirement health care benefitadse employees that qualified for
health coverage during employment. Health care benefits araldeaid employees that normally
work 1,664 or more hours annually. The County opted to extend health caresbEnedtirees
that maintained coverage through the County’s health care planasuairy 1, 2000. The County
provides funding for the post retirement health care benefits. TheyO®aognizes expenditures
for post retirement health care benefits as paid, which durirg fisar 2004 totaled $160,543t
September 30, 2004, there were ré8rees receiving benefits and Binployees that qualify for
retirement and health related benefits.

C. Deferred Compensation

The County offers its employees a deferred compensation plandchneatecordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, as amended, is available to allesmspand permits them
to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The Riadg are not available to employees
until termination, retirement, death, or emergency. Brazos County ihe Plan administrator or
the trustee, therefore the assets of the Plan are not a repduadiwithin the County’s financial
statements.

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
A. Contracts
County Exposition Center

At the November 2000 general election, the voters of Brazos Countymapseposition to allow
the County to sell $18.5 million in General Revenue Bonds to be used foorteguction of a
County Exposition Center. The County has entered into a contractwatitlaitect for the design
and construction of the Exposition Center. At September 30, 2004 the Coungxpertied
$994,750 in architectural fees and $1,984,000 in legal fees and land acquisitsonlic@001, the
County sold $8,000,000 in General Obligation Bonds with a interest rate of 48d% 20 year
repayment schedule to be used for land acquisition and construction cérites. CAt September
30, 2004, the County had prepared site plans and was anticipating approvahédrcorp of
Engineers. It is anticipated that the County will begin constmgti 2006. The County plans to
issue an additional $6,000,000 in General Revenue Bonds in 2005, with the final $4,500,000 to be
issued in 2007.
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NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

B. Tax Increment Financing Zones

As of September 30, 2004, the County had entered into several interdoeamants with the
cities of Bryan and College Station for the creation of Taxelmemt Financing Zones as allowed
by Chapter 311 of the Texas Tax Code. Tax Increment Financing ZdR&3 are statutory tools
available to municipalities in Texas to promote development or regeweht in an area that
would not occur in the foreseeable future solely through private investnié-Z are also means
to allow a community, both city and county, to enhance their ability tii@ca economic
development or to allow businesses currently located within theirtarexpand. Once a city has
designated a TIFZ, the Commissioners’ Court must decide wheth@otlmrdty is to participate in
the TIFZ and to what extent.

After the County has elected to participate, a base value fpraperty located within the TIFZ is
established. At the date of creation the appraised value is npanedipted as the base value. As
the property within the TIFZ develops the County collects taxesllmaséhe appreciated appraised
values at the rate established annually by Commissioner’'s Coude e taxes have been paid
each year the County remits the amount of taxes attributalile indrease in the appraised values
(captured value) to the Tax Increment Financing Zone to be used tchiipdoject plan. Project
plans normally include the creation of infrastructure such as roadst smprovements, light
systems, sewer systems, landscaping, parks, etc. A TIFZ cternbi@ated either on the date
designated in the ordinance creating the zone, or the date on wipcbjedit costs, tax increment
bonds, and interest on the bonds have been paid.

Theremainder of this page intentionally left blank
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NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

B. TaxIncrement Financing Zones (Continued)

City of Bryan

Brazos County has entered into two inter-local agreements witlCitiyeof Bryan to create
Reinvestment Zone Number Eight -“Park Hudson” and Reinvestment Zone Numebe-—
“Traditions”. Park Hudson represents approximately 450 acres |looatéte east side of the City
of Bryan and is a 20-year contract. The Traditions zone is appr@tyn¥®0 acres on the west
side of the City of Bryan and is scheduled for 15 years of Countigipation. The following is a
schedule of relevant data with regards to these TIFZ's:

Base Captured Tax Captured

Zone Value Value Rate* Tax Revenue
Park Hudson

2004 $ 35,803 $ 50,717,536 0.3839 $ 198,180

2003 35,803 45,966,540 0.3723 172,732

2002 35,803 35,356,812 0.3857 137,567

2001 35,803 34,357,265 0.3857 132,516

2000 35,803 15,387,041 0.3736 57,486
Traditions

2004 598,490 - 0.3839

2003 598,490 - 0.3723

2002 598,490 - 0.3857

2001 598,490 - 0.3857

City of College Station

Brazos County has entered into two inter-local agreements witliCitiieof College Station to
create Reinvestment Zone Number One -“Wolf Pen Creek Corridoiriy&gment Zone Number
Seven “Wolf Pen Creek Office, Hotel, and Conference Center’. Remeas Zone Number
Fifteen “30/60 Corridor” was cancelled on June 29, 2004 due to a changeparters involved

in the original T.I.F. plan. The Wolf Pen Creek Office, Hotel and Genfie Center Reinvestment
Zone consists of approximately 15 acres bounded on the north by Hollemarabd bounded on
the east by Dartmouth Drive. The Hotel and Conference Certtebéslocated on the northeast
side of the city. TIFZ’'s number one and seven are scheduled forea@yration. The following
is a schedule of relevant data with regards to these TIFZthdoliscal year ended September 30,
2004:
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NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

B. Tax Increment Financing ZonegContinued)

City of College Station (continued)

Base Captured Tax Captured
Zone Value Value Rate* Tax Revenue
Wolf Pen Creek:
Corridor
2004 $ 18,502,607 $ 39,950,673 0.3839 $ 151,815
2003 18,502,607 30,533,129 0.3723 113,675
2002 18,502,607 25,325,687 0.4200 106,368
2001 18,502,607 25,325,687 0.4200 106,368
2000 18,502,607 23,743,340 0.4100 97,348
Wolf Pen Creek:
Hotel/Conference
2004 313,640 - 0.3839 -
2003 313,640 - 0.3839 -
2002 313,640 - 0.3723 -
2001 313,640 - 0.3857 -
2000 313,640 - 0.3736 -

* per $100 valuation

Theremainder of this page intentionally left blank
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NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

C. Tax Abatements

Chapter 312 of the Texas Tax Code authorizes the County to provide priapeatyatements for
limited time periods to encourage development or expansion of propetig. tefms of each
agreement are limited by the guidelines and criteria edtabliby Commissioners’ Court. At
September 30, 2004 the County had established abatement agreemertits feitowing property

owners.

2003
Date Of 2003 Appraised Taxable 2004 Taxes
Property Owner Abatement Value Value Levied

Conoco, Inc. 1995 $ 10,642,117 $ 3,672,82 $ 15,97
Sanderson Farms 1995 43,496,8¢ 6,855,18 29,82
Dealer Computer Services, Inc. 1997 754,4% 54,96 23
O | Corporation 1997 2,005,5¢ 1,409,14 6,13
Rental Systems, Inc. 1997 1,546,9¢ 389,91 1,69
Saint-Gobain Norporo 1997 14,736,4:2 8,940,26 38,89
Universal Computer 1997 32,200,7i 2,506,02 10,90
CS Development Group L.P. 1998 3,500,0(¢ 3,197,66 13,91
Hy-Line International 1998 4,34,95¢ 2,957,39 12,86
Prodigene, Inc. 1998 1,165,51 918,09 3,99
B-CS Economic Development Corp. 1999 4,530,71 3,530,96 15,36
Decision One 1999 1,000,8( 751,05 3,26
Stata Corporation 1999 2,326,8¢ 1,016,24 4,42
Betco 2000 4,607,64 3,811,45 16,58
Heat Transfer Research 2001 2,771,67 1,445,21 6,28
Hewlett Packard Company 2003 266,2: 79,86 34
Bryan Lumber Remanufacturing 2003 510,0¢ 302,30¢ 1,31
Coca-Cola Enterprises 2003 531,62 531,62 2,31
CwcCs1 2003 7,200,0C 2,412,47 10,49

D. Contingent Liabilities

The County is a defendant in various lawsuits. All are mattatsare pending and have arisen in
the normal course of the County's operations. Although the outcome of IHves@its is not
presently determinable, the County’s various legal counsels dre optnion that the settlement of
these claims and pending litigation will not have a materiacefobn the County’s financial
statements. Consequently, there has been no current provision to reserve funds for ssich claim

The County receives various grant monies that are subject to addadgustment by the grantor
agencies. Any disallowed expenditure will become a liabilitthefCounty. The amount cannot
be determined at this time, but the County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial



NOTE 14 — NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT

The Government Accounting Standards Board has issued Statement NOASB(48"), “Deposit
and Investment Risk Disclosures” which will be effective for @winty in the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2005. GASB 40 establishes and modifies disclosure reqtsramlated to
investment risks: credit risk (including custodial credit risk andcentrations of credit risk),
interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk. This Statenisotestablishes and modifies disclosure
requirements for deposit risks: custodial credit risk and foreigemey risk. The County does not
believe the implementation of this standard will have a material impact onatsial statements.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued Statement NGGAEB (42),
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assabhd for Insurance
Recoveries” which will be effective for the County in the fisgaar ending September 30, 2006.
GASB 42 establishes guidance for accounting and reporting for the impairnoapitaf assets and
for insurance recoveries. The County does not believe the implernantdtthis standard will
have a material impact on its financial statements.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued Statement NGGARB (44),
“Economic Condition Reporting: The Statistical Section” which tdleffective for the County in
the fiscal year ending September 30, 2006. GASB 44 establishes aneesaitiirements related
to the supplementary information presented in the statisticabsecthe County does not believe
the implementation of this standard will have a material impact on its finatataments.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued Statement NGGAEB (45),
“Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemploymenefide Other Than
Pensions” which will be effective for the County in the fiscakryending September 30, 2009.
GASB 45 establishes financial reporting standards for other postoymmght benefit plans.
Currently the County has established a post employment healthcardopléull time regular
employees that retire after January 1, 2000. This statemeneugilire the County to accumulate
assets for the payment of postemployment healthcare benefits.Cathey is currently in the
process of determining the financial impact of this requirement.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
For The Year Ended September 30, 20(

Budgeted Amount:

Original Final Actual
REVENUES
Taxes
Current Ad Valorem Taxi $ 21,796,700 $ 21,806,700 $ 23,082,47
Delinquent Ad Valorem Tax 419,00( 419,00( 388,30!
Penalties & Interest - Tax 260,00( 250,00( 248,38!
Mixed Drink Ta» 332,00( 332,00( 348,79(
County Sales Te 7,801,001 7,801,001 8,413,17
Total Taxes 30,608,70 30,608,70 32,481,13
Charges For Service
Contracted Detention Servic 50,00( 50,00( 2,90(
Contracted Jail Servic 85,00( 85,00( 109,70!
Arrest Fee 78,00( 78,00( 63,45¢
Brazos Centt 159,00( 159,00( 198,33
Bond Service/Forfeiturt 120,10( 120,10( 205,73
County Clerl 525,00( 525,00( 638,07
Vital Statistics Preservati 5,80( 5,80( 5,77¢
County Attorne' 65,00( 65,00( 52,62(
General Administration Fe 6,60( 6,60( 11,00:
Constable 95,00( 95,00( 121,05¢
Court Reporte 33,00( 33,00( 30,657
Magistratt 50,00( 50,00( 67,76(
District Clerk 336,00( 336,00( 332,07:
District Attorney 2,00( 2,00( 7,244
Motor Carrier Weigh 21,00( 21,00( -
Inmate Medical Fet 5,00( 5,00( 6,83¢
Justice of the Pea 1,010,001 1,010,001 1,236,90:
Juvenile Probation Fe 12,00( 12,00( 15,20:
License and Weigh 20,00( 20,00( 14,15(
Omnibus Crime Control Fe 77,20( 77,20( 68,54:
Optional License Fe 1,169,001 1,169,001 1,104,67.
Probate Fet 1,00 1,00 2,83:
School Crossing Fe 21,00( 21,00( 21,18:
Sheriff 74,10( 74,10( 91,94°
Landfill Fee: 25,00( 25,00( 31,20¢
Tax Assessor-Collect 493,00( 493,00( 554,49:
Vehicle Registration Fe 1,195,001 1,195,00I 1,136,74.
Licenses and Perm 25,00( 25,00( 21,55¢
Court Fine 1,140,001 1,140,001 1,022,66:
Total Charges For Service $ 6,898,800 $ 6,898,800 $ 7,175,34
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

GENERAL FUND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL

For The Year Ended September 30, 20(

REVENUES (continued
Intergovernmental - Federa
Department of Justi
Department of Health & Human Servi
Emergency Management Agel
Total Intergovernmental - Federal

Intergovernmental - State
Attorney Gener:
Department of Justii
D. A. Salary Suppleme
Indigent Defense - Office of Court Administrat
Texas Juvenile Probation Commiss
Texas Youth Commissit
Tobacco Settleme
Total Intergovernmental - State

Intergovernmental - Other
Crime Stoppe!
Total Intergovernmental - Other

Total Intergovernmental

Interest

Other Revenue
Donation:
Road Crossir
Reimbursemen
Leases and Rent:
Othel
Estray Animal Sale/F
Inmate Phone Syste
Oil and Gas Lea:
Informal Adjudication Probatic
Total Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

Budgeted Amount:

Page 2 of 1

Original Final Actual
$ 108,63( 119,34¢  $ 119,47
78,00( 78,00( 92,81¢
43,00( 43,00( 42,38t
229,63( 240,34¢ 254,68
90,10( 90,10( 135,67(
157,05( 157,05( 176,70
34,45( 34,45( 33,63(
40,00( 40,00( -
325,00( 419,30( 533,60!
50,00( 50,00( 60,59’
- - 59,52(
696,60( 790,90( 999,72
12,70( 12,70( 13,49¢
12,70( 12,70( 13,49¢
938,93( 1,043,94! 1,267,90!
481,00( 481,00( 381,65!
1,10¢( 1,10¢ -
50C 50C 1,00(
62,70( 62,70( 263,75:
15,00( 15,00( 10,00¢
11,70( 25,20( 29,56¢
10C 10C -
220,00( 220,00( 218,72t
3,00( 3,00( 6,11¢
6,00( 6,00( 7,417
320,10( 333,60( 536,59
$ 39,247,53 39,366,04 $ 41,842,63

78



Page 3 of 1
BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
For The Year Ended September 30, 20(

Budgeted Amount:

Original Final Actual
EXPENDITURES
General Governmen
County Judg
Personnel Servic $ 164,66( 164,66( 136,27¢
Supplies and Other Charg 6,18( 6,04( 4,89¢
Repairs and Maintenan 38C 38C 197
Minor Acquisitions - 14C 140
171,22( 171,22( 141,51:
Commissioners' CoL
Personnel Servic 591,29( 648,59° 646,23(
Discretionary Fundin 1,70C 1,70C -
Supplies and Other Charg 32,54( 32,54( 30,02¢
Repairs and Maintenan 1,66( 1,66( 1,357
Minor Acquisitions - - -
Contract Service - 237,40( 237,40(
627,19( 921,89° 915,01
Non-Department:
Supplies and Other Charg 965,00( 1,008,638 1,008,121
Repairs and Maintenan - 1,50C 986
Professional Servic 182,00( 174,22( 141,66:
1,147,00! 1,184,401 1,150,77-
Community Suppo
Contract Service 2,193,17( 2,194,17( 2,064,56:
2,193,17( 2,194,17( 2,064,56:
County Treasur¢
Personnel Servic 297,59« 298,96 298,96:
Discretionary Fundin 1,30C 1,30C -
Supplies and Other Charg 12,31( 12,01( 9,874
Repairs and Maintenan 80C 80C 441
Minor Acquisitions 1,85C 2,15C 2,02C
Contract Service 2,70C 2,70( 2,70C
316,55 317,92¢ 313,99¢
Risk Managemel
Personnel Servic 97,41( 97,41( 97,05¢
Discretionary Fundin 40C 40C -
Supplies and Other Charg 10,64t 9,89t 5,68¢
Repairs and Maintenan - 25C 194
Minor Acquisitions 45C 1,79¢ 899
Professional Servic 1,50(C 1,50( -
110,40: 111,25: 103,84(
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Page 4 of 1
BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
For The Year Ended September 30, 20(

Budgeted Amountt
General Government (continued Original Final Actual

Tax Assessor-Collect

Personnel Servic $ 1,292,351 $ 1,292,35¢  $ 1,158,633
Discretionary Fundin 7,10(C 4,60(C -
Supplies and Other Char 48,60( 48,60( 37,88t
Repairs and Maintenan 3,00( 3,00( 1,861
Minor Acquisitions 9,00( 11,50( 11,30¢
Contract Service 7,70( 7,70C 7,20(C
1,367,75! 1,367,75! 1,216,88!
Information Technolog
Personnel Servic 832,91( 832,91( 808,75:
Discretionary Fundin 2,60( 584 -
Supplies and Other Char 68,02( 62,88( 56,64
Repairs and Maintenan 49,02 53,65¢ 52,38¢
Minor Acquisitions 102,60( 116,84« 116,67(
Contract Service 462,65t 456,65¢ 447,70
Professional Servic 15,00( 11,80( 9,92¢
1,532,81 1,535,32i 1,492,08:
Personne
Personnel Servic 160,35( 160,35( 160,20¢
Discretionary Fundin 80C 30C -
Supplies and Other Char 14,55( 14,90( 14,38:
Repairs and Maintenan 10C 40C -
Minor Acquisitions 65C - -
Contract Service - 50C 50C
176,45( 176,45( 175,09(
County Audito
Personnel Servic 517,78( 517,78( 490,52¢
Supplies and Other Char 18,00¢( 18,00¢( 16,07¢
Repairs and Maintenan 20C 16E -
Minor Acquisitions 53C 56& 54¢
Contract Service 5,16( 5,16( 4,86(
541,67( 541,67( 512,01!
Purchasin
Personnel Servic 172,73( 172,73( 172,06¢
Discretionary Fundin 80C 25C -
Supplies and Other Char 10,98( 10,98( 10,58t
Repairs and Maintenan 2,10C 2,10C 1,812
Minor Acquisitions - 55C 504
186,61( 186,61( 184,96
Buildings and Grounc
Personnel Servic 841,81( 841,81( 820,97(
Discretionary Fundin 4,30(C 4,30(C -
Supplies and Other Char 40,73( 40,73( 30,39¢
Repairs and Maintenan 173,18( 173,18( 155,63°
Minor Acquisitions 2,02( 2,02C 1,87:
Contract Service 19,65( 20,81( 17,83¢
1,081,69! 1,082,85! 1,026,71
Total General Governmen $ 9,452,521 $ 9,791,52° $ 9,297,46:
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
For The Year Ended September 30, 20(

Budgeted Amount:

Original Final Actual
Justice Syster
County Attorne
Personnel Servic $ 157415 $ 1,574,145 $ 1,527,14
Discretionary Fundir 5,00( 3,81¢ -
Supplies and Other Char 59,52( 58,33¢ 54,97t
Repairs and Maintenar 4,60( 4,60( 3,401
Minor Acquisitions 2,21t 5,031 5,031
Contract Service 5,82( 5,82( 5,544
1,651,311 1,651,761 1,596,09:
District Attorne)
Personnel Servic 1,547,361 1,547,361 1,504,38!
Discretionary Fundir 4,90( 4,90( -
Supplies and Other Charg 88,92( 127,37( 96,74
Repairs and Maintenar 9,70( 8,80( 7,625
Minor Acquisitions 5,20( 3,65( 3,207
Contract Service 5,00( 5,00( -
1,661,08! 1,697,08 1,611,95
Child Protective Servict
Personnel Servic 61,44( 61,44( 56,59
Supplies and Other Charg 10,62( 10,62( 1,71¢
72,06( 72,06( 58,30¢
Gun Violence Prosectuti
Personnel Servic 66,79( 66,79( 65,21"
66,79( 66,79( 65,21°
District Clerk
Personnel Servic 686,35t 685,42¢ 631,58:
Discretionary Fundir 4,00( 4,00( -
Supplies and Other Charg 32,65( 32,58¢ 27,94t
Repairs and Maintenar 3,80( 3,80( 1,38¢
Minor Acquisition:s 2,02( 2,02( 1,79¢
Contract Service 7,00( 7,06¢ 6,60/
735,82t 734,89t 669,31
Court and Jury Servic
Personnel Servic 78,08( 79,01( 79,00¢
Discretionary Fundir 40C 40C -
Supplies and Other Charg 81,35( 81,35( 79,61¢
Repairs and Maintenar 10C 10C -
Minor Acquisition: - - -
159,93( 160,86( 158,62:
Collection:
Personnel Servic 114,60( 114,60( 108,29
Discretionary Fundir 60C 60C -
Supplies and Other Charg 3,85( 3,69¢ 3,171
Repairs and Maintenar 22( 22C -
Minor Acquisition: - 152 151
119,27( 119,27( 111,61¢
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
For The Year Ended September 30, 20C

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual
Justice System (continued
County Clerl
Personnel Service $ 365,21« % 365,21« $ 354,59(
Discretionary Fundin 2,10C 2,10C -
Supplies and Other Charg 199,11t 199,11t 151,14:
Repairs and Maintenan 1,85C 1,85C 1,43¢
Minor Acquisitions 1,40C 1,40C 497
Contract Service 4,62C 4,62C 4,284
574,29¢ 574,29¢ 511,94¢
Vital Statistics Preservatic
Contract Service 5,80C 5,80C -
5,80C 5,80C -
85th District Cour
Personnel Service 214,36( 214,36( 203,62«
Employment Service 2,00cC 4,50C 3,71¢
Discretionary Fundin 1,00C 1,00C -
Supplies and Other Charg 19,80( 21,00¢ 18,517
Repairs and Maintenan 1,10C 500 388
Minor Acquisitions 6,50C 5,90C 5,17C
244,76( 247,26( 231,417
272nd District Cout
Personnel Service 207,30¢ 208,621 208,62(
Employment Service 2,00cC 2,00cC 399
Discretionary Fundin 1,00C - -
Supplies and Other Charg 13,63¢ 14,20¢ 13,06(
Repairs and Maintenan 550 975 374
Minor Acquisitions 200 855 849
224,68¢ 226,65¢ 223,30:
361st District Cout
Personnel Service 212,90¢ 212,90¢ 208,57¢
Employment Service 2,00C 2,00C 411
Discretionary Fundin 1,00C 1,00C -
Supplies and Other Charg 22,16¢ 21,96¢ 16,88¢
Repairs and Maintenan 1,10C 1,10C 879
Minor Acquisitions - 200 169
239,16¢ 239,16¢ 226,92:
Juvenile Court Refere
Personnel Service 130,87( 130,87( 128,32¢
Discretionary Fundin 400 - -
Supplies and Other Charg 2,56C 2,62¢ 2,382
Repairs and Maintenan - 435 434
133,83( 133,83( 131,14¢
Magistrate
Personnel Service 56,23( 56,23( 50,29¢
Discretionary Fundin 100 100 -
Supplies and Other Charg 3,66C 3,66C 3,23C
Repairs and Maintenan 150 150 71
Minor Acquisitions 800 800 695
60,94( 60,94( 54,292
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
For The Year Ended September 30, 20(

Budgeted Amount:

Original Final Actual
Justice System (continuec
County Court At Law #
Personnel Servic $ 337,82t % 337,82t 3 328,48:
Employment Service 2,00( 90C 58¢
Discretionary Fundin 1,00(C - -
Supplies and Other Char 18,64¢ 19,05( 17,39«
Repairs and Maintenar 45C 45C 31C
Minor Acquisitior 3,50( 4,64( 4,61¢
363,42 362,86t 351,38t
County Court At Law #
Personnel Servic 335,66t 334,36 334,36(
Employment Service 2,00(¢ 2,00 30
Discretionary Fundin 1,10C 1,10C -
Supplies and Other Char 15,56( 15,37: 13,44¢
Repairs and Maintenar 30C 48¢ 48¢
Minor Acquisition: 5,40( 8,50( 3,10(
360,02¢ 361,82: 351,42
Justice of the Peace Precin
Personnel Servic 158,97( 158,97( 148,54
Discretionary Fundin 80C 80C -
Supplies and Other Char 19,32( 19,32( 18,24
Repairs and Maintenar 50C 50C 38¢
Minor Acquisition: 1,80( 1,80( 1,562
Contract Service 20,68( 20,68( 17,79¢
202,07( 202,07( 186,53¢
Justice of the Peace Precinct 2 Pl
Personnel Servic 150,72( 150,72( 147,59:
Discretionary Fundin 70C 70C -
Supplies and Other Char 6,21( 6,21( 5,89t
Repairs and Maintenar 77C 77C 582
Minor Acquisition: - - -
158,40( 158,40( 154,06¢
Justice of the Peace Precinct 2 Pls
Personnel Servic 158,69( 158,69( 145,12
Discretionary Fundin 60C 60C -
Supplies and Other Char 14,96( 18,16( 16,56¢
Repairs and Maintenar 1,00 1,00 90C
Minor Acquisition: 5,20( 5,20( 4,362
Contract Service 16,32( 19,77( 19,42¢
196,77( 203,42( 186,38t
Justice of the Peace Precin
Personnel Servic 203,70( 204,94( 204,93t
Discretionary Fundin 1,00 1,00 -
Supplies and Other Char 15,29( 17,86: 12,76¢
Repairs and Maintenar 25C 25C 19C
Contract Service 14,40( 14,78¢ 14,78¢
234,64 238,84: 232,68«
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Budgeted Amount:

Original Final Actual
Justice System (continuec
Justice of the Peace Precin
Personnel Servic $ 128,76( $ 128,76( $ 127,61¢
Discretionary Fundin 60C 60C -
Supplies and Other Char¢ 3,61( 3,61( 3,46¢
Repairs and Maintenar 30C 30C -
Minor Acquisitions 50C 50C -
Contract Service - 1,16( 1,16(
133,77( 134,93( 132,24¢
Community Supervision Supp
Supplies and Other Char 31,62( 43,09t 39,86
Repairs and Maintenar 1,95( 1,95( 15¢
Minor Acquisitions 50C 50C 474
Contract Service 5,82( 5,82( 5,541
39,89( 51,36¢ 46,04(
Judicial Court Suppor
Supplies and Other Char 227,50( 227,50( 196,50¢
Contract Service 600,00( 750,00( 742,83
Professional Servic 1,079,501 1,084,501 1,016,98:
1,907,001 2,062,00 1,956,32
Total Justice Systen $ 954573 $ 9,766,381 $  9,247,25
Law Enforcement
Sheriff Administratiol
Personnel Servic $ 256441 % 2,565,49. $ 2,457,55
Discretionary Fundin 9,60( 9,60( -
Supplies and Other Char 90,96( 85,06¢ 82,12:
Repairs and Maintenar 114,45( 138,22¢ 134,11°
Minor Acquisitions 8,02( 4,01( 3,93¢
Contract Service 13,82( 14,07t 13,79¢
Professional Servic 2,75( 2,61¢ 2,617
2,804,01 2,819,09 2,694,14
Joint Terrorism Task For
Personnel Servic - 10,71¢ 4,05¢
- 10,71¢ 4,05¢
Sheriff Jail Administratio
Personnel Servic 5,922,901 5,921,81 5,751,69.
Discretionary Fundin 28,65( 7,65( -
Supplies and Other Char¢ 786,10( 808,90( 805,21:
Repairs and Maintenar 12,30( 28,92( 25,37:
Minor Acquisitions 16,19( 16,19( 11,78¢
Contract Service 4,68( 6,06( 5,21¢
Professional Servic 45,55( 47,75( 47,56¢
6,816,37! 6,837,28! 6,646,84.

84



Page 9 of 1
BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
For The Year Ended September 30, 20(

Budgeted Amount:

Original Final Actual
Law Enforcement (continued’

Constable Precinct
Personnel Servic $ 177,84 $ 177,84 $ 181,05:
Discretionary Fundin 80C 10C 82
Supplies and Other Char 11,38( 11,20: 10,44¢
Repairs and Maintenan 6,10(C 7,85¢ 7,85¢
Minor Acquisitions 1,60( 3,58¢ 3,582
Contract Service 8,96( 6,98¢ 5,66€
206,68( 207,57 208,68:

Constable Precinct
Personnel Servic 262,68( 263,25’ 263,25¢
Discretionary Fundin 1,20( 31C -
Supplies and Other Char 11,55( 10,04( 9,394
Repairs and Maintenar 11,54 14,987 14,62:
Minor Acquisitions 1,92t 2,17C 1,621
288,90( 290,76¢ 288,89:

Constable Precinct
Personnel Servic 138,41( 138,41( 135,93:
Discretionary Fundin 60C 60C -
Supplies and Other Char¢ 13,44( 14,713 14,39¢
Repairs and Maintenar 5,05( 5,014 4,342
Minor Acquisitions 1,62t 1,62t 974
Contract Service 7,95( 8,53¢ 8,537
167,07! 168,90( 164,18(

Constable Precinct
Personnel Servic 176,69( 176,69( 175,77(
Discretionary Fundin 80C 30C -
Supplies and Other Char 7,97 7,97 7,48¢
Repairs and Maintenan 6,95( 8,201 8,08(
Minor Acquisitions 1,00C 1,00C -
Contract Service - 1,16( 1,16(
193,41! 195,32¢ 192,49¢

Constable Precinct
Personnel Servic 52,64( 52,72( 52,71¢
52,64( 52,72( 52,71¢

Total Law Enforcement $ 10,529,09 $ 10,582,38 $ 10,252,01

Juvenile Service
Juvenile Service

Personnel Servic $ 246795 $ 2,465,791 $ 2,149,65
Discretionary Fundin 12,20( 3,87( -
Supplies and Other Char 229,21( 229,21( 221,66:
Repairs and Maintenan 8,75( 8,75( 7,862
Minor Acquisitions 1,65(C 4,18( 4,127
Contract Service 34,70( 34,48( 31,65:
Professional Servic 45,22( 47,74( 43,18(

2,799,68! 2,794,022 2,458,13:
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Budgeted Amount:
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Juvenile Services (continuec
TYC - Parol
Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisitions
Contract Service

Juvenile Justice Alternative Educat

Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char

Juvenile - Title IV |
Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisition:s
Contract Service
Professional Servic

TDHS - Commoditie
Supplies and Other Char

Total Juvenile Service

Public Transportation

Road and Bridge Administrati

Personnel Servic
Employment Servict
Discretionary Fundir
Supplies and Other Char
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisitions
Contract Service
Professional Servic

Total Public Transportation

Public Health
Environmental Protectic
Supplies and Other Char
Contract Service

Original Final Actual
$ 101,64 $ 99,43( $ 83,81
1,00( 5,88¢ 3,26:
50C 50C 28t
34,10( 29,21t 29,21
137,24( 135,03( 116,57:
76,41( 76,41( 67,27¢
1,00( 1,00( -
77,41( 77,41( 67,27¢
152,10( 149,25( 134,86:.
53,23( 50,49( 34,00:
5,25( 4,87( 3,99¢
14,44( 13,24( 13,21
9,40( 9,40( 6,90:
- 100,00( 96,98:
234,42( 327,25( 289,95!
3,00( 3,00( 2,14¢
3,00( 3,00( 2,14¢
$ 3,251,755 $ 3,336,71i  $  2,934,09
$ 257663 $ 2,576,631 $ 2,333,67
- 4,10 79z
92,87( 92,87( -
528,56( 541,01¢ 73,54¢
1,931,29 2,074,95 2,074,95!
10,93( 9,93( 9,05¢
61,40( 56,17 54,45¢
135,00( 75,00( 74,28
$ 5,336,68 $ 5,430,677 $ 4,620,76
$ 7,200 $ 7,200 $ 6,637
147,40( 147,40( 139,88t
154,60( 154,60( 146,52
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Budgeted Amount:

Original Final Actual
Public Health (continued
Indigent Health Cal
Supplies and Other Char $ 525,000 $ 525,000 $ 412,03:
Contract Service 92,70( 92,70( 92,69:
Professional Servic 1,285,60! 1,285,601 771,81¢
1,903,301 1,903,301 1,276,54.
Community Public Healt
Contract Service 110,00( 110,00( 110,00(
110,00( 110,00( 110,00(
Total Public Health $ 2,167,900 $ 2,167,900 $ 1,533,06!
Human Service:
Veteran Service
Personnel Servic $ 1351C % 1357¢ % 13,57¢
Discretionary Fundir 10C 10C -
Supplies and Other Char¢ 1,40( 1,40C 817
Repairs and Maintenar 20C 20C -
15,21( 15,27¢ 14,39t
County Fire Protectic
Supplies and Other Chart - - -
Contract Service 416,00( 416,00( 416,00(
416,00( 416,00( 416,00(
County Welfar
Supplies and Other Char¢ 5,00( 5,00( 2,24(
5,00( 5,00( 2,24(
Election:
Personnel Servic 40,26( 45,36( 36,957
Outside Labor Cos 94,50( 84,88: 84,88!
Supplies and Other Char¢ 18,30( 22,98¢ 22,67¢
Repairs and Maintenar 42,50( 40,60( 40,60(
Contract Service 90C 1,25( 1,25(C
Professional Servic 22,50( 40,65( 36,72¢
218,96( 235,73( 223,08t
Health Departme
Supplies and Other Char 37,81( 41,78¢ 41,73t
Professional Servic 12,00( 11,55( 11,52¢
49,81( 53,33t 53,26¢
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GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL

Human Services (continuec

Emergency Manageme
Personnel Servic
Discretionary Fundin
Supplies and Other Chary
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisition
Contract Service
Professional Servic

Brazos Centce
Personnel Servic
Employment Service
Discretionary Fundin
Supplies and Other Chart
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisition
Contract Service

Exposition Cente
Personnel Servic
Supplies and Other Chary

Agricultural Extensio
Personnel Servic
Discretionary Fundin
Supplies and Other Chart
Repairs and Maintenar
Minor Acquisitions
Contract Service

City of College Station - TEE
Minor Acquisition
Child Protective Servici
Supplies and Other Chart
Total Human Service:

Capital Outlay

For The Year Ended September 30, 20(
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Budgeted Amount:
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Original Final Actual
$ 96,34( % 96,34 $ 94,20:
30c 30C -
13,05( 13,05( 11,10¢
4,35( 4,35( 2,50(
1,25( 1,45( 654
4,50( 4,50( 4,05(
3,15( 3,15( 2,25¢
122,94( 123,14( 114,77:
398,63( 398,63( 350,93«
50C 50C -
2,20( 2,20C -
123,30( 135,25( 132,65
66,65( 54,20 41,217
4,85( 4,94¢ 4,85¢
49,00( 49,00( 35,44¢
645,13 644,73 565,10¢
114,61( 114,61( -
36,00( 36,00( -
150,61( 150,61( -
211,76( 209,46( 164,42°
1,50( 2,30( 1,60(
39,55( 40,15( 35,27
50C 52¢ 524
2,55( 3,917 3,76:
18,06( 18,06( 15,12(
273,92 274,41. 220,70!
- 13,50( 13,49:
- 13,50( 13,49:
50,00( 50,00( 40,19:
50,00( 50,00( 40,19:
$ 194758 $ 1,981,73' $ 1,663,25
$ 29,00C $ 73,48. % 71,95(




BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

Page 13 of 1

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
For The Year Ended September 30, 20(

EXPENDITURES (continued)
Debt Service
Principa
Interes
Total Debt Service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Exfiaret
Other Financing Sources (Use:
Operating Transfers
Operating Transfers C
Sale of Fixed Asse
Total Other Financing Sources (Use!
Net Change in Fund Balant
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

8¢

Budgeted Amount:

Original Final Actual

$ 171,15¢ % 171,15¢ % 171,14
6,51( 6,51( 6,501
177,66( 177,66( 177,64:
42,437,92 43,308,46 39,797,50
(3,190,396 (3,942,411 2,045,12
- - 44,65
(629,624 (729,765 (633,314
40,00( 40,00( 39,84(
(589,624 (689,765 (548,822
(3,780,020 (4,632,176 1,496,30!
18,148,05 18,148,05 18,148,05

$ 14,368,034 $ 13,515,878 $ 19,644,359




BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Required Supplementary Information - Retirement&ys

September 30, 2004

UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Annual Percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL Funded Covered Covered

Date Assets Liability (AAL)  (UAAL) Ratio Payroll (1) Pagll

12/31/95 $19,981,341 $22,818,313 $2,836,972 87.57% $ 12,604,354 22.51%
12/31/96 22,756,204 29,946,254 7,190,050 75.99% 13,287,813 54.11%
12/31/97 (2) 25,596,813 34,465,968 8,869,155 74.27% 14,554,927  60.94%
12/31/98 28,670,100 38,192,134 9,522,034 75.07% 15,418,101 61.76%
12/31/99 32,951,466 42,652,282 9,700,816 77.26% 16,620,858 58.37%
12/31/00 37,287,534 47,146,262 9,858,728  79.09% 17,804,155 55.37%
12/31/01 40,804,100 51,952,718 11,148,618 78.54% 19,149,679  58.22%
12/31/02 44,733,516 57,057,239 12,323,723 78.40% 20,610,362  59.79%
12/31/03 50,448,656 62,151,023 11,702,367 81.17% 21,311,160 54.91%

(1) The annual covered payroll is based on the eysploontributions received by TCDRS for

the year ending with the valuation date.

(2) Valuation reflects revised economic and demdg@pssumptions due to experience review.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS UNDER MODIFIED APPROACH

As permitted by Governmental Accounting Standards Board StatemenbeXusd, Basic
Financial Statements — and Management’'s Discussion and Analysis — for State ahd Loc
GovernmentsBrazos County has adopted the modified approach for reporting its road and bridge
system. Under the modified approach, depreciation is not reported #aid peeservation and
maintenance costs are expensed.

The modified approach requires that Brazos County maintain an assag@ment system that
includes an up-to-date inventory of eligible infrastructure asset®rmecondition assessments
of the eligible infrastructure assets and summarize the sasitig a measurement scale in order
to document that the eligible infrastructure assets are beisgrpeel approximately at or above
the condition level established and disclosed by the government, andtestach year the
annual amount needed to maintain and preserve the eligible infrastrastats at the condition
level established and disclosed by the government.

Roads

The Brazos County Road and Bridge department performs condition assessfrcounty roads
continually throughout the year and evaluates and prioritizes thesrasumitially. The condition
assessment team consists of the County Engineer (Registefedsikmal Engineer), a planning
and development supervisor, a general superintendent and 4 road supervisows, eah f
precinct in the County. This team utilizes various criteriaefaaluating the condition of the
roads including the traffic volume of the road, the number of man hourstausedintain the
road in the last year, the potential traffic on the road based onvelisdevelopment of
properties accessing the road, the number of traffic accidentdhartgipe of accidents, and a
visual inspection of the road for settlement spots, rough pavementyegeasg patching, and
the frequency of repair activities on the road. Each road issasses a scale of zero to 100
with 100 representing a road in perfect condition. The County has adapiadraum condition
level of 80% for all County roads. The results of the 2004 condition assessment are as follows

Percentage of Miles Percentage of Miles Peacenof Miles

at 80% or greater at 70% or greater at 60% or greater
Precinct condition level condition level condition level
1 95% 4% 1%
2 84% 11% 5%
3 100% 0% 0%
4 97% 3% 0%
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INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS UNDER MODIFIED APPROACH (Continued)

All roads with 60% to 80% of condition level are scheduled for upgradeconstruction with
the next 2 year period.

For the year ended September 30, 2004, annual maintenance and preservasioof cost
$4,620,767 were less than the estimated amount needed of $5,336,680. This wwadaade i
the unforeseen delays in the acquisition of right of way, road preparation and weatyger dela

Bridges

The condition of the County’s bridges is determined using the Stdtexals Bridge Inventory

Inspection System (BRINSAP). The bridges are inspected bytHie &very two years. A

numerical condition range 0.0 (beyond repair) to 9.0 (excellent conditioisptto assess each
of seven elements of the structure. These include deck, supersirscstucture, channel,

culvert, approaches and miscellaneous items. The BRINSAP sumshwawg 58 bridges in the

County were rated. The chart below shows that the County’s bridgeselh maintained and in

good or very good condition and this is consistent with the County policy.

Total Bridges : 58

Rating Number %
Very Good 6.0-9.0 54 93%
Good 4.0-5.9 4 7%
Fair 3.0-3.9 0 0%
Poor 0.0-2.9 0 0%
Total 58 100%
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SUMMARY

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables:
Interest
Accounts
State
Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salary and Compensated Leave
Unclaimed Funds
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenues

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved
For Special Purpose Programs
Unreserved
Designated for Capital Inmprovements

Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

September 30, 2004

Total Nonmajor

Special Capital Governmental
Revenue Projects Funds
$ 1,792,584 1,120,842 $ 2,913,426
3,580 1,030 4,610
641 - 641
427,449 - 427,449
15,882 - 15,882
2,240,136 1,121,872 3,362,008
252,902 180,466 433,368
45,868 - 45,868
173,779 - 173,779
19,165 - 19,165
50,144 - 50,144
541,858 180,466 722,324
1,698,278 - 1,698,278
941,406 941,406
1,698,278 941,406 2,639,684
$ 2,240,136 1,121,872 $ 3,362,008
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SUMMARY
For The Year Ended September 30, 2004

REVENUES
Charges for Service
Intergovernmental
Interest
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Justice System
Law Enforcement
Juvenile Services
Public Transportation
Human Services
Capital Outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Net Change in Fund Balances

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 3C

Total Nonmajor

Special Capital Governmental
Revenue Projects Funds
560,694 $ - 560,694
2,310,449 - 2,310,449
26,932 17,264 44,196
52,871 - 52,871
2,950,946 17,264 2,968,210
30,801 70,397 101,198
212,963 - 212,963
1,298,349 - 1,298,349
716,725 - 716,725
257,825 - 257,825
168,124 - 168,124
211,902 1,395,211 1,607,113
2,896,689 1,465,608 4,362,297
54,257 (1,448,344) (1,394,087)
285,186 - 285,186
(51,872) (44,652) (96,524)
233,314 (44,652) 188,662
287,571 (1,492,996) (1,205,425)
1,410,707 2,434,402 3,845,109
1,698,278 $ 941,406 $ 2,639,684
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted by law or administrative actidyetexpended for specified
purposes.

State Lateral Road Fund- A fund established to account for the funds received from the
State for maintenance of County roads that join State highways.

Unclaimed Property Fund —A fund established to account for property with a value of
$100 or less that is presumed to be abandoned under the laws of thef Stakas.
Expenditures of this fund are limited to the costs associatedowiilishing and posting
of notices to the owners.

Law Library Fund - A fund established to account for fees (assessed and collected by
various County Courts) that are used to maintain the County Law Yittvatris available
to the public.

Appellate Judicial Fund - A fund established to account for the $5.00 fee assessed by
County Courts in civil cases used to support the County’s participatids appellate
districts.

Alternative Dispute Resolution Fund- A fund created to account for the $10.00 fee
assessed with each County and District Court civil case fileeld s support the
Alternative Dispute Resolution Center. The purpose of the Centerésolve disputes
that do not require formal court action.

Law Enforcement Education Fund- A fund created to account for funding received by
the County from the State. The funds received are used to supplémeartntinuing
education and training needs of those employees licensed under Chapter #h&5 of
Government Code, primarily law enforcement personnel.

County Records Management and Preservation Fund A fund established to account
for fees assessed and collected by the County and District Gourtee expressed
purpose of records management and preservation.

County Clerk Records Management and Preservation Fund A fund established to
account for fees assessed for recording of documents in the Coumkkys Gitfice.
Filings for real estate transactions, criminal, probate, assuragts and civil court
actions are included. Monies are used for records management ardgires services
performed by the County Clerk’s office.

Time Payment Fund —A fund established to account for fees assessed and collected by
the District, County and Justice Courts for cases in which thadgefé has opted to pay

the ordered amounts in installments. These funds can be used to in@@&féciency

of the administration of justice.

Courthouse Security Fund -A fund created to account for the collection of fees charged
as part of court costs to provide security services for buildingshthese a District or
County Court.



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (continued)

District Clerk Records Management and Preservation Fund A fund established to
account for fees assessed for recording of documents in the tDGleik's office.

Monies are used for records management and preservation servicemeerby the
District Clerk’s office.

J. P. Technology Fund -A fund created to account for the collection of fees charged as
part of court costs to fund the technological needs of the Justices’ of the Peace.

Special Forfeitures Fund- A fund established to account for forfeited property receipts
as prescribed by Article 59 of the Code of Criminal Procedure. These funds can only be
used to support law enforcement activities.

District Attorney Hot Check Collection Fund — A fund established to account for fees
collected by the District Attorney for the administration, processnd prosecution of
returned checks.

Bail Bond Board Fees Fund— A fund established to account for funds received for
licensing and expenditures related to monitoring the bond activitiekeofocal bail
bondsmen.

Voter Registration Fund - A fund established to account for funds received from the
State (before 1991), which represents a fee earned for each \gisterszl. Funds
received can only be used for voter registration activity, and @reriged by the Tax
Assessor-Collector, the designated Voter Registrar for the County.

Vehicle Inventory Tax Interest Fund - A fund established to account for the interest
earned on the Vehicllaventory Tax collected monthly by the Tax Assessor-Collector.
The Tax Assessor-Collector is allowed to collect the tax frefnicle dealers before the
October 1 assessment date. The interest earned on the funds HeddTlay tAssessor-
Collector can only be used to support the Vehicle Inventory Tax dohectand
payments.

Sheriff Department Crime Fund — A fund established to account for funds received
from the City of Bryan, the City of College Station, and Brazoar@®y in support of the
Narcotics Trafficking Task Force grant administered by the Sheriff.

District Attorney Crime Fund — A fund established to account for funds received from
the City of Bryan, the City of College Station, and Brazos Coumtctordance with an
inter-local agreement for the litigation of seizures incurred in law enfackactivities.

Grants Fund — A fund established to account for the revenues and expenditured relate
to grant activities.



ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables:
Interest
Accounts
State
Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liahilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salary and Compensated Leave
Unclaimed Funds
Due to Other Funds
Deferred Revenues

Total Liabilities
Fund Balances

Resenved
For Special Purpose Programs

Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMVBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

September 30, 2004

County County Clerk
Records Records
State Alternative Law Managemernt Management Time
Lateral Undlaimed Law Appellate Dispute Enforcement and al Payment Courthouse
Road Property Library Judicial Resolution Education Presavation Preservation Fee Security
$ 32,9506 174463 $ 271565 $ 19234 $ 2,050 12127 $ 178,411 $ 325605 $ 29628 $ 207,059
57 303 471 33 - - 310 565 52 359
- 15,865 - - - - - - - -
33,007 190,631 272,036 19,267 2,050 12,127 178,721 326,260 29,680 207,418
- - 581 - 2,050 357 625 4,000 - -
- - - - - - - 764 - 2,013
- 171,189 - - - - - - - -
- 464 - - - ; , . - -
- 171,653 581 - 2,050 357 625 4,764 - 2,013
33,007 18,978 271,455 19,267 - 11,770 178,096 321,496 29,680 205,405
33,007 18,978 271,455 19,267 - 11,770 178,096 321,496 29,680 205,405
$ 33007 $ 190631 $ 272036 $ 19267 $ 2,050 12127 $ 178,721 $ 326260 $ 29680 $ 207,418
(continued)
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
September 30, 2004

District Clerk
Records District Vehicle Sheriff e
Management Attorney Bail Bond Inventory Department District
and J.P. Special Hot Check Board Voter Tax Crime Attorney
Preservation Technology Forfeitures Collection Fees Regfiation Interest Fund Crime Fund Grants Totals
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 9,554% 52220 $ 1310 $ 5860 $ 60,782 $ 27599 $ 66190 $ 286071 ® 29816 - % 1792584
Receivables:
Interest 17 o1 2 10 105 48 618 339 27 173 3,580
Accounts - - - 140 - - - - - 501 641
State - - - N - - _ _ - 427,449 427,449
Due From Other Funds - - - - - . - - 17 - 15,882
TOTAL ASSETS 9,571 52,311 1,312 6,010 60,887 27,647 66,808 286,410 29,860 428,123 2,240,136
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable - - - - 9 - - - - 245,280 252,902
Accrued Salary and Compensated Leave - 996 - - 6 - 199 - 63 41,827 45,868
Unclaimed Funds - - - - - - - 2,590 - - 173,779
Due to Other Funds - - - - - - - - 179 18,522 19,165
Deferred Revenues - - - - - - - - - 50,144 50,144
Total Liabilities - 996 - - 15 - 199 2,590 242 355,773 541,858
Fund Balances
Reserved
For Special Purpose Programs 9,571 51,315 1,312 6,010 60,872 27,647 66,609 283,820 29,618 72,350 1,698,278
Total Fund Balances 9,571 51,315 1,312 6,010 60,872 27,647 66,609 283,820 29,618 72,350 1,698,278
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 9571 $ 52311 $ 1,312 $ 6,010 $ 60,887 $ 27,647 $ 66,808 $ 286,410 $ 29,860 $ 428,123 $ 2,240,136
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REVENUES
Charges for Servii
Intergovernment
Interes
Othel

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
General Governme
Justice Syste
Law Enforcemer
Juvenile Service
Public Transportatic
Human Service
Capital Outla

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) ¢
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditt

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES;
Operating Transfers
Operating Transfers C
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Net Change in Fund Balan
FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 3C

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For The Year Ended September 30, 2004

County County Clerk
Record:s Record:
State Alternative Law Managemen Managemen Time
Lateral Unclaimec Law Appellate Dispute Enforcement and and Payment Courthouse
Roac Property Library Judicial Resolutior Education Preservatior Preservatior Fee Security
- 8 - $ 41270 $ 9,20C $ 20,59%¢ % - $ 55,25¢ $ 207,361 343 $ 90,68:
28,49: - - - - 17,59 - - - -
467 2,401 341 40¢ - - 2,20( 3,73¢ 39¢ 3,18¢
- - 52,87: - - - - - - -
28,96( 2,401 97,55 9,60¢ 20,59¢ 17,59: 57,45¢ 211,10 3,83¢ 93,86¢
- - - - - - 12,10: - - -
- - 6,77¢ 21,24 25,59¢ - - 77,27t - -
- - - - - 30,63: - - - 143,50¢
- - 6,77¢ 21,24 25,59¢ 30,63: 12,10: 77,27¢ - 143,50
28,96( 2,40! 90,78: (11,634 (5,000 (13,037 45,35 133,82 3,83« (49,644
- - - - 5,00( - - - - 2,00(
- - - - 5,00( - - - - 2,00(
28,96( 2,401 90,78: (11,634 - (13,037 45,35 133,82 3,83¢ (47,644
4,045 16,57" 180,67: 30,90! - 24,80° 132,73 187,66! 25,84¢ 253,04
33,000 $ 1897¢ $ 271,45 $ 19,260  $ -8 11,77 $ 178,09 $ 321,49 29,68 $ 205,40!
(continued
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REVENUES
Charges for Servi
Intergovernment
Interes
Othel

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
General Governme
Justice Syste
Law Enforcemet
Juvenile Service
Public Transportatic
Human Service
Capital Outla

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) ¢
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditt

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers
Operating Transfers C
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Net Change in Fund Balan

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 3C

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For The Year Ended September 30, 2004

District Clerk
Records District Vehicle Sheriff
Managemen Attorney Bail Bond Inventory Department District
and J.P. Specia Hot Check Board Voter Tax Crime Attomey
Preservatior Technology Forfeitures Collection Fee:! Registration Interest Fund Crime Fund Grants Totals
8,75: $ 38438 % 60(C 93¢ $ 2000 $ -0 3% 394¢ % 50,48: ¢ 27,730 $ - 0% 560,69
R R - - - - - - - 2,264,36. 2,310,44
78 501 1< 19 87z 411 3,73% 3,042 132 1,91¢ 26,93
~ z Z Z - i - - - 52,87.
8,83( 38,93¢ 61¢ 94¢ 2,872 411 7,682 53,52' 27,86. 2,266,27. 2,950,94
- - - - 3,748 2,408 12,54¢ - - - 30,80:
- 99€ - - - - - - 14,03 67,03¢ 212,96
- - 60C - - - - (5,003 - 1,128,61 1,298,34
- - - - - - - - - 716,72 716,72
- - - - - - - - - 257,82 257,82
- - - - - - - - - 168,12 168,12
- - - - - - - - - 211,90 211,90,
- 99¢€ 60C - 3,74¢ 2,40¢ 12,54¢ (5,003 14,03 2,550,22 2,896,68
8,83( 37,94( 1< 94¢ (873 (1,994 (4,867 58,53( 13,820 (283,95C 54,25,
R R R - - - - - - 278,18 285,18
- - - - - - - (51,872 - - (51,872
- - - - - - - (51,872 - 278,18 233,31
8,83( 37,94( 1< 94¢ 873 (1,994 (4,867 6,65¢ 13,82 (5,764 287,57
741 13,37¢ 1,29: 5,06 61,74 29,64: 71,47¢ 277,16. 15,79: 78,11« 1,410,70
9571 % 51,311 $ 1,312 6,01(  $ 60,87: $ 2764 $ 66,600 $ 283,82( $ 2961 $ 7235 $ 169827
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
STATE LATERAL ROAD

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES

Public Transportation
Repairs and Maintenance

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual

$ 24,000 $ 28,000 $ 28,493
1,000 500 467
25,000 28,500 28,960

111,000 32,500 -

111,00( 32,50( -
(86,000) (4,000) 28,960
4,047 4,047 4,047

$ (81,953 $ 47 $ 33,00°
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
UNCLAIMED PROPERTY
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Interest $ 2,000 $ 2,401
TOTAL REVENUES 2,000 2,401
EXPENDITURES
General Governmen
Supplies and Other Charges 18,000 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 18,000 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (16,000) 2,401
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 16,577 16,577

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ Sl $ 18,97¢
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
LAW LIBRARY
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Original
and Final
Budgel Actual
REVENUES
Charges for Service $ 35,000 $ 41,273
Interest 1,500 3,413
Other - 52,871
TOTAL REVENUES 36,50( 97,55’
EXPENDITURES
Justice Syster
Personnel Services 15,000 -
Supplies and Other Charges 115,000 6,776
Minor Acquisitions 10,000 -
Capital Outlay 26,500 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 166,500 6,776
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (130,000) 90,781
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 180,674 180,674

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 50,67+ $ 271,45!
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
APPELLATE JUDICIAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

REVENUES
Charges for Service
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES

Justice Syster
Supplies and Other Charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

10¢€

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
$ 8,400 $ 9,200
100 408
8,500 9,608
30,000 21,242
30,000 21,242
(21,500) (11,634)
30,901 30,901
$ 9,401 $ 19,26




BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

REVENUES

Charges for Service

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Justice Syster

Contractual Services
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers In

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual

$ 19,500 $ 20,600 $ 20,599
19,500 20,600 20,599
24,500 25,600 25,599
24,500 25,600 25,599
(5,000) (5,000) (5,000)
5,000 5,000 5,000
5,000 5,000 5,000

$ - $ - $ -




BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
LAW ENFORCEMENT EDUCATION
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual

REVENUES

Intergovernmental $ 18,000 $ 17594 $ 17,594
TOTAL REVENUES 18,000 17,594 17,594
EXPENDITURES

Law Enforcement

Supplies and Other Charges 38,000 42,989 30,631
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 38,000 42,989 30,631
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (20,000) (25,395) (13,037)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 24,807 24,807 24,807
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 4,807 $ (588 % 11,77(
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
COUNTY RECORDS MANAGEMENT AND PRESERVATION
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

REVENUES
Charges for Service
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
General Governmen
Supplies and Other Charges
Contract Services
Professional Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual

$ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ 55,259
2,500 2,500 2,200
52,500 52,500 57,459
15,000 15,000 1,690
10,000 10,000 412
70,000 70,000 10,000
95,000 95,000 12,102
(42,500) (42,500) 45,357
132,739 132,739 132,739

$ 90,23¢ $ 90,23¢ $ 178,09¢




BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
COUNTY CLERK RECORDS MANAGEMENT AND PRESERVATION
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Charges for Service $ 75,000 $ 207,366
Interest 1,500 3,738
TOTAL REVENUES 76,500 211,104
EXPENDITURES
Justice Syster
Personnel Services 53,150 49,882
Supplies and Other Charges 13,300 2,197
Repairs and Maintenance 1,500 -
Minor Equipment 12,200 -
Contract Services 75,000 25,197
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 155,150 77,276
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (78,650) 133,828
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 187,668 187,668
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 109,01¢ $ 321,49¢
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
TIME PAYMENT FEE
For the Year Ended September 30, 20(

REVENUES
Charges for Service
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Justice Syster
Supplies and Other Charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revent
Over (Under) Expenditur

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

111

Original
and Final
Budgel Actual
$ 2,210 $ 3,436
190 398
2,400 3,834
27,400 -
27,400 -
(25,000 3,83¢
25,846 25,846
$ 84€  $ 29,68(




BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
COURTHOUSE SECURITY

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual

REVENUES

Charges for Service $ 85,000 $ 85,000 $ 90,681

Interest 3,900 3,900 3,183
TOTAL REVENUES 88,90( 88,90( 93,86«
EXPENDITURES

Law Enforcement

Personnel Services 131,070 133,070 133,435

Supplies and Other Charges 5,120 3,042 969

Repairs and Maintenance 6,850 8,928 8,928

Minor Equipment 1,100 1,100 176
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 144,140 146,140 143,508
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (55,240) (57,240) (49,644)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers In - 2,000 2,000
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES - 2,000 2,000
Net Change in Fund Balance (55,240) (55,240) (47,644)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 253,04 253,04 253,04
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 197,80¢ $ 197,80¢ $ 205,40!
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP) BASIS AND A CTUAL
DISTRICT CLERK RECORDS MANAGEMENT AND PRESERVATION
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

REVENUES
Charges for Service
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES

Justice Syster
Personnel Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
$ 20,000 $ 8,752
- 78
20,000 8,830
20,000 -
20,000 -
- 8,830
741 741

$ 741 $ 9,571
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
J. P. TECHNOLOGY
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Original
and Final
Budgei Actual
REVENUES
Charges for Service $ 12,000 $ 38,435
Interest 100 501
TOTAL REVENUES 12,100 38,936
EXPENDITURES
Justice Syster
Minor Acquisitions 22,100 996
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 22,100 996
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expiares (10,000) 37,940
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 13,375 13,375

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 3,37¢ $ 51,31t
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
SPECIAL FORFEITURES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual

REVENUES

Charges for Service $ 100 $ 700 $ 600

Interest 30 30 19
TOTAL REVENUES 130 730 619
EXPENDITURES

Law Enforcement

Supplies and Other Charges 1,000 1,000 -

Minor Acquisitions 1,300 1,900 600
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,300 2,900 600
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues (Under) Expendsture (2,170) (2,170) 19
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 1,293 1,293 1,293
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 877 % 877 % 1,312
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
DISTRICT ATTORNEY HOT CHECK COLLECTION
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Charges for Services $ - $ 930
Interest 19
TOTAL REVENUES - 949
EXPENDITURES
Justice Syster
Personnel Services 500 -
Supplies and Other Charges 3,000 -
Minor Acquisitions 1,000 -
Professional Services - -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,500 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (4,500) 949
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 5,061 5061 *
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 561 $ 6,01(

* This fund balance was presented with the Disttictne Fund balance
in FY 2002-2003.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
BAIL BOND BOARD FEES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Original
and Final
Budgel Actual
REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 1,500 $ 2,000
Interest 700 872
TOTAL REVENUES 2,200 2,872
EXPENDITURES
General Governmen
Personnel Services 5,290 3,502
Supplies and Other Charges 1,700 243
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,990 3,745
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (4,790) (873)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 61,745 61,745

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 56,95¢ $ 60,877




BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
VOTER REGISTRATION
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

REVENUES
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
General Governmen
Personnel Services
Contract Services
Supplies and Other Charges
Capital Outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

11¢€

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual
$ 500 $ 500 $ 411
500 500 411
- 1,080 590
3,500 2,420 -
8,500 8,500 1,815
17,000 17,000 -
29,000 29,000 2,405
(28,500) (28,500) (1,994)
29,641 29,641 29,641
$ 1,141 $ 1,141 $ 27,64,




BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
VEHICLE INVENTORY TAX INTEREST

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
General Governmen
Personnel Services
Supplies and Other Charges
Professional Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

Original
and Final
Budgel Actual
$ 5000 $ 3,949
5,000 3,733
10,000 7,682
13,695 12,389
11,500 160
2,000 -
27,195 12,549
(17,195) (4,867)
71,476 71,476
$ 54,28 $ 66,60¢




BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
SHERIFF DEPARTMENT CRIME FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Law Enforcement
Supplies and Other Charges
Repairs and Maintenance
Minor Acquisitions

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers Out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES
Net Change in Fund Balance
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

12C

Original
and Final
Budgei Actual
$ 50,000 $ 50,484
3,000 3,043
53,000 53,527
34,800 (5,003)
16,400 -
19,600 -
70,800 (5,003)
(17,800) 58,530
(100,000) (51,872)
(100,000) (51,872)
(117,800) 6,658
277,162 277,162
$ 159,36:. $ 283,82(




BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL*
DISTRICT ATTORNEY CRIME FUND
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Actual
REVENUES
Charges for Service $ 27,730
Interest 132
TOTAL REVENUES 27,862
EXPENDITURES
Justice Syster
Personnel Services 6,272
Supplies and Other Charges 6,632
Minor Acquisitions 1,131
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 14,035
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 13,827
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 15,791
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 29,61¢

* A budget was not legally adopted for this fund.

** $5,061 of the prior year fund balance is presdrtethe District Attorney Hot Check
Collection fund for the current year.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
GRANTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 20(

Budgeted Amount:

Original Final Actual
REVENUES
Intergovernmental - Federa
Department of Justi $ 57,000 $ 43,74¢ $ 80,22¢
Department of Transportati 276,72¢ 311,13t 271,75t
U. S. Federal Transit Administrati - 30,00( 28,12¢
U. S. Department of Human Servi - 240,17( 123,80
Narcotics Task Fort 649,99: 649,99: 692,64(
Total Intergovernmental - Federa 983,71¢ 1,275,04. 1,196,55!
Intergovernmental - State
Texas Juvenile Probation Commis: 501,73« 600,41« 601,01«
Texas Office of the Attorney Gene - 50,87: 50,87:
Texas Engineering Extension Sen - 117,20« 129,66
Total Intergovernmental - State 501,73« 768,49: 781,55t
Intergovernmental - Other
Matching Fund 216,66 322,94: 245,96(
Primary Election Servic - 57,06« 40,28¢
Total Intergovernmental - Other 216,66° 380,00 286,24
Interest 1,20( 1,20( 1,91¢
TOTAL REVENUES 1,703,32I 2,424,741 2,266,27!
EXPENDITURES
Justice Syster 71,08 71,08 67,03¢
Law Enforcement 866,65¢ 991,80° 1,128,61.
Juvenile Service 678,31 764,98 716,72!
Public Transportation 276,52: 340,93: 257,82!
Human Service: - 446,43 168,12-
Capital Outlay 51,70( 51,70( 211,90:
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,944,27: 2,666,94' 2,550,221
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expendit (240,958 (242,209 (283,950
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers | 148,55¢ 149,80¢ 278,18t
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 148,55¢ 149,80¢ 278,18t
Net Change in Fund Balar (92,400 (92,400 (5,764
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 78,11¢ 78,11« 78,11«
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ (14,286) $ (14,286) $ 72,350
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for the
payment of general long-term debt principal and interest related to general obligation
bonds and certificates of obligation.



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

For The Year Ended September 30, 2004

REVENUES
Taxes
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Agent Fees

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out
Proceeds from General Obligation Bonds
Proceeds from Certificates of Obligation
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Net Change in Fund Balances

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

12¢

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual
$ 2,942,000 $ 2965000 $ 3,199,690
35,000 30,000 67,363
2,977,001 2,995,00! 3,267,05.
1,710,000 1,860,451 1,860,000
1,648,641 1,517,641 1,594,431
80,000 78,549 1,757
3,438,64. 3,456,64. 3,456,18
(461,641)  (461,641) (189,135)
200,000 200,000 200,000
(16,000,000) (6,000,000) -
6,000,000 6,000,000 -
10,000,000 - -
200,000 200,000 200,000
(261,641) (261,641) 10,865
1,612,87 1,612,87 1,612,87
$ 135123 $ 1,351,223 1,623,74,




CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Capital Project Funds are used to account for the use of certificate of obligation proceeds and
other financial resources that have been aggregated for the acquisition of major capital facilities
and/or improvements of the County.

Certificates of Obligation 2002 - This fund is established to account for the expenditures of
debt proceeds issued for the acquisition of an electronic voting system, network and computer
upgrades and acquisition of vehicles and related equipment.

County Court at Law Courtroom Fund — This fund is established to account for the
expenditures to renovate the storage area on the 2™ floor of the courthouse into a courtroom for
County Court at Law Number Two. Resources for the fund have been provided by transfers
from the General Fund.

Judicial Software Fund — This fund is established to account for the expenditures for
acquisition and installation of the criminal justice software system. The expenditures are
financed through the issuance of Certificates of Obligation and other financial resources.

Capital Improvement Fund - This fund is established to provide funding for the construction
and acquisition of fixed assets to support the County’'s general governmental, judicial, law
enforcement, and public transportation functions. Resources for the fund have been provided by
transfers from the General Fund.

Road and Bridge Infrastructure — Certificates of Obligation 2002 - This fund is established
to account for expenditures for new construction and upgrading of the County’s road and bridge
infrastructure, financed through the issuance of Certificates of Obligation and related financial
resources.

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Exposition Center Fund — This fund is established to account for the expenditures for the
purchase of land and the construction of the Brazos County Exposition Center.

Certificates of Obligation 2003 — This fund is established to account for the expenditures for
the Sheriff’s Administration building, to begin the design phase for a third jail expansion, to
upgrade the mobile communication system used by the law enforcement and emergency response
personnel, to perform various facility modifications, and to support various road and bridge
capital improvement programs. The expenditures are financed through the issuance of
$10,000,000 in Certificates of Obligation.

Certificates of Obligation 2004 — This fund is established to account for the expenditures for
the purchase of land for the Sheriff’s Administration building, to acquire real estate for other
county growth needs, to purchase land and construct a new Justice of the Peace building, and to
support various road and bridge capital improvement programs. The expenditures are financed
through the issuance of $5,000,000 in Certificates of Obligation.



ASSETS
Cashand Cash Equivelents
Receivales:
Interest

TOTALASSETS

LABILIMES ANDRINDBALANCES
Lishiities
Aocourts Payable
To Liskities
Fund Belarces
Uresened

Desigeted for Capitdl Inproverrents
To Fund Belarnoes

TOTALLABLITIES ANDRUNDBALANCES

BRAZCE GOLNITY, TEXAS

CCMBNNGBAANCE SHEET
CAPITAL PROECT RUNDS
Septenter 30, 204
Normgjor Funds Major Funds
Cartificates Courty Gout Roed ard Bicge Total Certificates Certificates
of Chligation atLlaw Judda Copitl Infrastructure Nonngjor Bxposition of Obligation of Obligation
2002 Coutroom Sofvere Inprovenert CQ's2002 Funds Center 2003 2004
11,298 1B 160115% 572018 $ 3774% $ 1120842 $ 5,261,479 $ 7,951,390 $ 4,947,093
& 15 278 - (659) 1,030 5,660 5118 17,479
11,330 - 160,333 572018 378081 1,121,872 5,267,139 7,956,508 4,964,572
11,30 - 81193 79649 8244 180,466 880 88,603 -
11,330 - 81,193 79649 8244 180,466 880 88,603 -
- - 79200 42,30 330837 941,406 5,266,259 7,867,905 4,964,572
- - 79200 42,30 330837 941,406 5,266,259 7,867,905 4,964,572
1130 $ -$ 160,33$ 52018 $ 3788L $ 1121872 $ 5,267,139 $ 7,956,508 $ 4,964,572
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REVENUES
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Minor Acquisitions
Contract Services
Capital Outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers Out
Proceeds from Certificates of Obligation
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Net Change in Fund Balances

FUND BALANCES, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCES, SEPTEMBER 3C

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
For The Year Ended September 30, 2004
Nonmajor Funds Major Funds _
Certificates County Court Road and Bridge Total 3 Certificates Certificates
of Obligation at Law Judicial Capital Infrastructure No nmajor Exposition of Obligation of Obligation
2002 Courtroom Software Improvement C.0.'s 2002 Funds Center 2003 2004

4592 $ 397 $ 2477 $ - $ 9,798 $ 17,264 $ 75049 $ 100,442 _$ 5,469
4592 397 2477 - 9,798 17,264 75,049 100,442 5,469
- 24,639 - 27,758 - 52,397 - - -
- - - 18,000 - 18,000 - - -
405,386 125,369 56,499 337,728 470,229 1,395,211 386,045 2,232,537 40,897
405,386 150,008 56,499 383,486 470,229 1,465,608 386,045 2,232,537 40,897
(400,794) (149,611) (54,022) (383,486) (460,431) (1,448,344) (310,996) (2,132,095) (35/428)
(35,988) (8,664) - - - (44,652) - - -
- - - - - - - 10,000,000 5,000,000
(35,988) (8,664) - - - (44,652) - 10,000,000 5,000,000
(436,782) (158,275) (54,022) (383,486) (460,431) (1,492,996) (310,996) 7,867,905 4,964,572
436,782 158,275 133,222 875,855 830,268 2,434,402 5,577,255 - -
- 3 - 8 79200 $ 492360 $ 36983 $ 941,400 $ 5266259 $ 7,867,905 $ 4,964,572
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION 2002
For The Year Ended September 30, 2004

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Interest $ 4,000 $ 4,592
TOTAL REVENUES 4,000 4,592
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay 446,000 405,386
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 446,000 405,386
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (442,000) (400,794)
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers Out - (35,988)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES - (35,988)
Net Change in Fund Balance (442,000) (436,782)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 436,782 436,782

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ (5,218) $ -

12¢



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
COUNTY COURT AT LAW COURTROOM FUND
For The Year Ended September 30, 2004

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual
REVENUES
Interest $ 100 $ 100 $ 397
TOTAL REVENUES 100 100 397
EXPENDITURES
General Government
Supplies and Other Charges 10,000 7,790 -
Minor Acquisitions 27,500 26,625 24,639
Capital Outlay 57,600 125,737 125,369
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 95,100 160,152 150,008
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (95,000) (160,052) (149,611)
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers Out - - (8,664)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES - - (8,664)
Net Change in Fund Balance (95,000) (160,052) (158,275)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 158,275 158,275 158,275
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 63275 $ a,777) $ -




BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
JUDICIAL SOFTWARE FUND

For The Year Ended September 30, 2004

REVENUES
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers |

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Net Change in Fund Balar
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

13C

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual

$ 2000 $ 2,000 $ 2,477
2,000 2,000 2,477
78,000 134,500 56,499
78,000 134,500 56,499
(76,000) (132,500) (54,022)

- 56,50( -

- 56,50( -

(76,000 (76,000 (54,022
133,222 133,222 133,222
$ 57,222  $ 57,222 $ 79,200




BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
For The Year Ended September 30, 2004

REVENUES
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
General Government
Minor Acquisitions

Contract Services
Capital Outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers Out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES
Net Change in Fund Balance
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual
$ 3,250 $ 3250 $ -
3,250 3,250 -
- 3,500 27,758
- - 18,000
519,250 459,250 337,728
519,250 462,750 383,486
(516,000) (459,500) (383,486)
- (56,500) -
- (56,500) -
(516,000) (516,000) (383,486)
875,855 875,855 875,855

$ 359,855 $ 359,855 $ 492,369
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
ROAD AND BRIDGE INFRASTRUCTURE
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION ISSUE 2002
For The Year Ended September 30, 2004

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Interest $ 5000 $ 9,798
TOTAL REVENUES 5,000 9,798
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay 834,000 470,229
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 834,000 470,229
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (829,000) (460,431)
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 830,268 830,268
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ 1,268 $ 369,837
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
EXPOSITION CENTER FUND
For The Year Ended September 30, 2004

REVENUES
Interest

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
General Government
Minor Acquisitions
Capital Outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers In

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Net Change in Fund Balance
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual
$ 30,000 $ 30,000 $ 75,049
30,000 30,000 75,049
- 4,450 -
12,380,000 12,375,550 386,045
12,380,000 12,380,000 386,045
(12,35m),00 (12,350,000) (310,996)
6,000,000 6,000,000 -
6,000,000 6,000,000 -
(6,350,000) (6,350,000) (310,996)
5,577,255 5,577,255 5,577,255
$ (772,745) $ (772,745) $ 5,266,259
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION ISSUE 2003
For The Year Ended September 30, 2004

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Interest $ 18,000 $ 100,442
TOTAL REVENUES 18,000 100,442
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay 10,018,000 2,232,537
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 10,018,000 2,232,537
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (10,00m,00 (2,132,095)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds from Certificates of Obligation 10,000,000 10,000,000
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 10,000,000 10,000,000
Net Change in Fund Balance - 7,867,905

FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 - -

FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ - $ 7,867,905
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND A CTUAL
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION ISSUE 2004
For The Year Ended September 30, 2004

Original
and Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Interest $ - $ 5,469
TOTAL REVENUES - 5,469
EXPENDITURES
General Government
Repairs and Maintenance 400,000 -
Capital Outlay 4,600,000 40,897
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,000,000 40,897
Deficiency of Revenues Under Expenditures (5,000,000 (35,428)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds from Certificates of Obligation 5,000,000 5,000,000
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 5,000,000 5,000,000
Net Change in Fund Balance - 4,964,572
FUND BALANCE, OCTOBER 1 - -
FUND BALANCE, SEPTEMBER 30 $ - % 4,964,572

13t



PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND - is established to account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department to other departments of the County on a cost-reimbursement basis.



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 20C

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,135,696
Accounts Receivable 20,661
Due From Other Funds 370
TOTAL ASSETS 1,156,727
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 702,811
Deferred Revenue 141,295
TOTAL LIABILITIES 844,106
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted 312,621

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 312,621

13¢



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS - BUDGET (GAAP BASIS AND ACTUAL
For The Year Ended September 30, 20(

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual

OPERATING REVENUES

Employee Depender $ 580,00t $ 805,40( $ 842,03(

Self Pay 641,10( 235,60( 247,56

Excess Risk Benefi - 1,183,001 777,98

Participant Paymer 165,00( 216,40( 221,48¢

Brazos Count 3,377,801 3,630,201 3,774,48

Retiree 60,40( 61,40( 59,11:
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 4,824,30! 6,132,00 5,922,66!
OPERATING EXPENSES

Life Insuranc 37,10¢( 37,10( 36,26¢

Stop Loss Premiun 406,80( 711,30( 740,82!

Benefit Claim: 4,417,30! 5,317,601 5,039,07.

Administrative Fee 171,10( 274,00( 259,09¢
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 5,032,301 6,340,00 6,075,26.
OPERATING LOSS (208,000 (208,000 (152,596
NONOPERATING REVENUES

Interes 8,00( 8,00( 10,34¢
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES 8,00( 8,00( 10,34¢
LOSS BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFER (200,000) (200,000) (142,248)
Transfer From General Fu 200,00( 200,00( 200,00(
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS - - 57,75:
TOTAL NET ASSETS - BEGINNING - - 254,86¢
TOTAL NET ASSETS - ENDING $ - $ - % 312,62:




BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For The Year Ended September 30, 20!

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and u:
Receipts from interfund services provi
Receipts from reinsuran
Payments to contractc
Claims pai

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfer From General Fu

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment Incomnr

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, OCTOBER 1
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, SEPTEMBER 30

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used b
operating activities:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net casd by
operating activities:
Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease in due from other funds
(Decrease) in accounts payable
Increase in deferred revenue
Total adjustments

Net cash used by operating activi

13¢

$ 1,361,55

$

$

$

3,984,35.
1,331,60:

(1,015,82C
(5,228,611

433,08t

200,00(

200,00(

8,97¢
8,97¢

642,06t

493,63(

1,135,69

(152,596)

535,249
200,000
(163,539)

13,974

585,684

433,08t



FIDUCIARY FUNDS

AGENCY FUNDS

Nar cotics Seizure - A fund used to account for monies and materials that are seized during narcotics
interdiction activities. The District Attorney’s office evaluates each case and files acivil case to have the
seized funds forfeited. Upon receipt of acourt judgment, the seized funds are disbursed.

Payroll - A fund used to account for all payroll and related costs for the entire County. Funds are
transferred in at the end of each payroll period. The fund is required to make distributions that include:
payroll, federal taxes withheld, retirement, deferred compensation, group insurance premiums and other
employee benefit deductions.

Flexible Benefit Cafeteria — A fund used to account for the payroll deductions and reimbursements to
County employees for qualifying un-reimbursed medical expenses and childcare expenses as outlined in
the Internal Revenue Code Section 125.

Brazos Center - A fund created to account for and maintain the room rental deposits at the County-
maintained convention center. Deposits are refunded at the completion of the function.

Bail Bonds - A statutory fund created to account for and monitor the cash bail bonds collected by the
District Clerk, County Clerk, and the Justices of the Peace in Brazos County. Once a case is disposed,
the bond is either refunded or transferred to revenue in satisfaction of court ordered costs and fines.

District Clerk Trust - A statutory fund used to account for monies placed with the District Clerk by the
District Court(s) and to be held until the Court(s) direct the distribution of the funds.

County Clerk Trust — A statutory fund used to account for monies placed with the Couaitly & the
County Courts-at-Law and the Probate Court. These funds are to bentiélthe Court(s) directs
distribution of the funds.

Juvenile Services A fund used to account for restitution, court costs, fines, fees ttmdey fees that
are collected from probationers and subsequently distributed to timasviof crime and the respective
fee offices.

Tax Assessor-Collector A fund used to account for tax revenues, license and permitdiested for
the County, State, and other governmental units within the County. Tiede are subsequently
reviewed and disbursed to the applicable governmental jurisdictions.

County Attorney - A fund used to account for the funds collected and distributed on behtié of
victims of returned checks.

Inmate Trust — A fund used to account for the funds received on behalf of inmates housed in the Count
Jail. Funds are returned to the inmate upon leaving the Countyriaitls are used to support inmate
purchases through the Commissary.

District Attorney Administration — A fund used to account for the collection and disbursement of
restitution processed by the District Attorney’s office.

Bail Bond Board Trust- A fund used to account for property and investments of bail bondsmen doing
business in Brazos County. The property and investments act as collateral for borudschetveeen
the bondsmen and the County.



ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

Prepaid Assets

Accounts Receivable

Due From Other Funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Funds Held in Trust

TOTAL LIABILITIES

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

September 30, 2004

Flexible District County District Bail Bond
Narcotics Benefit Brazos Clerk Clerk Juvenile Tax Assess County Inmate Attorney Board
Seizure Payroll Cafeteria Center  Bail Bonds Trust Trust Sevices Collector Attorney Trust _ Administration Trust Total
$ 95631 $ 693855 $ 10,000 $ 53,897 $ 654218 $ 3216240 $ 1924074 $ 21,204 % 2,254,830 $ 31290 $ 14424 $ 106,377 $ - $ 9,076,040
- - - - - - - - - - - - 1,374,609 1,374,609
- 67,488 - - - . ; . . - - . - 67,488
95 581 - 75 - 429 - - - - - - - 1,180
- 96 - - - - - - - - 464 - - 560
95,726 762,020 10,000 53,972 654,218 3,216,669 1,924,074 1,202 2,254,830 31,290 14,888 106,377 1,374,609 10,519,877
- 672,413 - - - 429 - - 2,238,965 361 - - - 2,912,168
- - - 18512 38,668 - - - 15,865 5,037 439 . - 78,521
95,726 89,607 10,000 35,460 615,550 3,216,240 1,924,074 21,204 - 25,892 14,449 106,377 1,374,609 7,529,188
$ 95726 $ 762020 $ 10,000 $ 53972 $ 654218 $ 3216669 $ 1,924,074 $ 21,204 $ 2,254,830 $ 31290 $ 14888 $ 106,377 $ 1,374,609 $ 10,519,877
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CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN OPERATION OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS




BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTA L FUNDS

BY SOURCE
September 30, 2004

2004 200:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS

Land $ 6,873,819 6,854,820

Buildings 26,727,593 26,396,161

Improvements 4,879,845 4,879,845

Machinery and Equipment 14,298,432 12,631,915

Infrastructure 35,299,117 34,544,705

Construction Work in Progress 3,669,767 2,715,788
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS $ 91,748,57 88,023,23
INVESTMENT IN GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL

ASSETS BY SOURCE

General Fund $ 7,579,141 7,544,615

Special Revenue Funds 597,082 513,262

Capital Project Funds 83,514,264 79,907,271

Donations 58,086 58,086
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CAPITAL ASSETS $ 91,748,57 88,023,23
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

General Governmen
County Judge
Commissioners' Court
Community Support
County Treasurer
Risk Management
Tax Assessor-Collector
Information Technology
Personnel
County Auditor
Purchasing Administration
Building Maintenance

Total General Government

Justice Syster
County Attorney
District Attorney
District Clerk
County Clerk
District Courts
County Courts At Law
Justices of the Peace (5)
Community Supervision
Court Master

Total Justice Syster

Law Enforcement
Sheriff/Jail
Courthouse Security
Constables (6)
Narcotics Task Force

Total Law Enforcement

Juvenile Service
Juvenile Probation

Total Juvenile Service

Public Transportation
Metropolitan Planning
Road & Bridge
Infrastructure

Total Public Transportation

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERMENTAL FUNDS

For The Year Ended September 30, 20(

Page 1 of 2

Governmental Governmental
Funds Capital Adjustments Funds Capital
Assets And Assets
10/01/0: Additions Retirements Transfers 9/30/0¢
$ 60,144 $ - $ - - 60,144
332,429 101,006 - - 433,435
87,500 - - - 87,500
223,723 - - - 223,723
74,783 - - - 74,783
683,227 - - - 683,227
3,782,856 425,304 - - 4,208,160
120,285 - - - 120,285
367,673 - - - 367,673
126,991 6,370 - - 133,361
547,247 - 15,567 16,374 548,054
6,406,858 532,680 15,567 16,374 6,940,345
1,048,583 79,897 - - 1,128,480
855,846 5,068 - - 860,914
905,32! - 16,79( (10,791 877,74«
357,333 - - - 357,333
473,071 15,398 - - 488,469
453,010 129,628 - - 582,638
204,064 - - - 204,064
748,737 - - - 748,737
60,144 - - - 60,144
5,106,113 229,991 16,790 (10,791) 5,308,523
14,700,382 839,070 90,394 - 15,449,058
183,631 - - - 183,631
602,515 175,394 75,371 (5,583) 696,955
353,930 64,310 135,103 - 283,137
15,840,458 1,078,774 300,868 (5,583) 16,612,781
6,573,959 31,734 - - 6,605,693
6,573,959 31,734 - - 6,605,693
999,521 - - - 999,521
11,306,940 592,516 273,024 - 11,626,432
34,544,705 1,361,361 - - 35,906,066
46,851,166 1,953,877 273,024 - 48,532,019

14z



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY - Cont inued

FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
Public Health
Environmental Protection
Health Department

Total Public Health

Human Services
Emergency Management
Brazos Center
Agricultural Extension
Elections
Exposition Center

Total Human Service:
Capital Projects

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
CAPTIAL ASSETS

For The Year Ended September 30, 20(

Page 2 of 2

Governmental Governmental
Funds Capital Adjustments  Funds Capital
Asset: And Asset:
10/01/0: Additions Retirements Transfers 09/30/0:
811,955 - - 811,955
400,774 - - 400,774
1,212,729 - - 1,212,729
33,130 112,138 - 145,268
2,277,413 7,647 - 2,285,060
92,908 - - 92,908
1,034,936 - - 1,034,936
2,593,564 384,747 - 2,978,311
6,031,951 504,532 - 6,536,483
$ 88,023,23 $ 4,331,58: $ 606,24¢ $ - $ 91,748,57
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FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
General Government

County Judge
Commissioners' Court
Community Support
County Treasurer
Risk Management
Tax Assessor-Collector
Information Technology
Personnel
County Auditor
Purchasing Administration
Building Maintenance

Total General Governmen

Justice Syster
County Attorne
District Attorney
District Clerk
County Clerk
District Courts
County Courts At Law
Justices of the Peace (5)
Community Supervision
Court Master

Total Justice System

Law Enforcement
Sheriff/Jail
Courthouse Security
Constables (4)
Narcotics Task Force

Total Law Enforcement

Juvenile Service
Juvenile Probation

Total Juvenile Service
Public Transportation

Metropolitan Planning
Road & Bridgt

Total Public Transportation

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTA L FUNDS
SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

September 30, 20C

Page 1 of 2

Machinery Construction
And Work in
Land Buildings  Improvements _ Equipment  Infrastructure Pro gress Total

$ 748 $ 50,207 $ 9,189 $ - % - $ - $ 60,144
58,866 225,931 41,347 6,285 - 101,006 433,435
25,375 62,125 - - - - 87,500
2,618 175,724 32,157 13,224 - - 223,723
748 50,207 9,189 14,639 - - 74,783
16,321 119,689 509,686 37,531 - - 683,227
62,500 18,750 168,329 3,958,581 - - 4,208,160
1,496 100,414 18,375 - - - 120,285
4,488 301,242 55,127 6,816 - - 367,673
1,496 100,414 18,375 13,076 - - 133,361
170,556 244,553 58,501 74,444 - - 548,054
345,212 1,449,256 920,275 4,124,596 - 101,006 6,940,345
12,34; 828,41! 151,60: 136,12: - - 1,128,48
9,725 652,691 119,444 79,054 - - 860,914
10,09¢ 677,79 124,03 65,81« - - 877,74
4,114 276,138 50,534 26,547 - - 357,333
5,610 376,551 68,910 37,398 - - 488,469
4,114 522,858 50,534 5,132 - - 582,638
29,424 131,881 22,000 20,759 - - 204,064
187,500 56,250 504,987 - - - 748,737
748 50,207 9,189 - - - 60,144
263,675 3,572,785 1,101,238 370,825 - - 5,308,523
106,604 13,005,026 312,393 2,022,535 - 2,500 15,449,058
1,122 75,310 13,782 93,417 - - 183,631
30,172 157,909 31,189 477,685 - - 696,955
- - - 283,137 - - 283,137
137,898 13,238,245 357,364 2,876,774 - 2,500 16,612,781
81,169 6,319,673 32,173 172,678 - - 6,605,693

81,16¢ 6,319,67 32,17: 172,67 - - 6,605,69
- - 994,180 5,341 - - 999,521
5,326,52 321,05! 549,78! 5,448,07! 35,299,11 587,95( 47,532,49
5,326,526 321,050 1,543,965 5,453,411 35,299,117 587,950 48,532,019
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

Page 20f 2

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNVENTA L AUNDS
SCHEDULE BY RUNCTION AND ACTIMTY - Gontinued

FUNCTION AND ACTMTY
Pubic Health
Environmental Protection
Health Departrment

Total Pubic Health

Huren Senvice
Emergency Managemernt
Brazos Center
Agricuitural Extension
Bections
Bxpasition Certer

Total Human Senvice

TOTAL GOVERNVENTAL FUNDS
CAPITALASSETS

Septerrber 30, 20(
Mechinery Construction
And Workin

Land Buldngs Impoverents Eguiprent  Infrastruciure Progres: Toa
589,042 90,908 152,005 - - - 811,955
122213 130824 138737 - - - 400,774
691,255 230,732 290,742 - - - 1,212,729
- - - 145,263 - - 145,263
28084 1532411 604,621 119944 - - 2285060
- 63,441 2467 - - - 92,908
- - - 1,034,936 - - 1,034,936

- - 2978311 2978311

28,034 1,595,852

1,300,148 - 2978311 6536483

$687381 $267275E $487984 $1429843 $3H29011 $36689,76 $91,7485/
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TABLE 1
BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Comparative Government-wide Revenues
Last Two Fiscal Years (1)

Taxes Operating Capital
Fiscal Investment Charges Grants & Grants &
Year Property Sales Motor Vehicle Mixed Drink Earnings r Bervices Contributions  Contributions Totals
2003 $ 24,127,005 $ 7,723,285 $ 1,147,480 $ 317,091 $ 594,314 $ 8,205,775 $ 3,090,190 $

58,911 $ 45,264,051
2004 $ 26,932,638 $ 8,413,179

$ 1,136,744 $ 348,790 $ 684,525 $ 10,466,453 $ 3,293,962 $ 291,411 $ 51,567,702

(1) Only two years presented since GASB 34 impleatam.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Comparative Government-wide Expenses By Function
Last Two Fiscal Years (1)

Fiscal General Justice Law Juvenile Public Public
Year Government System Enforcement Services Transporatio Health

TABLE 2

Human terbst
Services and Other Fees Total

2003 $ 11,890,781 $ 8,684,058 $ 11,271,954 $ 3,802,706 $ 6,394,828 $ 1,761,796 $
2004 $ 12,633,863 $ 9,392,776 $ 11,956,232 $ 3,739,205 $ 5,360,370 $ 1,726,770 $

(1) Only two years presented since GASB 34 impletation.

1475

1,578,544 $ 1,349,227 $ 46,733,894
1,826,466 $ 1,648,665 $ 48,284,347



TABLE 3

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Comparative Condensed Summary of Revenues - Akk@owental Fund Types

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Charges Inter- Other Total
Year Taxes For Services  Governmental Revenues Revenues
1995 19,973,481 4,495,882 2,764,068 1,652,919 28,886,350
1996 20,947,817 4,532,552 1,606,924 1,677,282 28,764,575
1997 22,241,409 4,905,587 1,772,849 1,941,429 30,861,274
1998 23,604,383 5,385,904 1,726,895 1,984,415 32,701,597
1999 24,758,878 5,826,637 4,119,599 2,171,859 36,876,973
2000 26,345,581 6,540,655 2,777,633 2,641,456 38,305,325
2001 27,943,430 7,340,467 3,585,094 2,278,417 41,147,408
2002 30,383,866 7,444,715 3,155,142 1,246,088 42,229,811
2003 32,152,880 7,171,392 3,149,101 1,238,072 43,711,445
2004 35,680,824 7,736,038 3,578,354 1,263,638 48,258,854
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

Comparative Summary of Expenditures - All GoverntabRund Types

Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Justice Law Juvenile Public Public Human Capital btDe
Year Government System Enforcement Services Transpamtati Health Services Outlay Service
1995 5,840,390 4,998,729 6,300,471 2,402,581 5,099,246 772,347 1,538,417 1,524,802 1,800,958
1996 5,089,108 5,003,765 5,846,936 2,095,425 5,107,220 710,274 1,419,807 2,552,377 1,626,479
1997 6,323,514 5,370,526 6,044,899 2,629,158 4,475,856 696,832 1,316,479 5,829,926 1,831,620
1998 8,215,152 5,984,026 5,881,313 2,971,105 4,519,192 687,894 1,090,016 1,059,773 2,074,517
1999 8,022,647 6,358,865 6,502,196 3,298,091 5,593,200 932,440 1,081,526 4,653,824 1,809,843
2000 6,164,034 6,900,094 8,153,475 3,576,044 8,076,525 1,477,284 1,285,436 5,290,608 1,827,141
2001 6,803,843 7,351,632 8,904,725 4,386,392 7,813,063 1,629,373 1,192,880 2,108,711 1,833,627
2002 8,491,208 7,977,099 9,800,657 3,742,505 7,653,911 1,727,396 1,355,005 5,053,281 2,302,411
2003 8,331,368 8,492,929 10,542,502 3,614,194 6,345,972 1,747,062 1,397,062 3,188,316 3,045,152
2004 9,398,660 9,460,213 11,550,365 3,650,819 4,878,592 1,701,189 1,663,257 4,338,542 3,633,831

14¢-15C

Total

Expenditures

30,277,941
29,451,391
34,518,810
32,482,988
38,252,632
42,750,641
42,024,246
48,103,473
46,704,557
50,275,468



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

Property Tax Levies and Collections

And Schedule of Property Taxes Receivable

Last Ten Years

Current Delinquent Total Outstanding
Current Tax Collections Tax Collections Outstanding ~ Delinquent Taxes
Tax Year/ Total Changes and as Percent of Changes and Total as Percent of Belinque  as Percent of
Fiscal Year Tax Levy Collections Tax Levy Collections (1)  Collections TawylL Taxes Tax Levy
1945 through 1994/1995 (2% - $ - - $ - $ - - $ 207,150 $ -
1995/1996 15,071,727 14,794,691 98.16% 249,776 15,044,467 99.82% 27,260 0.18%
1996/1997 15,968,203 15,671,528 98.14% 267,112 15,938,640 99.81% 29,563 0.19%
1997/1998 17,061,045 16,625,071 97.44% 399,835 17,024,906 99.79% 36,139 0.21%
1998/1999 17,749,856 17,360,005 97.80% 344,098 17,704,103 99.74% 45,753 0.26%
1999/2000 18,933,265 18,552,512 97.99% 320,291 18,872,803 99.68% 60,462 0.32%
2000/2001 20,732,000 20,004,504 96.49% 615,739 20,620,243 99.46% 111,757 0.54%
2001/2002 22,629,312 21,988,027 97.17% 491,435 22,479,462 99.34% 149,850 0.66%
2002/2003 24,066,065 22,721,649 94.41% 1,138,112 23,859,761 99.14% 206,304 0.86%
2003/2004 26,929,514 26,564,663 98.65% (128,146) 26,436,517 98.17% 492,997 1.83%
Balance: 1,367,235
NOTE: (1) Changes in Tax Roll since issued.
(2) Amount of delinquent taxes from 1945 to 1995. Taxes receivable by fund:
General $ 1,174,865
Debt Service 192,370
Total $ 1,367,235
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Tax Year/

Fiscal Year

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Proge&ty (

Last Ten Years

Actual Assessed Value

TABLE 6

Real Property

Personal Property

Total

1994/1995
1995/1996
1996/1997
1997/1998
1998/1999
1999/2000
2000/2001
2001/2002
2002/2003
2003/2004

2,662,916,207
2,906,482,819
3,033,968,634
3,234,530,962
3,396,189,264
3,665,546,939
4,026,600,490
4,404,363,720
5,209,340,502
5,672,273,191

733,810,212
769,522,658
783,526,598
846,057,029
856,281,069
866,662,574
920,553,658
983,496,343
981,629,223
1,076,964,447

3,396,726,419
3,676,005,477
3,817,495,232
4,080,587,991
4,252,470,333
4,532,209,513
4,947,154,148
5,387,860,063
6,190,969,725
6,749,237,638

NOTE: (1) The assessed value is the total adjusted assessatiovahet of

Central Appraisal District.

15¢

exempt properties as certified by the Appraisal Re\Beard.

(2) All property assessed at 100 percent of value réi$ieg by the



TABLE 7

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Property Tax Rates - All Direct and Overlapping &mments

Last Ten Years

TAX RATES *
City
City of College

Tax Year/ Brazos of Bryan College Station

Fiscal Year County Bryan I.S.D. Station I.S.D. Total
1994/1995 0.4184 0.6100 1.5200 0.4450 1.6100 4.6034
1995/1996 0.4100 0.6100 1.5200 0.4450 1.6100 4.5950
1996/1997 0.4180 0.6324 1.5340 0.4427 1.6900 47171
1997/1998 0.4174 0.6295 1.6440 0.4293 1.7400 4.8602
1998/1999 0.4174  0.6367 1.6820 0.4293 (1) 1.7500(1) 4.9154
1999/2000 0.4174 0.6367 1.5880 0.4293 1.7500 4.8214
2000/2001 0.4100 0.6364 1.6150 0.4293 1.7500 4.8407
2001/2002 0.4200 0.6364 1.6680 0.4777 1.7900 4.9921
2002/2003 0.4146 0.6364 1.7120 0.4777 1.7900 (1) 5.0307
2003/2004 0.4350 0.6364 1.6800 0.4653 1.7700 4.9867

* Per $100 of Assessed Value
(1) Corrections have been made based on the FY@RG# City of College Station.

154



TABLE 8
BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Ten Largest Taxpayers
September 30, 2004

% of Assessed

Value to
Type of Assessed Total Assessed
Taxpayer Business Values (1) Values (2)

Verizon Communications Communications $ 79,968,580 1.18%
C B L & Associates Mall Development 49,331,205 0.73%
Wal-Mart/Sam's Retail/Wholesale 43,859,465 0.65%
Adam Development Development 41,208,280 0.61%
Anadarko E&P Company, LP Gas Production 34,147,695 0.51%
Alkosser/Weinberg Etal Gas Production 33,666,285 0.50%
College Station Hospital LP Health 32,787,670 0.49%
Devon Gas Services, LP Gas Production 27,834,305 0.41%
H-E-B; H E Butt Store Property Co. Retail/Grocery 38,730 0.34%
R&S Leasing Realty 20,716,926 0.31%
Total Assessed Values $386,554,141 5.73%

NOTE: (1) Brazos County Appraisal District
(2) Total adjusted assessed valuation net of expnopierties as certified
by the Appraisal Review Board - $ 6,749,237,638
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TABLE 9
BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Computation of Legal Debt Margin
September 30, 2004

Assessed Value (Note 1) $ 6,749,237,638

Debt Limit (Note 2) 1,418,068,298

Less amount of debt applicable to debt limit

Gross bonded debt (Note 3) 8,000,000

Less available from Debt Service Fund 1,623,742
Total applicable to debt limit 6,376,258
Legal Debt Margin $ 1,424,444,556

NOTE: (1) Total adjusted assessed valuation net efngxt properties as certified by
the Appraisal Review Board.
(2) Debt Limit 25% of assessed value of real prope#5,672,273,191
Article 3, Section 52, of the Texas Constitution.

(3) Includes only general obligation bonds.
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TABLE 10
BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for
General Bonded Debt to Total General Expenditures

Last Ten Years

Ratio of Debt

Service To
Fiscal D Total Debt Total General Total General
Year Principal Interest Service Expenditures (1) Expemds
1995 980,000 183,280 1,163,280 30,277,941 3.8%
1996 1,025,000 138,880 1,163,880 29,451,391 4.0%
1997 1,075,000 87,893 1,162,893 34,518,810 3.4%
1998 1,080,000 30,240 1,110,240 32,482,988 3.4%
1999 - - - 38,252,632 -
2000 - - - 42,750,641 -
2001 - - - 42,024,246 -
2002 - 297,343 297,343 48,103,473 0.6%
2003 - 396,457 396,457 46,704,557 0.8%
2004 - 396,458 396,458 50,275,468 0.8%

NOTE: (1) Includes all governmental fund types.



BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt

to Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita

Last Ten Years

TABLE 11

General Debt Service Net Ratio of Net Net

Tax Year/ Assessed Obligation Funds Bonded Bonded Debt to Bonded Debt
Fiscal Year Population Value Bonded Debt Available Debt Assessed Value er Gapita
1994/1995 135,003 (1) 3,396,726,419 3,180,000 898,049 2,281,951 0.07% 16.90
1995/1996 138,093 (1) 3,676,005,477 2,155,000 302,705 1,852,295 0.05% 13.41
1996/1997 138,985 (1) 3,817,495,232 1,080,000 182,540 897,460 0.02% 6.46
1997/1998 140,025 (1) 4,080,587,991 - - - - -
1998/1999 143,436 (1) 4,252,470,333 - - - - -
1999/2000 152,415 (1) 4,532,209,513 - - - - -
2000/2001 155,449 (2) 4,947,154,148 - - - - -
2001/2002 156,415 (1) 5,387,860,063 8,000,000 1,961,310 6,038,690 0.11% 38.61
2002/2003 162,787 (1) 6,190,969,725 8,000,000 1,612,877 6,387,123 0.10% 39.24
2003/2004 161,779 (1) 6,749,237,638 8,000,000 1,623,742 6,376,258 0.09% 39.41

NOTE: (1) As estimated by the Texas State Datatete

(2) Official Census Data
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TABLE 12
BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt
September 30, 2004

Total
Direct and Estimated
Overlapping Percent

Taxing Jurisdiction Funded Debt (1) Applicable
Brazos County $ 6,376,258 100%
City of Bryan 67,846,107 100%
City of College Station 81,790,000 100%
Independent School Districts (2) 128,935,000 100%
Total estimated overlapping funded debt $ 284,947,365
Ratio overlapping debt to 100% assessed valuation 22%.
Per capita overlapping funded debt $ 1,761.34

(1) General Obligation Bonds outstanding less arhauailable in Debt Service Fund
(2) Independent School District debt includes:

College Station Independent School District - $88,600

Bryan Independent School District - $63,265,000
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TABLE 13

Page 1 of 3
BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Miscellaneous Statistical Data
September 30, 2004
Organization Brazos County was created in 1841 andged for the Brazos River, which is the
southwest border of the County.
Government The County is governed by four (4) ett€@emmissioners and one (1) County

Judge. It is audited by the County Auditor whajgpointed by the 85th, 272nd,
and 361st Judicial District Judges of the Stat€exfas.

Area 586 square miles, bounded by the Brazos Rivén® southwest, the Old San

Antonio Road on the northwest, and the NavasotaRin the east.
Miles of Roads 450 miles of County maintained roads.

Fire Protection Each precinct has a voluntary Fiep&tment, and when needed, has the assistance

of the Bryan and College Station Fire Departments.

Police Protection The County Sheriff's Departmergreécinct constables, the Cities of Bryan and @elle
Station Police Departments, Campus Security atIéx& M University, Campus
Security at Blinn College, and the Texas DepartneéRtublic Safety comprise most
of the law enforcement of the County. The Coungntains the jail at the courthouse,

a detention facility on Sandy Point Road, and @fuie detention facility.

Education Independent School Districts of:
Bryan
College Station
Navasota
Texas A & M University
Blinn College
Private Schools:
Aggieland Country School
Allen Academy
St. Michael's Academy
St. Joseph Catholic School
Bethel Temple Christian School
Brazos Christian School

Montessori School House

161



TABLE 13

Page 2 of 3
BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Miscellaneous Statistical Data
September 30, 2004
Population
1950 Census 38,390
1960 Census 44,895
1970 Census 57,978
1980 Census 93,588
1990 Census 121,862
2000 Census 152,415
2001 (1) 155,449
2002 1) 156,415
2003 1) 162,787
2004 1) 161,779
(1) Population as estimated by the Texas State Oaitder.
Registered Voted in Percent
General Election Voters Election Participation
11/07/95 61,663 9,219 14.95%
11/07/96 70,204 39,422 56.15%
11/04/97 73,389 8,094 11.03%
11/03/98 75,516 26,981 35.73%
11/02/99 72,182 5,449 7.55%
11/07/00 84,945 47,606 56.04%
11/07/01 88,331 3,929 4.45%
11/05/02 91,220 29,175 31.98%
09/13/03 86,558 6,449 7.45%
11/02/04 86,283 54,904 63.63%
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TABLE 13

Page 3 of 3
BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Miscellaneous Statistical Data
September 30, 2004
Labor Force Statistics *
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004

Labor Force 71,839 75,815 76,181 76,884 78,073 85,296 86,543
Unemployed 1,254 1,351 1,211 1,245 1,417 1,945 1,455
% Unemployed 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.6 1.8 2.3 1.7
Employed 70,585 74,464 74,970 75,639 76,656 83,351 85,088

* Includes resident wage and salary workers, selfpoyed, unpaid family workers

and domestics in private households, agriculturatikers and workers involved in

labor-management disputes. Source: Texas Workf@emmission, Bryan, Texas.

Major Employers (Non Retail)** Employees
Texas A&M University & System 12,000
Bryan Independent School District 2,090
St. Joseph Regional Hospital 1,560
Sanderson Farms 1,500
College Station Independent School District 1,100
UCS/Rentsys 850
City of College Station 800
City of Bryan 771
Brazos County*** 727
Blinn College 609

**  Figures provided by Research Valley Partnership.

*** Figure provided by Brazos County records.

Elected Appointed
Employed by the County Officials Officials Employees

On September 30, 1995 30 3 596
On September 30, 1996 30 3 644
On September 30, 1997 30 3 627
On September 30, 1998 30 3 635
On September 30, 1999 27 3 661
On September 30, 2000 27 3 651
On September 30, 2001 27 3 668
On September 30, 2002 27 3 710
On September 30, 2003 27 3 668
On September 30, 2004 25 5 727
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TABLE 14

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Property Value and Building Permits

Last Ten Years

Fiscal Property Building
Year Value (1) Permits (2)
1995 3,396,726,419 134,304,842
1996 3,676,005,477 146,821,676
1997 3,817,495,232 193,363,182
1998 4,080,587,991 188,890,435
1999 4,252,470,333 255,218,735
2000 4,532,209,513 274,644,286
2001 4,947,154,148 201,458,617
2002 5,387,860,063 236,811,128
2003 6,190,969,725 271,105,822
2004 6,749,237,638 308,327,706

NOTE: (1) Net as certified by the Appraisal Review Board.
(2) Total value of all building permits issued by the

City of Bryan and the City of College Station.
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Annual Compensation and Surety Bonds for Princ{pticials
For the Twelve Month Period Ended September 304200

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

TABLE 15

Annual Amount of
Elected Official Title Salary Surety Bond

Randy Sims County Judge $ 70,800 $ 5,000
J.D. Langley 85th District Court Judge 10,020 -
Rick Davis 272nd District Court Judge 9,300 -
Steve Smith 361st District Court Judge 9,540 -
James Locke County Court-at-Law Judge 110,776 5,000
Randy Michel County Court-at-Law Judge 110,296 5,000
E. Duane Peters Precinct 2 Commissioner 53,624 3,000
G. Kenny Mallard, Jr. Precinct 3 Commissioner 53,144 3,000
Carey Cauley, Jr. Precinct 4 Commissioner 53,384 3,000
Karen McQueen County Clerk 52,154 180,000
Gerald L. Winn Tax Assessor-Collector 54,916 100,000
Marc Hamlin District Clerk 54,586 100,000
Bill Turner District Attorney 10,330 5,000
James Kuboviak County Attorney 92,995 2,500
Kay Hamilton County Treasurer 50,394 25,000
Christopher C. Kirk County Sheriff 68,560 5,000

Justices of the Peace:
Charles Ellis Precinct 1 44,200 5,000
Margaret Meece Precinct 2 Place 1 44,200 5,000
Ray M. Truelove Precinct 2 Place 2 45,160 5,000
George H. Boyett Precinct 3 44,680 5,000
Ramero Quintero Precinct 4 44,200 5,000

Constables:
Donald Lampo Precinct 2 37,830 5,000
Dee W. Thompson Precinct 3 38,550 5,000
Isaac Butler, Jr. Precinct 4 38,550 5,000
Phil Sikes Precinct 6 38,310 -

Appointed Official
Eric Caldwell (1) Precinct 1 Commissioner 53,144 3,000
Archie Clark (1) Precinctl 38,310 1,500
Katie Conner County Auditor 70,536 5,000

(1) Eric Caldwell was appointed 12/11/03 and ArcGiark was appointed on 6/12/04.
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General Government
Justice System

Law Enforcement
Juvenile Services
Public Transportation
Human Services

TOTALS

BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS

General Fund

Salary and Wages By Function
Last Five Fiscal Years

TABLE 16

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
$ 3398641 $ 3,251,589 $ 3,028,014 $ 2,705066 $ 2,516,478
4,920,746 4,628,460 4,387,470 4,083,747 3,869,961
6,534,751 6,045,185 5,739,872 5,079,575 4,588,267
1,804,742 1,913,899 1,936,131 1,621,877 1,542,051
1,657,518 1,670,521 1,580,327 1,473,654 1,441,536
491,473 439,935 432,310 448,487 456,193
$ 18,807,871 $ 17,949,589 $ 17,104,124 $ 15412406 $ 14,414,486
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
General Fund
Annual Salary and Benefits By Function
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

TABLE 17

General Government $

Justice System

Law Enforcement

Juvenile Services

Public Transportation

Human Services

Health & Cafeteria Plan
Social Dental Worker's Administration
Salary Security Retirement Insurance Compensation Fees TALO
3,398,641% 245881 $ 387,356 $ 558,333 $ 26,183 $ 3,049 $ 4,619,443
4,920,746 358,212 555,720 699,051 17,202 3,498 6,554,429
6,534,751 479,089 740,561 1,098,314 153,515 4,675 9,010,905
1,804,742 136,573 197,790 283,925 7,580 1,480 2,432,090
1,657,518 120,457 176,879 309,971 64,626 1,196 2,330,647
491,473 39,257 46,555 75,470 6,116 318 659,189
TOTALS $ 18,807,871 $ 1,379,469 $ 2,104,861 $ 3,025,064 $ 275,222  $ 14,216 $ 25,606,703
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Diana K. Wagner

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Randy Sims, County Judge
and the Honorable County Commissioners
Brazos County, Texas

We have audited the financial statements of Brazos County, Texas (the “County”) as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2004, and have issued our report thereon dated December 17, 2004. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters
in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition
in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be
material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
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contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management and state
and federal regulatory agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than

these specified parties.
Wi I

Bryan, Texas
December 17, 2004
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Laurie J. Zink REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE
TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Randy Sims, County Judge
and the Honorable County Commissioners
Brazos County, Texas

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Brazos County, Texas (the “County”) with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended
September 30, 2004. The County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs
is the responsibility of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
County’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2004.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on the internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition
in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation to a major federal
program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over
compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management and
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by

anyone other than these specified parties.
9 Yvdls - Gope
<

Bryan, Texas
December 17, 2004
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awasd

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Accounts Accounts
Federal Pass-Through Program/ Receivable Grant Funds Receivable
CFDA Grantor/State Award (Payable) Refunded (Payable)
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program Title umber Number Amount October 1, 2003 Receipts Expenditure in 2004 September 30, 2004
U. S. Department of Justice
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 16.592 2001-LB-BX5B 45538 $ (3,942) $ -- - $ 3,942 $ -
10/25/01-10/24/03
16.592 2002-LB-BX-2030 32,757 (32,757) - 32,757 - -
7/12/02-7/1104
16.592 2003-LB-BX-2055 24,830 - 24,830 5,181 - (19,649)
11/10/03-//09/05
State Criminal Alien Assistance Progr 16.60¢ 2003-AP-BX-030 49,30( 49,30( 49,30( -- -- --
7/01/01-6/30/0
16.60¢ 2004-AP-BX-035! 63,85¢ - 63,85¢ 63,85« - -
7/01/02-6/30/0
Gun Violence Prosectution Gri 16.60¢ 2002-GP-CX-017 120,00( 13,31 70,69¢ 60,36° -- 2,98(
3/01/02-2/28/0
25,91¢ 208,68 162,15¢ 3,94 (16,669
Passed through the Texas Engineering Extension
Service
Emergency Preparedness Grant 97.004 N/A 117,204 -- 112,138 116,170 - 4,032
- 112,138 116,170 - 4,032
Passed through Office of the Governor of Te
Criminal Justice Divisio
Narcotics Task For¢ 16.57¢ DB-03-A10-13867-0 650,00( 154,16: 649,98: 495,82 - -
06/01/03-05/31/0
Narcotics Task For¢ 16.57¢ DB-04-A10-13867-0 650,00( - 90,277 194,09( - 103,81:
06/01/04-05/31/0
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Gri 16.52:% JB-00-J20-15463-( 51,817 42,46¢ 42,46¢ - - -
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Gri 16.52% JB-02-J20-15463-( 43,74¢ 24¢F 11,15: 42,29: -- 31,38
196,873 793,877 732,202 - 135,198
U. S. Department of Transportation
Passed through State Departmer
Highways and Public Transportat
Metropolitan Planning Organizati 20.20¢ 503XXF002: 140,72¢ 12,14t 12,14 -- -- --
Metropolitan Planning Organizati 20.20¢ 504XXF002+ 264,93: -- 189,40 229,37: - 39,96°
Sale to Intoxicated Persc 20.60( 581 XXF500¢ 30,95¢ -- - - - -
Comprehensive Underage Drinking Education Pro 20.60( 582XXF500: 46,20¢ 5,44¢ 5,44¢ -- -- --
Comprehensive Underage Drinking Education Pro 20.60( 584 XXF500¢ 46,204 -- 32,927 42,16( - 9,23t
Local Rail Economic Feasibility & Location Stu 20.20¢ 2000-01- 1,131,34! 135,76 67,88 3 -- 67,88:
153,35! 307,80¢ 271,53 - 117,08:
U.S. Federal Transit Administrati
Passed through Brazos Valley Commu
Action Agency/Brazos Transit Distr
Metropolitan Planning Organizati 20.50¢ N/A 30,00( 20,19( 20,19( - - -
Metropolitan Planning Organizati 20.50¢ N/A 30,00( -- 28,13( 28,13( - -
20,19( 48,32( 28,13( - -
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State AwasdContinued)

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Accounts Accounts
Federal Pass-Through Program/ Receivable Grant Funds Receivable
CFDA Grantor/State Award (Payable) Refunded (Payable)
Number Number Amount October 1, 2003 Receipts Expesditur in 2004 September 30, 2004
tor/Pass-Through Grantor/Prograr
U. S. Federal Emergency Management Agency
Passed through Texas Department of Public ¢
Division of Emergency Managem 97.04: EMT-2003-GR-000 4349 ¢ 2071 $ 19.87( $ (841 $ - $ -~
Division of Emergency Managem 97.04: EMT-2004-GR-010 43,49: - 32,61¢ 43,49, - 10,87:
20,71 52,48¢ 42,65, — 10,87¢
U. S. Department of Health and Human Ser
Passed through the Texas Department of Prot
and Regulatory Servic
Title IV-E-Legal(CPS 93.65¢ 09/01/02-08/31/C - 27,21, 27,21. - - -
93.65¢ 09/01/03-08/31/C - 4,47: 42,22: 50,48 - 12,73
93.65¢ 09/1/04-08/31/C - - - 4,58( - 4,58(
Title IV-E-Foster Care Maintenar 93.65¢ 09/01/02-08/31/C - 9,35¢ 9,39¢ 4C - -
93.65¢ 09/01/03-08/31/C - 33: 3,93t 8,04« - 4,44;
93.65¢ 09/01/04-08/31/C - -- - - - -
41,376 82,768 63,146 - 21,754
Passed through the Texas Juvenile Prot
Commission
Title IV- E- Administratior 93.65¢ 09/01/02-08/31/C - 167,98 167,98 - - -
93.65¢ 09/01/03-08/31/C - - 252,54 431,33 - 178,78
Title IV-E - Maintenance - Juven 93.65¢ TJIPC-E-2002-02 - (3,975 - 3,97¢ -
93.65¢ TJPC-E-2003-02 - (33,074 12,73 873 43,45; (3,233
93.65¢ TJIPC-E-2004-02 - 1,247 91t 38,10¢ - 38,44
93.65¢ TJIPC-E-2005-02 -- -- 2,90« - 2,90«
132,18 434,18 ATLAT 47,42 216,89
Passed through the Texas Depart
of Human Servict
National School Lunch Progr: 10.55! 07/01/02-06/30/C - 1,86¢ 1,86¢ - - -
10.55! 07/01/03-06/30/C - 3,66¢ 16,38: 12,71¢ - -
10.55! 07/01/04-06/30/C - - - 3,30¢ - 3,30¢
School Breakfast Progr: 10.55: 07/01/02-0630/C - 1,19 1,19 - - -
10.55! 07/01/03-06/30/C - 2,811 11,65t 8,84¢ - -
10.55! 07/01/04-06/30/C - - - 2,09¢ - 2,09¢
Food Services Division Commodit 10.55( 07/01/03-06/30/C - - 1,53t 1,53 - -
10.55( 07/01/04-06/30/C - - 611 611 - -
9,53¢ 33,24, 29,11! - 5,40¢
U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Develog
Passed through the Office of Rural and Communiigird
Texas Community Development Prog 14.22¢ 2003 CD Contract No. 723C 240,171 - 31,00( 123,80 - 92,80
- 31,00( 123,80 - 92,80«
Total Federal Assistar 3 000,15 % 2,104,50 3 2,040,365 3 01,360 b 06/,36.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awasd(Continued)

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Accounts Accounts
Federe Pass-Throuc Program Receivabl Grant Fund Receivabl
CFDA Grantor/Stat Award (Payable Refunde: (Payable
Numbe Numbe Amouni October 1, 20C Receipt Expenditure in 2004 September 30, 20!
State Grant or Program Ti
Texas Juvenile Probation Commiss
State Aic N/A TJPC-A-2003-02 376,46. % (325, $ - $ - $ 328 % -
09/01/02-08/31/03
State Aid N/A TJPC-A-2004-021 119,859 8,047 119,859 111,812 - -
09/01/03-08/31/04
State Aid N/A TJPC-A-2005-021 119,859 -- - 8,517 - 8,517
09/01/04-08/31/0
Community Corrections Assistance Program N/A TJIPCOO4L021 198,024 13,357 198,024 180,634 - (4,033)
09/01/03-08/31/04
Community Corrections Assistance Program N/A TJIPCO04£021 198,024 -- -- 16,287 - 16,287
09/01/03-08/31/04
Challenge N/A TJPC-C-2003-021 47,311 (7,173) - - 7,173 -
09/01/02-08/31/03
State Supplement N/A TJPC-Z-2004-021 123,975 8,539 123,975 83,825 - (31,611)
09/01/03-08/31/04
State Supplement N/A TJPC-Z-2005-021 123,975 -- -- 7,603 - 7,603
09/01/04-08/31/05
Progressive Sanctions Level 5 Placement N/A N/A 14,726 - 58,462 58,462 - -
JIAEP N/A TJPC - P - 2003 - 021 N/A (15,576) - (413) 15,989 -
JJAEP N/A TJPC - P - 2004 - 021 11,146 - 39,235 36,226 - (3,009)
Progressive Sanctions Juvenile Probation Officers A N/ TJPC-F-2004-021 94,104 12,784 94,104 81,320 - -
09/01/03-08/31/04
Progressive Sanctions Juvenile Probation Officers A N/ TJPC-F-2005-021 94,104 - -- 11,997 - 11,997
09/01/04-08/31/03
Progressive Sanctions Level 1-2-3 Program N/A TJIP2OGA-021 38,525 - 38,525 38,525 - -
09/01/03-08/31/04
Progressive Sanctions Level 1-2-3 Program N/A TJIPE2RG5-021 38,525 - -- 1,824 - 1,824
09/01/04-08/31/05
Progressive Sanctions ISJPO N/A TJPC-0-2004-021 27,240 3,454 27,240 23,786 - --
09/01/03-08/31/04
Progressive Sanctions ISJIPO N/A TJPC-0-2005-021 27,240 - - 2,861 - 2,861
09/01/04-08/31/05
Texas Task Force on Indigent Defense N/A 212-03-021 76,274 16,390 16,390 - - -
Indigent Defense Formula Grant 10/01/02-09/30/03
Office of Attorney General
VINE Program N/A 04-04642 50,873 - 50,873 50,873 - -
12/01/03-11/30/04
Total State Assistance 39,497 766,687 714,139 23,487 10,436
Total Federal and State Assistance $ 639,631 $ 2,871,195 $ 2,754,525 $ 74,856 $ 597,817
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

General - The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards presents all federal
and state expenditures of Brazos County, Texas (the “County”).

Basis of Accounting - The expenditures on the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and
State Awards are presented on the accrual basis.

Relationship to Financial Statements - Expenditures of federal and state awards are reported in the
County’s basic financial statements on the accrual basis.

Relationship to Federal Financial Reports - Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule of

Expenditures of Federal and State Awards agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and
state financial reports in all significant respects.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? __yes _X no
Reportable condition(s) identified
that are not considered to be none
material weaknesses? __yes X _reported
Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? _yes _X no
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? _yes _X no
Reportable condition(s) identified
that are not considered to be none
material weaknesses? __yes _X reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance

with section 510(a) of Circular A-133? X yes___no
Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
16.579 Narcotics Trafficking Task Force
93.658 Foster Care Title [V-E

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? _X yes __no
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2004

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

2003-01

Criteria - Cancellation of all invoices as they are paid reduces the possibility of duplicate
payments, whether resulting from error or intentional fraud.

Condition - During review of invoices, we noted several invoices not properly stamped
paid or otherwise marked to avoid duplication.

Recommendation - Cancellation of invoices should occur at the time of payment and be an
inherent part of the payment process.

Status - The County is continuing to make every effort to ensure that invoices are marked
paid upon payment. It was recently determined that this condition generally occurs on
certain types of payments such as demand checks and payroll deduction disbursements and
we are now intensifying our efforts on these areas as well.

FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

2003-02

Criteria - Proper documentation must be retained to substantiate charges to grants.
Acceptance and disposal of donated materials should be approved by the appropriate
authority.

Condition - Through review of reports issued by the Brazos County internal audit
department and discussion with County personnel, we noted several matters involving the
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant which operates the juvenile Boot Camp.

Timesheets for tutors were not properly maintained. Several tutors were paid amounts that
could not be determined as earned. Certain items purchased by the program or donated to
the program could not be located during a physical inspection of the premises. Items
purportedly stolen were not reported to the police. Also, the donated items did not go
through the proper County procedures to accept and dispose of assets.

Recommendation - We recommend strict control over record keeping be instituted at the
Boot Camp to insure payment is made only for services properly rendered. An
appropriate level of supervision over personnel involved in the acceptance of donated
assets and disposal of all assets is also required.

Status — Management of the Juvenile Services Department is aware of this issue and is
continually working to correct this condition by educating the employees on proper
procedures and requirements. Subsequent reviews by the State of Texas have not noted
any deficiencies in these areas.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS — CONTINUED

FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

2003-03 Criteria - Monthly reconciliations should be performed for grant reporting and proper
supervision and review procedures should be in place to insure accurate and timely
monthly reporting.

Condition - Numerous journal entries were required at year end to properly state the
financial statements for state and federal award activity. It appears that supervision of
grant reporting was not effectively performed throughout fiscal year 2003. Due to the need
to reconcile financial reports and grant reports, final grant reports for several programs
were not timely filed.

Recommendation - Monthly reconciliations of grant reports and general ledger reports
should be reviewed by appropriate personnel prior to submission of the reports. Grant
accountants should be properly trained in grant accounting issues. Final quarterly reports
for all programs should be prepared, reviewed and submitted by the due date to avoid
delays in future funding.

Status — The County has experienced turnover in both the financial management and grant
accounting positions since October 2003. This turnover has eliminated this condition and
the County does not expect a reoccurrence.

2003-04 Criteria - All applicable standards regarding Title IV-E case documentation should be
followed to insure proper compliance with grant requirements.

Condition - A Title IV-E monitoring report from the Texas Juvenile Probation
Commission noted noncompliance with case management standards. Based on the
monitoring report, the County was required to pay back $47,427 in overpaid foster care
reimbursements.

Recommendation - All Brazos County Juvenile Probation Department employees should
review program standards to ensure compliance in current Title [V-E files. An appropriate
official should examine all applicable files prior to submission for the reimbursement
request.

Status — Management of the Juvenile Probation Department has implemented this

recommendation. Subsequent reviews by the State of Texas have resulted in excellent
scores and this issue has been resolved.
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BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS — CONTINUED

FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

2003 - 05

Criteria - Students reported to TIPC as attending the JTAEP classes should be in
agreement with actual attendance vouchers.

Condition and Questioned Cost - Actual daily attendance vouchers for JJAEP were not in
agreement with the monthly attendance forms submitted to the TJPC. An excess of 7 days
was reported. At the daily rate of $59, the amount overpaid by TIPC was $413.

Recommendation - The officer in charge of the TJPC program must reconcile the daily
attendance vouchers to the monthly form submitted to TJPC prior to submission.

Status - This recommendation has been implemented and the condition has been resolved.
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